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STATE OF NEW MEXICO

ENERGY, MINERALS AND NATURAL RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION

IN THE MATTER OF THE HEARING CALLED
BY THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION FOR
THE PURPOSE OF CONSIDERING:

APPLICATION OF AGUA SUCIA, LLC Case No. 14411
TO REINSTATE DIVISION ADMINISTRATIVE ORDER

SWD-559 FOR A SALT WATER DISPOSAL WELL,

LEA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

APPLICATION OF BURLINGTON RESOURCES Case No. 12276

SAN JUAN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

APPLICATION OF BURLINGTON RESOURCES Case No. 12277
OIL & GAS COMPANY FOR COMPULSORY POOLING,

SECTION 16, TOWNSHIP 31 NORTH, RANGE 11 WEST

SAN JUAN COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

APPLICATION OF COG OPERATING, LLC Case No. 14472
FOR CANCELLATION OF OPERATOR'S AUTHORITY '
AND TERMINATION OF SPACING UNITS, YESO
ENERGY, INC. DOW "B" FEDERAL WELL NO. 1,
EDDY COUNTY, NEW MEXICO

APPLICATION OF NEW MEXICO OIL - Case No¥
CONSERVATION DIVISION. THE APPLICANT ﬁf
SEEKS AN ORDER AUTHORIZING THE OIL

CONSERVATION DIVISION TO RECOGNIZE AN OPERATOR.
OF RECORD FOR WELLS CURRENTLY OPERATED b
BY YESO ENERGY, INC., OGRID 221710 o

APPLICATION OF TARGA MIDSTREAM Case No. 14575
SERVICES LIMITED PARTNERSHIP AS OPERATOR :
FOR VERSADO GAS PROCESSORS, LLC FOR

APPROVAL TO INJECT ACID GAS INTO TARGA'S

EXISTING EUNICE GAS PLANT SALT WATER _
DISPOSAL (SWD) WELLS NO. 1, (API No. 30-025-21497),
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REPORTER 'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
COMMISSIONER HEARING

BEFORE: MARK E. FESMIRE, Chairman
JAMI BAILEY, Commissioner
WILLIAM C. OLSON, Commissioner

December 9, 2010
Santa Fe, New Mexico

This matter came on for hearing before the New
Mexico 0il Conservation Commission, MARK E. FESMIRE,
Chairman, on Thursday, December 9, 2010, at the New
Mexico Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources
Department, 1220 South St. Francis Drive, Room 102,
Santa Fe, New Mexico. .

REPORTED BY:Jeannine K. Sims, RPR, NM CCR #12
Paul Baca Court Reporters
500 Fourth Street, NW, Suite 105
Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102

APPEARANCES

FOR THE OIL CONSERVATION COMMISSION:

Ms. Gailil MacQuesten
ASSISTANT GENERAL COUNSEL
1220 S. St. Francis Drive
Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505

FOR THE APPLICANT, AGUA SUCIA:

Mr. James Bruce

ATTORNEY AT LAW

P.0O. Box 1056

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504

FOR ARMSTRONG ENERGY CORPORATION:

Mr. William F. Carr

HOLLAND & HART, LLP

P.O. Box 2208

Santa Fe, New Mexico 87504
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Let's go on the

record. Let the record reflect that this is the
Thursday, December 8th -- or December 9th, 2010 regularly
scheduled meeting of-the'New Mexico 0il Conservation
Division. Tﬁe'record.éhould reflect that all three
commissioners are present; Commissioner Bailey,
Commissioner Olson, Coﬁmissioner Fesmire.

The first item of business before the
Commission fhis morhingvis thé adoption of the minutes of
the November 4th, 2010 Commission meeting. Have the
Commissioners had a éhance'tb féview the‘meeting minutes?

COMMISS'IQNER BATLEY: Yes, I have and T move
we adopt them. » |
| | COMMISSIONER IOL.SON: Second that.

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: All those in favor
signify by sayihg Qayé,"fiLeﬁ the record reflect that.the
minuteé wefe énénymousiy'adoptea by the Commission,
signed by the Chairman( aﬁd conveyed to the Secretary for y
recording.

The'néxﬁ item béfdre the Commission is
Case No. 14411,,it's the De Novo épplication of Agua
Sucia LLC to reinstate Division Administratiye Order
SWD-559 for salﬁWater dispoéal well in Lea County, New
Mexico. Are the attorneys present?

MR. BRUCE: Yes, Mr. Chairman. James Bruce

FoOAT I Y

PR A— e
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1 on behalf of the applicant.

2 ' MR. CARR: If it please the Commission,

3 William Carr with the Santa Fe office of Holland and Hart
4 and I represent Armstrong Energy Corporation, who was

5 protesting-the application.

6 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I understand you have an
7 announcement for the record?

8 MR. BRUCE: Yeg, Mr. Chairman. Armstrong
9 Energy has agreed to withdraw its objection based upon

10 the further review of the bond log. As a result there's

11 no objection to this application; Yssterday Mr. Carr and
12 I.conferred on a proposed order Which we s—mailed to you
~13 and»to Commission sounSel andsMs. Davidson for YOur

14 feviéw and possible change if”necessary. All I would

15  request is that order be entsféd as sooﬁ‘as.possible..

16 : »CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay! Csmmissioner

17 ’ Bailey, do you have any questions about the order?
18 - COMMISSIONER BAILEY?“ No: I have reviewed
19 it and I move that we adopt_it; |

20  CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson, I

| 21 understand you had a question about it..

‘22_ | COMMISSIONER OLSON:V I had one question

23 about it. It's stating in the order that you're seeking
24 to reinstatement Administrative Order SWD 559, but it

25. doesn't really say in this, in the history why it needs

i‘
ecyrupp e

frepreesr
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1 to be reinstated.

2 MR. BRUCE: Mr. Chairman, when there arose a
3 casing problem with the well, the well was a -- ceased

4 | injection in January of 2008. And under Division rules

5 after it had ceased injection for more than a year the

6 order lapsed.

7 ‘ CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do we need to include

8 that in the order?

9 - ' COMMISSIONER OLSON: I just wonder if we

10 need to include that under the history.

11 ' MR. BRUCE: You can do that and e—mail

i2' anothefrcopy to Msf Davidson  and Commissioﬁ éounsél if
13 yoﬁ'sd‘desire; | |

14 | _. CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Why don't ybu do
15 that'and we'll after .- I'm sure we'll go through luﬁCh.

16. today,‘make sure you get a copy to Ms;‘Dévidson that‘

17 includes that in the findings or the history.

18 | ‘  - MR. BRUCE: I will do that this_morning.

19 ~ CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And we'll continue this
20 uﬁtil later in the day and act’on it ‘at that time.

21 MR. CARR: Mr. Chairman, I'd like to just

22 confirm that Armstrong Energy does withdraw its objection
23 to reinstatement of the applicaﬁion or reinstatement of
24 the..permit. This case has been before you for a couple

25 = of years now. The objection was initially filed when the

| PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 well was operated by a prior operator, now it's a new
2 operator. And as we move forward and you will recall
3 half of the case was presented to you a month ago. Since

4 that time we have reviewed the bond log, but more than

5 that we have looked at the entire well boring, how it‘is
6 completed with the liner cemented and the order provides
7 that there will be an MIT test to confirm its integrity.
8 .And at thisvpoint’in-time we believe it's appropfiate to

9 go ahead and reinstate that permit;

10 ' 'CHAIRMAN»FESMIRE: Thank you very muéhh' At
11 this time we'll g¢ ahead and continuevthis,cése until
12 latér‘in this meeting today in this ron.Ul

13 o - MR;'BRUCE: I will forwérd an;ordef.‘ Trm

14 sure you will be busy, but you will have it before you

15 break for lunch.

16 : CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank:you very much, sir.
17 The next case before the Commission is Case No. 12276,
18 it's the De Novo application of Burlington Resources 0il

19 and Gaé_Company foricdmpulsory pooling, Secticn'36;

20 Téwhship 27 Norﬁh} Range 8 West, in San Juan County. It
21‘ has a reléted case which is also before the Commission,
22 Caée No. 12277, the application of Burlington Resources
23 0il and Gas Company for compulsory pooling in Section 16,
24 Township 31 North, Range 11 West in San Juan'Cdunty. _I.

25 understand from the Secretary that the counsel in both of

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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these cases has requested that they be continued to the:
next regularlyischeduled commission meeting; is that -
correct?

MS. DAVIDSON{ That is correct.

.CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. We will at this-
time continue both No. 12276 and 12277 to the next B
regularly scheduled commission meeting. Which is --

MS. DAVIDSON:d January 13.

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: January i3th of 2011.
The next item before;the_CommissiOn is the appiioation_ofh

COG Operating, LLC for cancellation'ofban order }—”ofuan,f

Page 8

et sr—

operator's authority and termination of spacing units it;.‘)

Yeso Energy Dow "B" 28 Federal No. 1, Eddy County, New )

Mexico. This case because of the lack of time avallable'

"to the CommlsS1on'w1ll be contlnued to the January 13th,

2011 regularly. scheduled Comm1881on meetlng

The next case before the Comm1ss1on is Case-
No. 14547, the applicationsof the New Mexico 0il
Conservation Division seekingven order authorizing the -
0il Consgervation Division:to recognize an operator of
record for wells currently operated by Yeso Energy, Inc.
It's related to the prior case. This too will be
continued to .the January 11lth, 2011 commission meeting.
I'm sorry, Januarf 13th, 2011 meeting.

The last item before the Commission is Case -

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 No. 14575, the application of Targa Midstream Service

2 Limited Partnership as operator for Versado Gas

3 . Processors LLC for approval to inject acid gas into

4 Targa's exiéting-Eunice Gas Plant Salt Water'Dispbsal

5 Well No. 1 in Lea Coﬁnty,'New Mexico. Are the attdrheys- _
6 = present for that? |

7 - MR. SCOTT: Yés, sir.u'Wiliiam Scott of

‘-8 ~ Modrall, Sperllng, Roehl Harris & Sisk for the appllcant .
9;1tTarga Mldstream Serv1ces as operator for Versado Gas ‘

iO_ .Processors. | | |

|11 ; - MS. MaéQUESTEﬁ: Mr.;Chéirman;'Gail

.12,.;MédQﬁesten for tﬁe Oil ConserVatianDiviéion.

.ti3f3. B o CHAiRMAN-FEsMIRE: Okay;,"x guess we'll

14t_'proceed with Targa'S»case Mr. Scott there are at least

15 - Otwo people here I. thlnk that would llke to make a

O16Ot,comment, they_pr0v1ded written chments. Would that be

117 amenable to you after your case we'llihaVe them comment?O
18 o MR. SCOTT: That would be fine.
19 ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, are you

_26' Iprepared to begin?

vzi | ~ MR. SCQTT: Yes, we are.

22 CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Do you have any
23 witnesses? B

24 MR. SCOTT: I have two witnesses.

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Can you ask them to stand

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-465-8f70-326626329bbb




10

11

12

_1»3'
14
15
16
17

18..

19

20

21
22
23

24

25

e

. Scott and I represent Targa Midstream Limited. Partnership
-as the operator for Versado Gas Processors, LLC. Targa
operates gas gatherlng and process fa0111t1es in

’existing.Salt water disposal well for use as .a combined .

’injection through an open hole at an interval-from.4250

Page 10

i

and be sworn.
(Witnesses were sworn.)
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, do you have.an
Qpenihg?
| MR. SCOTT: I do.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Begin, sir..

MR. SCOTT: Good:morning. My name is Bill

'Southeastern New Mexico 1nclud1ng the Eunlce Gas Plant

_'located five miles south of Eunlce,,New Mex1co.

Targa had filed the present-application with |

the Commission seeking permission to recomplete an

acid gas and wastewater injection'well on that property.

The Well would be deepened and recompleted to provide

feet to 4950 feet within the San Andres.fsrmatibn.

The proposed'project:has a humber of safety
and_snvironmentalvbenéfits. HYdrogen sulfite gas would
be piped away from the plant .in Eunice, New Mexico five
miles south to be dispossd of underground. |

The pipeline that would transport that gas

would be a very low pressure, double walled pipeline

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 buried at least seven feet below ground surface. The
2 hydrogen sulfide would be injected into a geologically

3 sound zone where it would be contained safely. Targa has
4 submitted an H2S contingency plan.in conformance with

5 Commisslon Regulation ll. That is being reviewedvby

6 Commission staff at this point. That was submitted to

7 them in October of this year.

8 ' | - The project will allow-Targa to shut down a.
9 sulfur recover unit that currently is emitting
10 significant.volumes_of sulfur dioxide and carbon dioxide

11 intoﬁthe'atmosphere._ As a result of the injection .

12 permitted by’this well, that will reduce 12226 tons a

13 ‘year:of sulfur dloxide'and 200 tons per'year of-Carbon . gi
14 - dioxide emlssion to:thelatmosphere. | ?
15 | L Targa_isiunaertaking this project as part. of i
16 a broader agreement'with the NeW Mexico Environmentl :

17 . Department to address air qUality} Targa has=pursuantlto
18 that agreement with the Ehvironment Department an - N ?
19 obligation to beginjinjecting by Jannary'ls,‘2011.' If . _,f

20 they don't meet that deadline there are certain penalties

21 that kick in for their operations.

22 . We have met with OCD staff to discnss this
23 proposed injection well and have reviewed Mr. Jones{lo
24 prefiled testimony concerning the proposed injection.

25 Mr. Jones' central issue raised in his prefiled testimony

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f70-9a6626329bbb




Page 12

1 is the aerial éxtent of the.injection plume after an
2 extended period of time of injection.
3 ~ As we will demonstrate the modeling that's
4 been done concerning this project shows that after
5 maximum injection for a period of 30 years, the radius oﬁv.
6 the plume will be.no more than .2 miles from the site Qf
7 the injection and will not threaten any of the existing
8 wells that penetrate‘;he San Andres formation. |
9 | ‘Targa's -- the hodel that was’used_hasiéssoo; ¢
.10 percent-séfety factof.‘ Mr. Gutierfez, oné'of our>f] 
11 witneéses,vwill:goiinﬁo that in greater detail in his -
12 testimony. Targa's-b—108 application also proposes;é» 
13  program of confirmatordeata collection includihg
14 geoph?sical iogsp.sité_Wall cores collected durihg' L
15 drilling, step tests,_ﬁechénicai integrity teSts; énd
16 other testing and eﬁéluation‘that would beldone dufingfi
17 the process Ofbdrilling-and reéompleting the well.-.
18 . The information -- Targa propbéesbthat
19 information be provided to the Commission with a
20 _certification‘that'ali work fequired has been complétéd
21 and that Targa’would also within one year of that
22 certification provide a detailed analysis of that‘.
23 information and confirming the results of the earlier
24 modeling as to the scope ofbplume from the injection.

25 Targa yesterday learned of two comment

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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letters that were Submitted in connection with this
application, and I am prepared to address those comménts
in the course of Mr. Gutierrezfs testimony. We will call.
two witnesseé today. First Mr. Clark White whn is vice
president with Targa. Mr. White will provide background‘
information concerning Targa'sbproperties, the proposed
pipeline, Targa's experience operating other acid gas
injection wells including a wéll in .Texas and the
environmentai benefits toﬁbe.définedvfrom this pfojéct.
Onr second'witneSS will be'Aibertd Gutierrez_::“
who is the president}éf.GeolexyUInc.'_Mr; Gutiérfez is_at'ﬂf?
certified petroleumigéologiSt and hydrogeologist:who naS"
testified before_tne.QiGConserVatiQn Division |
frequently. He will testify about his preparation of'the_?f”
C-108, public notiéé nfvthat‘anpliCation, and the
technical éspects of the proposal including the
geblogical factdré and'Wéllvdesign féctors that Will'i
ensure the integrity.and.safety bf the pidposed prOject;
Targa requesﬁs that:thé Commission entérgani
order authorizing Targa to teét énd'recompiete the well
as specified in its C—iOS'applicétion and authorizing
injection of mixed acid gas and wastewater at a maximum

rate of 4,075 barrels per day either for a duration of 30

product has been injected into the formation.

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, do you

have anything?

MS. MACQUESTEN: We'd like to reserve our

- opening.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, why don't you

~call your first witness.

MR. SCOTT: I call Clark white.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. White, the record

should reflect you have been'previously testified in this

‘case. Why don't you sit up here. Thefway we do it.

CLARK WHITE,

"having been previously sworn testified as follows:

Tk * .*
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY_MR. SCOTT: | |

‘Q. Good mofning. Could you‘state your full
name, please sir. |

A. 'Clafk White.

0. | And Mr. White, Would you déscribe briefly
ybur educational background.. | |

A. I have a bachelor of ‘science degree from the
University of Texas in Austin in chemical engineering.

Q. And could you also describe your work
history for us, please.

A. I have 30 years of progressive experience in

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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. the natural gas processing industry both engineering

operation and management.

Q. And where are you currently employed°

A, Targa Resources in Houston, Texas

Q. And what is your position with Targa?

A. I'm the vice president and regional ﬁanager

for the Permian Basin, Southeast New Mexico and North

Texas.

Q. Okay. And in that positidn what are your

responsibilities?

A. I'm responsible for the engineering.and

- operations and commerc1al act1v1tles for those assets.

Q. Okay. And are you famlllar w1th the South

Eunice compressor station?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. And where is that facility located?
A. It's in Lea County, New Mexice,

-approximately five miles south of Eunice.

Q. And who owns the land'thatfthat piant"is_
situated on? o -

A. Versado Gas Processors, LLC, which is a
joint venture between Targa Resources who owns 63 percent

and Chevron who owns 37 pereent.

Q. And is Targa the operator of that facility?

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 Q. And are you familiar with the proposal to

2 recomplete an existing salt water disposal well on that

3 property?

4 A. Yes.

5 ' | 0. Who would be the operator of that wellé A
6 . | A. Targa Midstream Services. 5
7 Q. ~ Could you provide a little background for

8 ’the Comm1851on on how this proposal to recomplete that
9 well came about, please.

10., o A. Therbackground was basically we héVé béen?
11 looking aﬁ'ways to‘reduce ehissions ffom‘our pléﬁts,:anﬁs--é.v

12 we had an administrative order from the New MexicbeED}_

13 and we voluntarily proposed as a settlement to iﬁjédt‘ ':_1j~
14 acid gas and reduce emissions.
15 Q. And is there a deadline for you to have an

'16> acid gas injection well completed on the Sdutthunice; 

17 station?

18 A. Yes. It's July of 2010.

19 Q. 20 --

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Little late.

21 A! 11. i'm SOorry. |

22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. Scott, for

23 picking up on that.
24 Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) Does Targa operate other

25 wells in addition to the salt water disposal well in the

e ameemeed
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area?

A. Yes. We operate the existing salt water
disposal well now on the South Eunice site. We also
operate a salt water disposal site at the Eunice gas
plant closer to Eunice, New Mexico.

Q. And were there some LPG wells in the areé
that Targa operated?

A. Origiﬁally on the south Versado side there
was an LPG storage ﬁell. |

Q. And what_has happened with those weils?   ];

A. We  have plugged those wells. We appliéd for;.

‘the acid gas injection permit»éeveral years ago, and then

the NMOCC order, I believe it was R-12809, there Waé a' >
requirement to piugbthe LPG wells and we did.at tﬁat.
time. |

Q. And have those plugs been reviewed and -
approved by Division staff?

A, Yes.

Q. To your understanding, Mr. White, will the
recompleted salt water disposal well have a surface
casing set at a depth that will protect fresh
groundwater?

A. Yes. The surface casing will be to 300
feet, the deepest freéh watér formation is somewhere

around 180. So it's more than a hundred feet gset below
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the lowest fresh water inter&al.
Q. And will the weil be equipped with a back
pressure valve to maintain pressure 6f the waste stream?
A. Yes. 1It'll sit right before injection --
right before the wellhead.

Q. What do you understand the maximum injection

pressure that is proposed for the well?

A. 1292 pounds.

Q. And will the gas and water be maintained in

A Yes. When you compress acid gas to that

pressure it becomes a dense phase which is a liquid when

'you mix it with water and_inject it down the well bore.

Q. As of today.has Targa ever injected acid gas |

into the existing sa1t water dispdsal well?
A. No? we  have ﬁdt.
Q. Does Targa operate any other acid gas
injection wells?
| A. Yes. We dperate one in Crane County, Texas,
at our San Luis facility. |

Q. And how long have you operated that well?

A. We installed it in 2001.
Q. Are there any similarities between that well

and the well that's proposed for recomplétion here?

A. They will both be an open hole completion,

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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the well in Crane County's approximately 5,000 feet to .

5500 feet, it's sent to the Ellenberger formation. We're

going to go to a depth of 4250 to roughly 4900 in the San

Andres. Both wells will take basically up to 5000 cubic

feet of acid gas and about 1500 barrels of water a day.
Q. Okay. In the nine or so years that you have

been operatlng the well in Crane County, Texas have you

experlenced any problems or malfunctlons with that well?

AL "No, we haven't. 1It's just prlmarlly routine

; maintenance. We're scheduled and permltted through the
' state to routlnely do maintenance on the englne and we

‘_have routlnely had to do Bradenhead tests on the ca51ng.

We have never had any leaks or issues at all.
Q.  Okay. ‘What's the source of the acid gas and

the water that would be injected'infthe well that's the

'subject of thlS proceedlng°-

"A. It W1ll be a01d -gas that will be removed
from the gas stream for the gas going 1nto the Eunice gas
plant. We'have an aiming plant that removes the CO2 and
H2S from the nathrai gas. |

| Q. Ahd the Eunice plant is located in the town
of Eunice?

A. Just outside, just south of the town of
Eunice.

Q. And how would the gas and water be
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transported from the plant to the South Eunice facility?

A. There will be a three-inch pipeline for the
water and a 16—inch pipeline for the acid gas. The
16-inch would be incased in a 22 inch pipeline,'both
constructed out of polyethylene. |

Q. Let me back up a step. Have you acquired

all the necessary right-of-way and epprovals to construct

A. Yes. ‘We are.ready to.begin constructioﬁ!'
.Q.e Itfs‘a’"shovel ready" projecteas some might
Hsay?’ | ;
| A, Yes, it is. iEach right—of-way agreemeht |

also specifically spelled, you know, out the contents of
the pipeline'that it was not typically natural gas, it's

acid gas; So eachilandowner knew exactly what the

composition of the gas would be.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, may I ask a

MR. SCOTT: Yes.

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: You mentiened ﬁhe
composition of the double-wall piped. I know that is of
concern to some of the beople. It's polyethylene
double—walled pipevrated at this pressure at this
operating.pressure?

MR. WHITE: The operating pressure is 50
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pounds. It's more than rated for 50 pounds and we have
got -- it's SDR-17. And it's a 16-inch poly that's going
to be encased_inva 22-inch poly.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Will the annulus
be monitored?

MR. WHITE: Yes, it will. We'll have valves
on each end of the pipeiine that can be shut off
instantaneouSly And we'll have air flowing in the’.
annulus of the plpellne in the opp081te dlrectlon of
flow. ‘And there_w1ll be H2S sensors on the opposlte'end
of ﬁhe.pipeline to sense any H2S that might. leak frémithe
16-inch but be encaéeavin_the 22-inch. So it.Would-be
contihuously honitored;

”CHAIRMAN‘FESMIRE: ‘And it will be'buriea ;
seven foot deep? | |

MR. WHITE; I'11 make a correction_there.
The three~inch pipeline will be 36 inches from the
surface. So you“ll havevthrée feet and you Will‘havé ﬁhe
three;inch pipe;_thén_?bu'll go déwn another foot'aﬁd;
you'll have the zé—inchvpipe.below-that. So it was
erroneous‘when we said séven feet. 1It's actually ali
little bit far?hef>than four feet below the surface.

CHAIRMAN FESMiRE: Mr. Scott, continue. I

apologize.

0. (BY MR. SCOTT) And just to be clear, the
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 maintained and cleared and there will be a signs that

‘ where the sulfur is nbt completely a hundred percent

- emissions are roughly 1226 tons a year. In addition to

Page 22

£

et

water pipe will bé buried above the acid gas line?

A, Yes. We buried that above that so that if
for any reason someone dug, the first thing they would
hit would be the water line and be kind of a sacrificial
warning before if they -dig deeper they hit the 16-inch
pipe. |

Q. And would the right-of-way be labeled or
bear any sort of placards? |

A. Yes. The right-of-way obviously will be

say, "Danger. Poisan gas" posted every approximately
eﬁery 2001feet down the pipelinei‘

Q. You had meﬁtiohed;that you're undertakingb
this project in connection with an agreement with ﬁhe New
México Environment Department to address air quality-
issuea. Could'ydu describe»sbﬁe of the environmental
benefits of this proposed project. -

A. Well, we wouldn't be operating a sulfur
plant. And in a sulfur plant you have‘got an incinefator

for all the tail gas that goes through the sulfur plant

recovered so you burn that sulfur to 802. And those S02

that, the C0O2 goes straight through, it's removed from

the aiming plant, goes straight through the sulfur plant
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and straight up the incinerator. So that 200 tons a year
of C0O2 would be sequestrated inbthe reservoir instead of
being environmentally emitted. That's kind of the focus
going forward of all greenhouse gasvemissions is to
reduce that so it has some environmental beﬁefits.‘

Q.  All right. Has-Targa‘submitted a proposed

hydrdgen sulfide contingency plan to the 0il Conservation

Division?
A. ~Yes. It was submitted on October 8, 20100
Q. And was that based on a template or model

previded‘by the Division?
| A; Yes, it wae.
MR. SCOTT: No further questions.of this
witness. | | |
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE; Ms. MacQuééten.
*‘.* *

CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MS. MACQUESTEN:

Q. -Good morning, Mr. White.
A. Good morning.
Q. When did Targa enter into the settlement

agreement with the Environmental Department?
A. It was approximately December of last year.
December, January 2010.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: This is the witness.
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A. Are you talklng about the final completion

of the settlement or beginning negotiations?
Q. (BY MS. MacQUESTEN) Let's start with when

they began negotiations.

e

A. It was before that, I can't reoall the ekact
date.
Q. Hes it been seVeral years?
- A.  It's been -- yes.
Q. ~ Was the -- and that agreement Wasltnen

resolved by saying that Targa would obtain.approVal for
an ac1d gas injection well?

A. We proposed as a solutlon to the settlement

the Monnment plants.
.’Q;: Was therOCD included in thoseunegotiations?'
‘A.‘ No. It was with the New Mexico |
EnvironmentaliDivisiOn.
| Q. ' You say that Targa operates‘an acid gas
injection_well in'Crane County, Texas?'v
| A. That's correct. |
Q. Could you tell me how”many Wells.erevwithin:

the area of review for that acid gas injection plant?

Say the -- start with half a mile area of review.
A. I cannot recall. I can get you the
information. That's -- it's been since 2001 since we
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went before the Commission in Texas to apply for that.

Q. Can you give me a rough number?

A. There's jﬁSt like any oilfield, thérefs
wells all around the plant. I cannot give you a number_
without lOoking.at évmap but we have that'information.

Q. Do you.have any idea how many would
penetrate the injeétion zone?

_A.>  Thefe'slse?eralvthat go below-tﬂébiﬁjéctibh; o
zone, go through'it;'.i kﬁow that. The prodﬁctibp ih ' t
thatzaréa is generélly,deeper than 5,000:feet¢~b"v

Q.- | Do_yoﬁ"kn_ow how far away those well-»s" are '_

from the acid'gas wéll?_

A. I'canft:reéall_but‘here again,,I.één;géﬁ_'%
that informaﬁion_tﬁét yéu Wént;‘ It's beehvnine t6 ﬁéﬁi
years. ‘

Q. v Are:there any monitored wells,forvtﬁelqéid'.v;

gas injéctiQﬁ well iﬁ Crane County?

A. ' No. |

Q. : Could youvexplaiﬁ for us what héppens.té the.fi'
plume whén.it ehtéré the formation? It ehters in»é o
liguid staté; is that correct?

A. That's-correct.

Q.  .What héppens once it's in the formation?
Does it maintain itsvliquid state?

A. For the most part, yes, it'll stay in the
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There might be -- I mean, it's going to go

down in a liquid form and that is the reason we keep it

under pressure and that's why we mix it with water.

Because if there's any reduction in pressure those little .

bubbles of gas will come up and be absorbed into the

water. That's the whole theory behind mixing it.

Q.
A,
Q.
A.

Q.

So the key is to maintain the pressure --

Uh-huh.

-- to make sure the pressure --

‘The injéction, yeah.

-- is consistent. At what point will it

leave the liquid state? 

A.

when'You get dowh'really 1OW_preSSuré it will. But th.erev_.-'i

I'd have to lOOK“at the model. Obvidusiy,1

is a point at which it will start to come out of the

solution but then it's absorbed by the water but --

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Will the reservoir be

operated above that -- the pressure, that temperature at

which it comes out of the dense phage?

address that. I'm not a petroleum engineer in that sense y

MR. WHITE: I would really rather Alberto

what's going on in the reservoir. But

I would --

personally I believe it is going to operate above that

pressure.

column of fluid it's going to maintain that pressure on

Because you have got a static head of --

df102fc0-f551-4165-8f70-926626329bbb
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1 the well and down hole.

2 MS. MACQUESTEN: Okay. No more questions.

3 Thank you.

| 4 ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey?
.5 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: You.mentioned other
6 salt water disposal wells that are on the property.
7 : MR. WHITE: Yes. . |
8 | COMMISSIONER BAILEY: How many other salt

9 water disposal wells are there?
10 MR. WHTTE: On the Eunice South site where
111  the AGI is going, we are going to céhvert the existing
12 SWD Wéll to the injecpionbweil.. After that's done there =
13 will be no othef salt watei diéposaleéll on that | (
.14 _particular site.

15 , coMMiSSIONER BAiLEY:'HOkay; So only the oﬁe

16 SWD well at the South Eunice Plant.

17 MR. WHITE: That's correct.
| 18 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: How about the area of
19 review are there other SWD wells?

20 MR. WHITE: I can get -- I think -- I don't
21 believe there are any Qithin ﬁhat half-mile radius thatv
22 we're talking about.

23 : MR. SCOTT: If I may, Commissioner Bailey.
24 Mr. Gutierrez will be able to shed some light on_that.

25 He has complete information about the wells within the
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area and the nature of those wells.
COMMISSIONER BAILEY: i'll wait for him
then. Thank you.
| CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Olson.
COMMISSIONER OLSON: Yes. You were

mentioning the monitoring of the H2S on the double-wall

plpe Can you explain that again. You're saying -- were i

you saying that the detection is at the beglnnlng and

ends of the pipe; is - that correct?

MR. WHITE: ©No, be it wili'be en one - end
because we're injecting air on one end in the annulus
between the 16- and 22-inch pipe biowing the aif'tewérds
the Eunice plant and there will he_sensors.therei and so
it picks up a leak the air will carry the H2S te the
point'where the sensor is. |

COMMISSIONER OLSON: So the flowing air in
-the.-—

MR. WHITE: Annulus.

COMMISSIONER OLSON: e énnulﬁs at that“
point. That's all I have.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Continuing along those
lines, what's going to be the relative pressure
differential acroes'the 16-inch pipe wall? You said you
wiil have air at a certain pressure goihg upstream and

that's acid gas and water mix -- or acid gas --

0 e o e e ot A Y TPt g R e T
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MR. WHITE: Acid gas. The acid gas will

leave the Eunice plant at 50 pounds. It should be down
at the south plant around 40 pounds. The air pressure on
the other side is minimal, just enough pressure to flow
the gas or the air through the annulus back to the Eunice
plant site.

_CHAiRMAN FESMIRE: Depending on the size of .
the faiiure, céuldn't-failure in the 50 to 45 poﬁnd acid
gas-line,overwhélm the air pressure and fiqw_dowhstréémi
With respect to the_pipelihe, with respecﬁjﬁo’the'acid s
gas flow? | | |

'MR. WHITE: It could flow eifher~directibn;
But it will flow —-‘1f you -have got air comlng thls way |
1t'll flow with the air.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So is the monitor’a_:
pressﬁre monitor or an H2S monitor? |

MR. WHITE: It's an H2s monitor. It'll
detect HZS‘composition.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So if you have a rupture

be able to detect that until H2S gets to the upstream

detector.
MR. WHITE: There will be pressure monitors
too, but we're -- primarily with the airflow that you're

describing, what we're trying to find is like a pinhole

Aot R o ST
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"leak or a small leak.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. You're not

designing for a major rupture; that's not a fear in-

your -- you're looking for the minimal.

MR. WHITE: We're designing for minute 1eaké.
that we can pick up before‘a major rupture with the aif‘
flow --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. The majof rupture
you'd be.able to pick up on thé pressure -- | )

_bMR,.WHITE: On the pressure --
CHAIRMAN‘FESMIRE: -- on the system5
MR.»WHITEE» Yeah. |

“CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I have no fﬁrtherﬁ
quéstions. I'm sorry.

COMMISSIONER OLSON:‘ Follow up on that? 'so.
if’you do have a major rupture, does that just vent é#_;.”
thé far end of the pipe? | .

MR. WHITE: Yes. If there's a rupture of
the 16-inch it would flowkthrough the annulus énd as‘soon'
as that's'picked_up valves would be shut and ﬁhe.gas ,‘
would be released to a flare environment. Sé basicéliy
you have got two valves on each end of the pipeline aﬁdv
then you!&e got'-— and if we sense either a présSure_Or

H2S those valves will close; the entire line will be'

vented to a flare and burﬁed.
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The entire line

MR. WHITE: Yes. Everything would be --

will go to the flare environment.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: It'll take the annulus to
‘burn it, won't it? It'll take an

annulus to burn the H2S, won't it?

MR. WHITE: No. The

~and it will flow to the top of the flare and we'll have a N
pilot that would ignite that and burn it off.
 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Is H2S flammable? It's a

Véry basic question and I apologize.

MR. WHITE: Yes, H2S

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Burn without an oxygen -

source.

MR. WHITE: Yes. I mean, .evening has to
have oxygen to burn.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Right.

MR. WHITE: But yes,

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But with the oxygen --

MR. WHITE: -- and BTU and it will burn by

air supply from the

H2S is under pressure

is flammable.

‘it has --

itself. But there's also pilot gas to assist in the

complete destruction of the S02 from H2S. ' y

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, do you have

any redirect on that?
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MR. SCOTT: No.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much,
Mr. White. | |

MR. WHITE: Okay.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Your next witness, sir?

MR. SCOTT: Alberto Gutierrez.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Gutierrez, the recérd
should reflect that you have been previously sworn in
this case; is that correct? |

MR. GUTIERREZ: Yes, sir.

MR. SCOTT: Mr. Chairman, Mr. Gutierrez has

'a P6werPoint»pfesentation to assist with his tésﬁimoﬁy.;
'MR. GUTIERREZ: Just take me a second to set
it»up. :
MR. SCOTT: May we have avminute'to set up

"his computer?

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may. Why don't we go

ahead ahd take about a ten-minute break and reconvene at

a quarter till.

(Break.)

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Go_back on the record.
The record should show that is a continuation of Cause
No. -- anybody have the cause number? Cause No. 14575,
the:record should also reflect that all three

Commissioners are present. And I believe we are about to
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1 start with the direct testimony of Mr. Gutierrez by .

2 Mr. Scott. Mr. Scott, are you prepared?

3 _ _ MR. SCOTT: I am.
4 . ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Let's begin.
5 o . ALBERTO A. GUTIERREZ,

6 having'been previouély sworn testified as follows:
7 . _'* * ok
8 |  DIRECT EXAMINATION

9 BY MR. SCOTT:

10 o Q.  Good morning, Mr. Gutierrez.

11 , A.'.'Goed morning.

12 . 0. Would you state your full name, please{

13e S AL MY'name is‘Alberto‘A{'Gutierer.

14 ..-»,-,_Q.. .And_sir, could youedescribe youf educetional

.15 baekgrbund-for ﬁs,eplease.

is_lv R e A,‘g.Yee.“ I have a bachelor's degree in

.:17 e»geomorphology from the University of Maryland, 1977.'-And
18 I have a mas;er“s degree from UNM in geology, 1980.

i9 e » Q..‘ And could you please describevyour.work

26 baCkground‘fOr us. |

21 , A. Yes. I've been in the envirenmental geology
22 and petroleum geology field since about 1975. Started |
23 out working for the U.S. Geological Survey. And

24  following that I worked with Radion Corporation fof a

25 number of years, they are a environmental consulting
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1 firm, and also subsequent to that I worked for a
2 petroléum exploration'company in southeast New Mexico,

3 LHR Petroleum. And then in 1983 I started a consulting

4 firm, environmental consulting firm calied Geoscience

5 Consultaﬁts Limited, which I ran until I sold it in i994.
6 And that firm had about_600'employees roughly when we

7 sold the compény. And subsequent to that I have -- I

8 started Geolex in 1996 aﬁd.have'been operating théﬁl.

9 dompény‘éince that ti@é dbing primarily environmentél-and

10 'petroleum geo10gyf  T o e , |

11 0.  And do you hold any professional
12 designations or certifications? :
13 , ' A. Yes. "i'm'a registered professional ;

14 geologist with AIPG and then I'm registered in

15 approximately 20 states including basically all the

16 states around New Mexico. New Mexico doesn't have a
.17 registration program, so
18 Q. . All right. And have you served as an expert

19 witness.befofe?

20 A. Ivhéve.én:ﬁumerous occasions in both state
21 and federal courts and many times in front of the>Oil'

22 Conservation Di?isiOn.

23 Q. And have‘you authored any papers in the area
24 of geology or'geohydrology?

25 _ A. I have. I have a number of publications in

e S e O T TV ST A U AT R ST vy
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A, Yes.
Q. - How mahy such wells have you been in§§lved
in? | |
A.  six.
Q. And Qheré’aré»thQse wells located?
A }Leé'Céunty, Eday Cdunﬁy, and San Juan.
v‘County._ | | | : | |

Page 35 E

the area of environmental geology and remediation, as
well as some publications in acid gas injection and
design and operation of écid gas injection models.

Q. And wiﬁh'reépect to acid gas injection wells
héve ybu been invleed in‘the permitting or abproval of

those wells previously?

Q. ~All right.
A. In terms of ones in New Mexico.

Q. And the:ones outside of New Mexico, where

are thdse»lééaﬁed?
A. in'Téxaé?.iﬁ Midland area, Goldsmith area.
Q. © All right. And are you familiar with the
proposal to recémpiete phe Targa salt water disposal well
whiéh is the‘subjegt of this_case?

A, Yes, I am.

Q. And how is it that you're familiar with
that?
A. We were retained by Targa to evaluate
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-gas reservoir in the viecinity of the Eunice plant, both

preparation of the C-108 application in this case?

generally what the propésal:provides.

~operation of a combined acid gas injection and wastewater:
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originally the potential for a safe and appropriate acid

the Middle Eunice Plant and South Eunice Plant.

Q. And did you have an involvement in
A. Yes. We prepared it. I supervised the
preparation of it and/or prepared it myself.

Q. ‘ And could you'just-describe_for us just verY'

A. Sure. Ba81cally the proposal prov1des for

the recompletlon of an ex1st1ng salt water dlsposal well
to both . deepen the well and to recomplete the well in a

construction mechanlsm that is consistent with the

" injection well. .

Q.. ‘Ali,right. 'Now,.yQu'indicéted that ybd were . |I-

involved in the p:eparation of the C-108 application
_here. Did you handle the mailing of notices to affected

~ landowners and operators?

A. We did.> We retained_a land -- landman or
land services firm in Roswell that did the tape-offs for
us and identified all of the operators, lessees, and

surface owners, as well as additional parties that the

:

Division requested be notified. And based on that

evaluation we developed a list of parties that had to be
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notified and provided notice to those parties.

Q. All right. And is‘that-list of individuals
contained in Appendix D to the C-108 application?

A. It is.

Q. Was there also a map in there reflecting

- surface ownership within the area?

A, Yes, there is.
Q. All right.: May i approach_the witness?
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, sir.
Q. ~ (BY MR. SCO&T)_ Hénd you'what.I'vefmérked‘és'
Exhibit 1, Mr;‘Gutierrez, and ask you’if:YOﬁ‘recoghize

that set of documents.

A. Yes.
Q. And what is that?
A. >>It is a stack of copies of the individual

notice letters that were sent to the operators, surface

owners, state and federal:agencies'requested by the 0il
Conservation Division as well as municipality of Eunice

which was another request, as well as residents within

the one-mile area of review. -

Q. And were thosé mailéd.certified mail, return
receipt requested? |

A, They were. Ahd the receipts for that, for

the original mailings are included here, the original
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Q. Let me show you what is identified as
Exhibit 2. ‘Do you recognize Exhibit 2°?

A. Yes. These are the so-called green eards,
not -- different kind of green card, but the'certified

mail return receipt cards that we received that indicated

"that the people who were noticed signed for their.

notices.

Q.  All right. And did you receive a return:

' receipt card from ‘everyone that you mailed'notice.to?

A.  We recelved one from every 51ngle surface

owner, from the mun1c1pa11t1es, and from the state and

e_federal agehcies and from all the operatOrs.and_leSSees

withlthe eXception of one that we haven't gotten'back'yet

from Anadarko;
Q. All right.

" MR. SCOTT: I would move the admission of

Exhibits 1 and 2.

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Any objection?
MS. MACQUESTEN: No objection.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Exhibits 1 and 2 will be

- ‘admitted. Please make sure that the court_reporter gets

the exhibits.
Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) .Mr. Gutierrez, have you.
analyzed the proposed recompletion and injection program

that's at issue here for compliance with OCD standards

e T S R
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and requirements?

A. Yes, we have.

Q. All right.

A. In fact, we worked with Targa to develop-thé
design and the procedures associated with the
recompletion of the well.

Q...vAll right. And I understand, sir,.Y6u have

prepared a PowerPoint presentation to assist in your

description of that process?

A. "Yes.

Q | Is that wﬁat is on the screen éurreﬁﬁiy? = ﬁ
A, - Yes. | | ?
Q fAll_right{_

MR. SCOTT: Mr.‘Hearing officer, I'hayéf_
identified as Exhibit 3 a printed copy of that PowerPoint'_g
presentation which i'would.like-to offer intO’evidence_aS'

Exhibit 3.

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten?

MS. MACQUESTEN: I haven't had a chancé to
review the entire PowerPoint, hasn't been preéentea yet.
I thought we.already had an Exhibit 3. L

| MR. SCOTT: This is just.an updated version
to address some of the comments. |

MS;VMacQUESTEN: Okay. Still, COuld we wait |

until it's presented so I know what I'm --

PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.

2 MS. MACQUESTEN: -- responding to?

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We'll defer until later
4 the admission of Exhibit-ﬁ. Please make sure that

5 Ms. MacQuesten has thé updated version.

6 MS. MACQUESTEN: I do. Thank you.

7 Q. (BY MR. SCOT_T). All right. Mr. Gutierrez, |
'_8" before you begin to go'through your presentation;'c¢uld'

9 you explain how it was that the South Eunice site was 

10 . selected as the site for this well.

11 | A. Sure. 'We>evalﬁated in general thé geology ; ﬂ§
12 in the area of‘both:the Middle Eunice Plant as itﬁé “M |

13 called, that's the plant that is immediately south‘bfitﬂé_;i
14_ town of Eunide,uas well as the South Eunice.Plant'Which."ﬂ
15 is the piant that you see‘actualiy_on this slidé'here;,f

16 which is.where the.proposed:recompléted SWD wellvisj 

- 17 'located. | | |

 18 ' - And for a.véfiety of reasons, the south

19 plant was a more preferable location primarily because of_
20 the -- two things. vOne,.the prokimity §f the Middié 5
21 Eunice Plant to the'town of Eunice, and at the sputh

22 plant which is.wheré all of the compression for the aéid
23 gas will be housed, is significantly farther away from
24 the population center of Eunice. And also furthermore,

25 there were quite a larger number of wells immediately in
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vicinity of the Middle Eunice Plant that penetrated ‘

proposed injection zone.

Q. And did you discuss the relative merits of
locations with OCD staff in seleéting the location
the well?.

A. Yes, we did. Actually as far back as the

original C-108 that was prepared: for this acid gas

injection project.

the

indication that the farthérxaway from the population

center would be a better location.

second page of your,PoWerPoint presentationjfor us

Q. = And did staff indicate a preference as to
location for this well?

A. Yes. I mean, I think there's a clear

Q. All right. Now, if you could turn to the

please, and generally describe the_proposal.that we}re

asking for and the analysis that-you_have'undertaken.

his

A. Sure. Basically'as Mr. White laid out in

testimony, Targa iS'requesting the authority to

inject a total of 4075 barrels per day of cdmbined acid

gas

and wastewater at a maximum pressure of approximately

1300 or 1292 pounds is what the actual calculation is.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Gutierrez, the 1300

pounds occurs at the outlet of the compressor a short

distance from the wellhead, right?

o T R A A ST et A O AR ION O RAP PO TSI
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1 MR. GUTIERREZ: That is correct.
2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.

3 A. And for a duration -- one of the issues that
4 was raised by the Di&ision was a concern over the aerial
5 extent of the plume, the acid gas and wastewater
6 injection area that would be affected in fhe feservoir.
7 And as a conseguence to that we proposed é limitation of

'8 30 years or 44.65 million barrels of fluid to be

9 injected; whichever is greater.
10 : That request we f—_youvknow, aftérz.
11  discussions with OCD staff and.afterfloQkingy-f-going :‘

12  back and looking at the model that we used for;predicfing'

13  the .area of the reservoir that would'be affécted, we feel
14  confident that that request for a 30-year permit or
15 maximum volume of 44.65 million barrels is a safe amount

16 to inject given even'the,uncértaintieS'in thé'plué médei
17 fbr the -- for the aérial ektent'df the resé£§bif‘ o
18 affected.ﬁ | | |

19 ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You said plug model. 1In .
20 ,essénce, what you'ré ﬁelling ﬁs here ié_thaﬁ your model |
21 sﬁows at a perfect displacement .2 miie radiﬁé of the

22 plume; is that correct? :

23 MR. GUTIERREZ: Over 30 years at the maximum
24 injection rate. Yes, sir. |

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And that is a perfect
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1 displacement, right?

2 MR. GUTIERREZ: That is correct.

3 .CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So what_you're sayingiis
4 .the nearest San‘Andrés penetration is a mile away. |

5 MR. GUTIERREZ: No, I'm not saying that;

6 The nearest San Andres penetration is more like about
7 just outside a half mile away .
8 ’ ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Where do'yOu-get the 500

9 percent?

10 MR. GUTIERREZ: We'll go through that. But
11 basically it is not a linear expansion. - AS'you -- as you
12 inject additional volume like for examplé:to‘g§vfrom 5—

13 from .2 miles to..4‘mi1es,‘you actuallyvhave £o gb up 460_.
14 percent in térms of the volume injected,v Sd_the 500 -

15 percent safety marginvis_in»terms of»-— |

16 » | CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: It's not 1inear,”it'é |

17 volume.

18 ' MR. GUTIERREZ: That's correct.
19 ' " CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.
20 0. (BY MR: SCOTT) . All right. Turning to the

21 next slide, Mr. Gutierrez, could you give us‘an 0verview
22 of your presentatidn, please. |

23 A. Yes.  As -- the goal of the presentatién 

24 today is to go through the C-108 in detail and to‘be able

25 to demonstrate to the Commission the environmental
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1 benefits and the overall safety features associated with
"2 this AGI SWD project at the South Eunice Plant. As part
3 of that I will describe the site geology and the AGIT

4 system design and operating constraints on that system.
5  And I will summarize all of the components ef the‘CF108
6 as Chairman Fesmiretand the>OCD'staff are well aware,

7 over the last five or six years of WOrking on‘these'AGI:
8 applications with the Division, We have refinedvand |

9 continually imprQVed the'typeaof informatiohﬂthathhas toi‘”f‘.
10 be submitted to‘evaluateithese since the State‘deesn't“
111 have specific regulatiohs or rules about'how.theserweiis‘
12 are to be permitted}. | |

13 : And so the C 108 reflects that experience
“14 over that perlod ofvtime; And then lastly but not least
15 I want to address the spe01fic concerns and

16 recommendations that_the OCD raised in their prehearinge~"ﬂ"

17 statement and also;didnft eVen:make»it into the

18 PowerPoint-here; bﬁt.the eomments and cencerns thatfwere
19 eXpressed that we_received yestefday from two adjacent
20 landowners. _

21 Q. Ali right.. So if you could take us threﬁgh

22 the key elements of the C5108;
23 A. Sure. As Mr. White testified earlier, the

24 AGI project has a substantial environmental benefit

25 because of the reduction of greenhouse gas emissions from
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- Clearly we have histdry in terms of the well having
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the current procéss of removal of sulfur in -- at the
Middle Eunice Plant, as Well as it eliminates the SO02
emissions from the incomplete removal of sulfur from the
SRU in the amounts that Mr. White testified to earlier.

So those gases which in effect<came out of
the ground with the field'gas are going to bé _ ?
concentrated and put back into the ground. The nearby
oil and gas wells, water wells, and surface water are
going to be protected by'thé weli design and the‘geblogic._f
factors that influenée'thé potential for the injécted
fluid to migrate from the injectidn zone'and we'll
démonstrate that and I feei we héfe demonstrated ﬁhétvin~“
our preparation of_the C7108.‘ |

And then lastly, as I mentioned, the wells

piotedted by this SOO,percent‘safety factor.based,bn the’
volume and the likelihood that that volume would expand ;
to potentially impact those wells.

In addition, we're going to address the

" adequacy of the San Andres as an injection reservoir.

received salt water over quite a number of years and its
injection capability. Now, clearly that's in an upper
zone of the well only part of which will be being uéed in’

the new recompletion, but we'll go‘through that.
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But furthermore and equally important, we
put into operation a AGI SWD well at the Jal No. 3

Southern Union Plant down near Jal also in the San Andres

formation, a very similar kind of well to the one that's

being proposed here.
It's -- the only difference being that it is

not an open hole completion, it's a cased hole-

completion. But we will also go through the C-108 and

make sure that the Commissioners understahd'what?

information has been submitted that is sufficient for the'

Cohmissien to be able to approve the inetallatioﬁ Qf the-
well.

One of the issues that came up is thatvin
the -- as we were going through.this proeess; is that es
the C-115 records for the existing SWD- well were belng .

rev1ewed 1t was found that those records were not

inadequate because instead of submitting”those volumes in

‘barrels, those volumes have been submitted in gallons in

those’C—liS records, and the Division requested that
Targa go back and correct those records and those have
been corrected and submitted and eccepted by the Division
in the C-115 process.

| Furthermore, an H2S contingeney plan has

been submitted and is being reviewed by the Division.

-

R R o R S A P AN TP
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injection zone.

water disposal well.

.unfortunately I don't have a pointer, but . the yeilow blob
in the top right—hand corner of the map'is‘the_toWn_of
”Eunicevand the Middle Eunice Plant is located just at‘the.

~is 1ocated and where this proposed well is located

from the Middle Eunice Plant down to the_South Eunice

Page 47

And the adjacent‘operators support the project and as we %
mentioned, all of the surface owners within the area of |
reView have received proper notice.

Q. All right. And.if you could take us now
through‘the location of the well, the area of interest

wells in that area,.and the geology of the proposed

A. ' Sure. As part of the C-108 process, clearly =
We in concert with the Division we established“an'area‘of
review of one mile for the well Which is,eSSentially

double the radius of the normal area of review for a salt .

" This is just a location map, I don't --

south,marginﬂof‘that yellow‘blob.' Down five miles south

where'the red dot is) is where the South Eunice gas'planto
So the pipeline will follow that dlstance'

Plant‘where_fhe acid gas compression willvtake place as
well as the mixing prior to injection.
Just to quickly review for the

Commissioners, what is it that we're looking for in a
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reservoir for CO2 and acid gas sequestratioh. One, it's
a geologic seal ‘that permanently will contain that gas.
So we want the cép rock that will allow that gas to
remain in thevseqﬁestered'formation.: We want to ¢1early
isolate not only the acid gas but any wastewater or salt
produced water froﬁ any fresh groundwater."And-that ié
being taken-care bf by the routine design of_tﬁe well
itSelfjahd.we'll gb_into'detail in that ih_just_a-momenti
 .:-We'¢1eériy‘cannot have én‘effeét oﬁ"
correlative;figﬁfs’o%iexisting or potential brodﬁ¢tion,
And.So_wé afe wan£ing.to_do‘a injectioh projedt.that ié

not in a zohe that is cﬁrrently being used for -

are routinely done;in.zones that are used for production,

they are>just'éailed CO2 floods.

;Andlas;a:matter of fact,’e&en acid‘§as_‘v
flooding-for a'séCénd or>tertiary redovefy is béing_déne‘
iﬁ Caﬁadé~rigﬁt nqw, bu£_typicallvae try to a&oia'thatT
kind ofja situation:ana avoid a -- injecting’inﬁé.aﬁ
existing resefvoif. We want a reservoir that is
latérally extenéi&e, is_permeable and has good pQr6sity
because‘basically-ydu néed space to put the gés éway;
And lastly but-noﬁ least, we want a compatible kind of
fluid chemistfy in.that-reservoir zone.

So let's take a quick look at what the
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summary of key points of the geologic evaluation that we
did. We identified the background regional geologic data
that was presented in Section 4 of the C-108. I don't
know if we -- I guess we don't really have that as an
eihibit, but it has been submitted to the -- both the
Division aﬁd to the Commiséion.

The -- we identified and located and
evaluated all df the wellé}within the one-mile area of
review and both dil and gas wells plugged and active,'aS'
well as water we11$ within that area of review.

-We;aid a aetailed evaluation of the
stratigraphy'in‘thétareé'to confirm it meets the basic
geologic criterié-thét I léid‘out earlier. That»has'béén
completed and istincluded in.Sectioh 4 of thevC—108'aﬁd'
in Figures 5 thrOUgh:lotbf the C—108. We constructéd..
cross—sectionsjwithfavailable‘légs and looked at the
porosity of'thé préposéd éone and the wells in the nearbyt
area. We rev1ewed the SWD well the way it's currently
constructed and what would have to be done in order to
make it approprlate for AGI SWD dlsposal

There was -- Targa prepared an H2S
contingency plan and_submitted it to OCD for approval.
And then just as the -- just-as a point of history for

the Commission, the OCD previously had approved this

project originally as a separate acid gas injection well,
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1 under order R-12809 and 809A and then it was modified to

2 be a recompletion of this AGI SWD in Order 1161.

3 ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 12809, wasn't that a

4 different zone?

5 MR. GUTIERREZ: No. It was the same San

6 Andres zone, it just indluded a larger vertical section

.7. of the San Andres.

. | CHAIRMAN.FESMIRE: So the original

9 application was greater than the 5ne that you are

_‘10:, applying“forbnow.

fil__  ‘ MR.,GUTIER#EZ: Théf's’correct. “And that's
‘ 12 .dfiven) Chairman’Feémiré; by the]fact that the existing
113 _-weli ié drilled into the}ﬁopibf the San Andres and in

 14 ordér to complete it propefly we're going to sleeve it‘

_'15_'”and'run new casing inside of'that.' And so the very upper

'_16 portion of that zone iS'going to be cemented off.

17 'CHAIRMAN FESMIRE:. Okay.

18 _:" 'A. Okay. So let's take a quick look first at

“19 thevidéntification and ¢haracterization of Qells-andlﬁhe
 20 'stratigraphy in ﬁhe aféa. ‘There ére a lot of producing

21 wells in the area of review. Most of those wells are

22 located in the Langlie Mattix unit which overlies the San
23 Andres.

24 We used the’Targé SWD well in an injectivity

25 evaluation to just get a sense of locally whether the San
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1 Andres is capable of taking the kind of fluid that we

2 anticipate. We based on the stratographic analysis and

3 that evaluation of the existing well and our previous AGI
-4 experience, we feel the San Ahdrestahd in fact it's been
5 demonstrated thatvthe'San Andres is an excellent acid gas
6 and wastewater resexrvoir. The stratographic analysis

7  resulted in this recommended recompletion of the SWD well
8bv rather than drilling a whole new'well and plugging the

9 existing SWD well, which was the original -~ which is

10 what_Was included in the originaI:R—128Q9 order.

'all o - . The -- wevealculated.frOm the data from the
'_12t e#isting weil and then*similar data.thatewe‘got'from the-
‘i3t':operatlon of the Suggs well, which we’permitted and

E14, ~completed for Suggs, that thlS well w1ll be able to take
'iSt-’this flaid under the max1mum'perm1tted pressure of 1292

:16 PSI and- that's the pressure that we calculated based

17 on -- using the NMOCD formula for what is a maximum
:‘18*"injection pressure without having to do a separate
19 step—rate test. But we're quite comfbrtable that we will

20 be able to put the amount of gas away that we're looking
21 at with that pressure.

22 ‘ - Q. (BY MR. SCOTT). Let‘me'stop you there for

N S e e S S

23 one second, Mr. Gutierrez. Earlier Commissioner Fesmire
24 had raised a question about whether the fluid once it was

25 injected into the reservoir would be maintained at the
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pressure to keep everything in a liquid phase. Could you
respond to that question?
A. Absolutely. As a matter of fact, in our

C-108 application, in Appendix A, there are -- which is

_the>appendix that deals with the San Andres formation

fluid and analysis of injection fluids, there on the
second page of that appendix there's a phase envelope

diagram that shows what the-critical_point_is, which is

_essentially 1,101 PSI at 96 degrees Farenheit.

So .in other words, at any pressure above

‘that -- at that temperature or at a slightly higher'

' pressureiat a higher temperature) that gas will stay in a

liquid phase. And then if I can dlrect the

Commissioners' attentlon to Table l Wthh is the flrst

table'in the'C—108,‘is a printout of the software that we

used to model what happens to the acid.gas as it is.

injected into the reservoir under equilibrium conditions.

And what you can see is that at equilibrium conditions at.
‘that reservoir we have a pressure of 2439 pounds

reservoirvpressure} 'And so that willvcerteinly keep that

gas in its liquid phase.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, this might be

~a good place to ask a question.

MR. SCOTT: Sure.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Gutierrez, your 500
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perfect volumetric safety factor, that includes basically
is a 20 percenﬁ displacement efficiency, right?
| MR. GUTIERREZ: That's correct. ' It includes
the displacement efficiency based on the avefage porosity
of the formation. |
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Have you aone any
work on the mobility ratio of the in situ fluids whichnI

assume are produced water or natural water and the

injectate, thevdense'phase gas liquid mixture that’you're' i

going to be injecting at reservoir pressure and

temperature? Do we know that what that mobility fatio is

going to look like?

MR. GUTIERREZ: We don't reailyQ Wefhave,

not done that w¢rk because we really don't have I think = -

the data to be able to:do that without doiﬁg.somé'?

“injection testing'which we are proposing to_do'as partvcf<'

the recompiétioﬁ.of thevwell. |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: okay. So you'wiil'bé 
able to.do énoQgh pféssure testing that.essentially you.
will be‘able to:at‘ieast back‘ca1culate a mobiliﬁ?-rétio;
make sure YOur_mobility ratio wouldn't give you a 20
percent or worse or so, I'm talking about eﬁhanced
recovery heré, less than 20 percent --

MR. GUTIERREZ: Displacement.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: -- displacement
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of wells within that area. However, the majority of S
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. lower number of wells and.they are located primarily in _-uH

18

22

Pagé 54 |

efficiency.

MR. GUTIERREZ: Yes, sir.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Go ahead, Mr. White
[sic], I apologize.

Q.  (BY MR. SCOTT) Go ahead, please.

A. Let's take a quick look. You can see this-
is a map that shows the proposed -- the location of the

proposed AGI SWD. And two circles on the map; The first

circle being the half-mile radius, the second circle .

those wells are'Laﬁglie Mattix wells which are abee-thé? “f'

injection zone, those are the wells shown in.greeh,  |
And ﬁheﬁ.if-we move to this next map yoﬁﬂéah ,

see this is the map that shows the wells that actUallYf ff“f

penetrate the inje¢tionf20ne, There's ausignificaﬁtlyf’,

the northeast direction away from the proposed Versado» ~
well. In féct, thg=th ¢losest we1ls that penetrate the
formation, the injection forﬁati§n, are shoﬁn in the. |
upper right, these two blue'wellé) One of them we héVé
our cross-section_drawn through, but they are wells thét
are Wantz and Abo»prdducérsvand they are sitting.
essentially right at the haif mile line.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Are they cased and
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cemented through the San Andres? : :

MR. GUTIERREZ: They are. Those two in
particular. There are some wells that are further
outside of that which were pointed.out by Mr. Jones iﬁ
his prehearing statemeﬁt which we'll address in a little
bit that are poorly cemented‘Qr not cemented through the

San Andres because there's a thief zone really as

“Mr. Jones has referred to it, but basically a zone where
" you have a high chance of haVing,loSt circulation in the

base of the San Andres and at ‘the top of the Glorieta. .

But that’zone'lies'about.lso feet above the

-bottom of our proposed injection zone. So we think we

have got some additionaivsafety’beyond just the lateral
extent issués‘vertically in that Way. And that was in
fact one of Mr. Jones'.recommendatioﬁs was to stay at
least a hundred feet above_that»pdtential_thief zone .

This map also showénif‘ybu will see from A .

‘to A prime, the next slide is going to show a

cross-section a schematié_croés—section of the wells.that
penetrate thé San Andres acfoss ﬁhat crosé—section lihe
and our proposed recbmpletion.

The Targa weil is.shown there in the San
Andres as you can see, it curfently extends to about 4450
feet in the open hole in the San Andres. I mean, it is

cased through to the top of the San Andres but then it's
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got from about 4 -- trying té remember the exact open.

hole now.

But it's basically from-abdut 4100 feet to

about 4400 feet in the San Andres open hole now.

And what is proposedvis,that we will deepen

that well to 4950 feet and use the injection interval

from 4250 to 4950 feet,

as an injection zone.

that 700 feet of the San Andres

And as you can-see, the base of

that is going to be located above the -- that’thief zOne

Andres.

that and you will see thlS in our next ——'well

or that zone -of concern that is at the base of the San

Furthermore, One-thing-I will mention is'

‘not in

thlS flgure_but the next one, that rlght in thlS area

where the --

not the Santa Rita 2 well,

that thief zone lles, that's the area where

but some of thesegfurther out

- wells have had‘some problems in‘cementingfthe San Andres.

But one of,the'things that you will see as I

mentioned in another slide that I'veegot»coming up is

pretty effective

significant drop

formation.

and we have done

_available'data from the wells that penetrated the_San

.that -the bottom part of the San Andres‘here is also a

barrier to flow because'it has a very

in porosity at the basal portion of the

of the other things that we iooked at

a lot of work on it using all of the
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Andres and that had logs in the area, is that the

porosity within the San Andres in this area is not
uniform. I mean, that's no surprise to a geologist.
That you wouidn't expect it to be very uniform per se.
But it does based on alllof the data we have got it

ranges from about seven to 12 percent and there does

appear to be a porosity trend that is in -- pretty much

in this kind of an -alignment where you have higher- 

porosity in this‘direction in this San Apdreé than'yQu1d6w]‘
in the east - than in the transverse diréctionlﬁere,
.'_Q;v  (Bf MR. SCOTT) Whén ydu say3ﬁﬁhis;.'ﬁ
directidn"‘youﬂre'séying - .
A, ' Néfthwest to southeéét, yés,, That'sf

correct. - So that's probably -- although itiis diffiéult

‘given the data that we currently have tO'predict'whatf

exact effect'that will have on the migration of the plumé;
or the aerial extent_of‘the reservoir thaf ié effected.
But it will tend to -- to exténa more in that difection
of the pbrdsity_trena.

Q. : In relétion to that porosity trénd;_whére‘f
are the Wells that Mr. Jones identified as wells of
concern?

A. As we saw in that earlier -- and I qah shift
back if we.want to, see if I can find my liﬁtlé cursor

here. As you can see most of those wells are located
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1 here in the northeast direction and then there's two

2 injection wells into the San Andres located out here in

3 the extreme northwest or west direction.

4 Q. So then most of the wells that Mr. Jones: : E-
5 identified as being of concern would be perpendicular to E'

6 your expected porosity trend?

7 A. That's right. They were located in this

8 area here. |

9 Q. »All figh_t.
10 A. Okay. So let's take a look at whatvdo we - i

11 know about the San‘Anares.‘_This is.the Well 1og fOr.the,,f’
12 existing Targa>SWD wellﬂ' It is currently logged'dqwnfto
13 about 4100 feet and you can see that that correiates‘

14 pretty well to,thiS’is the closest well where we haﬁé é.
15 porosity log that ﬁenetfates,the San Andres. |

16 . It's the Santa Rita No..12.well_which is

17 located in this area right here. You can see that we

18 have got some prétty high porosity in the very upper

19 portion of the San Andres and we have a zone of a 1ittléi

20 bit lower porosity;'some'variable zone, and then we have
21 got this zone that has an average porosity of about ten
22 percent and that's our proposed injection zone.

23 And then this basal portion of the San
24 Andres that has pretty low porosity and then you can see

25 that below that you get some pretty significant porosity
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increase in the Glorieta and this is the area where that

thief zone is that Mr. Jones referred to is located in
some of these wells in this area.

What we're proposing is that we will inject .
into this zone which, like I‘méntioned, is about 150 feet
above the base of the San Andres and of course, I mean,
We don't know exactly what our well log is going to'look
like when we drill that zone out, but we do as I will
discuss in é littléfbit, ﬁave.a.pretty detailéd cdfing
and logging program toicollect‘the data and injectiqn-
testing program to coiiect ﬁhe daté.to better |
characterize that zénevprior to initiating injection.

And in fact, prior to making a final

decision on the exact'injection interval. Although we

believe that this is the most likely interval, this 700
feet with approximatély ten percent pdrosity.

Just as a point of reference, one of the

other wells that was discussed by Mr. Jones in his

prehearing statement is thié‘Laura JvMay‘No. 1, which is
one of the wells where we,found a porosity log and that
had more of an average porosity of about seven percent as
bpposed_to a ten percént pofbsity. So we know that it's
variable, there's some areas where it goes up as high as

12 or 13 percent. Our best estimate based on all of the

data is that we are looking at about ten percent in our
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1 injection intexval.
2 We'll obviously have to confirm that as we
3 drill and recomplete the well. So that brings me to

4 discussing a little bit about our confirmatory data

5 collection program. We intend to take side wall cores of
6 San Andres in order to be able to calibrate our logs. We
7 will do a full and rather expénéive_log.-— suite of

8 geological‘logs through the Saﬁ Andrés and the injection
9 zone that will include what we call platférm éxpress or

10 gamma resistivity and porosity log. "'And importantly,

11_ also a fcrmation microimaging;iog thfough the_injection
12 : zone. »I ~ R | '“;
”13 B k And-that'miérouéf that's a log that we have
14 been doing én.a routine basis in the laSt five or so AGI

;15 wells that we héve'done because what'it:does is it'gives”
16 :y§u the ability to understand Structurél trends or

.17 potential fracture trends in thé.inieétion;formation and
18 gives you a good sense 6f where»flﬁid?may bé moving and
19 how that reservoir will behave in terms of the aerial

20 | extént of its injection. .

21 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm going to be showing a

22 little bit of my age with respect to the oilfield here.
23 But the formation microimaging log is a magnified video
24 picture?

25 MR. GUTIERREZ: No.
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What is it? |

MR. GUTIERREZ: It is essentially’é . it
has a four~point radial tool and it is a log that . | %
essentially gives a very detaiied view of the immediate
vicinity of the well bore and the processihg gi#es you
the primary stress directions and any kind of fracture
directions. |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What does it measure

MR. GUTIERREZ: That's a good question.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: It's a black box that -

MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, it is somewhat of a

black box, but it does provide a fairly good viéw of the

stress_directions and the -- in the well.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. - o o

AL The -- and typically»by the way, in all of

:'thé AGI wells that we have completed ahd.that the :

Division has permitted, we have as we will this well at

the end of the well we provide OCD with a detailed end of

~well report that has all of this process data, our

analysis of it, as well as all of the raw data including %

all of the logs.

And it's actually been giving some good

information to other people that are wanting to

S N—
PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f70-926626329bbb




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

Page 62

characterize those formations because not very many
people do this kind of log imaging. Furthermore, in
terms of injection testing, we will be doing a injectidn
test with a temperature survey, warm back data, and a
step-rate test to look at the injectivity of the
formation.

The temperature survey will allow for a 
termination of what areas within that injedtion interval
are more permeablé, if you will, than others and‘ithill'
give'sdme idea of what zones within the injéction-zbne |
are going to take relatively more or,relatively.less.of
the injection fluid. |

All of those data will be usédvinvréfining.

our understanding and in better answering the kinds of _

questions that Chairman Fesmire that you raised regarding

the accuracy, if you will, of the diSplacement model.

Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) You talked about the geology

generally. .Can you talk now a little bit about the
design of the proposed well.

A. Sure; This design as was included in the
C-108 is shown on Figures 3 and 4 of the C-108
applicétion.‘ We'll go through those, but just to hit the
highlights it‘wiil have a lined injection tubing that is
fiberglass lined and it is basically to ?re&ent corrosion

of the tubing itself.
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1 It will have an automated subsurface safety
2 valve which is set at depth of about 250 feet in the well
3 that is a valve that allows the well to be shut in
4 automatically if there's any kind of a failure or
5 pressufe drop as a result of let's just say someone
6 drives over the wellhead. Which is a highly unlikeiy
7 situation, but these -- this valve shuts off
8 automatically.
9 | We will also have a choke and a pressure
10 regulatiné valve to.assure that the -- that injectiQn"
11 fluid is kept in a liquid phase and that the maximum
i2- allowable injectiOﬁ pressure is not exceeded at.the
13 wellhead. Also the énnulusbbetween the casing and the_
v14 tubing will be loaded with an inert fluid; for this weli;
15 we will use briné not diesel.
16 We use diesel in wells that are dry‘AGI‘
17 wells because it‘is what would prevent any small émbun£ -

18 of acid gas that would leak out from being released in -

19 . the annulus. But in a case of a well where you're

20 already miking the‘gas'with brine we use brine as that
21 fluid. And that annulus is also monitored, pressure

22  monitored so that if there is any change in the pressure
23 in that annulus that would indicate a potential tubing

24 leak we could take appropriate action, shut the well down

25 and check out the tubing leak prior to any real problem.
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And then the brine is just designed to keep
any fluid that got out of the well from being able to
escape once you're in the process of trying to work‘it
over if you have a tubing leak. There will be meters of
course that will record the volume of acid gas and water
injected separately as well as the total injection volume
fluid because that has to be reported on a monthly basis
to the OCD on a C-115.

So there will also be -- there's a layout of

the plant and the injection site as well as the H2S

monitors that Mr. White described associated with the

pipeline. Those are all included in the H2S contingency
pian which is currently being evaluated by the Divisién.

Q. And that plan was included aé Appendix E to
the C-108, correct?

A. It was -- it was submitted independently
from the C-108 in.October, but yes, a copy has been
included in the C-108. And a copy was sent along with
vthe C-108 to all of the people who were noticed. |

| Let'é just loék at it schématically because
to me, I always can see things better in -- in --
visually than just by points. We'll just start with

there will be a tie-in to the proposed -- the approved

| pipeline that has been -- that is coming from the Middle

Eunice Plant that will take the acid gas in through --

|
%
§

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-465-8f70-9a6626323bbb



10
11
12

13

14

| 15

16
17
18
19
| 20
|21
.22
23
24

25

compressor and as you can see up there there will be a

Page 65

there will be an automatic safety valve prior to the
compression, there will be a meter on that line and then
you go into the compression facility.

The compressed acid gas will come out of the

tie-in to the wastewater line and those will be -- sorry.
This will be metered and then flow into the mixing
chamber. There will then.be a choke downstream of the
mixing chamber which will reduce the pressure that --
that comes out to -- |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why do you néed to choke
it down £o about i90 pounds here? That seems like a bit
of a waste. Why do you need the extra 200 pounds? =

MR. GUTIERREZ: _Well; I think it's because
the compression facility may have some variable pressure
aﬁd it could have pressure spikes; I mean, we're just
saying 1482 is the maximum that it could spike to and we
don't want to exceed the maximum allbwable injection
pressure. So that's.-—

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So what yoﬁ have is a
regulator. | |

MR. GUTIERREZ: 1It's a regulator in effect.
So those -- then as I mentioned earlier, we will have a
subsurface safety valve and that's the automatic safety

valve that will shut off the tubing here in the event
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1 that there's any problem at the wellhead so that if there |

2 was a problem at the wellhead the maximum amount of aéid
3 gas or fluid that could be releaSed.is what is in the

4 pipe between this automatic safety valve and the safety
5 valve that is located here in the area downstream of the
6 mixing chamber or at the compfession facility itself.

7 _ | Then there is as I mentioned, the annulus

8 between the tubing and the well is filled with brine. . We
9 have a packer that is set in a corrosive-resistant alloy
10 joinﬁ at the base of the well, and then-we have éot_thé
11 vopéh hole injgction zone at the base of that wéil.:'
12 ' Let's téke a look at what we ha&e:got and
13 where we're going. The figure on‘the left-hand side is
14 the existing configuration'of the SWD well. This is what
15 I couldn't remember off the top of my head earlier. It 
16 is open from 4010 to 4550 fight now in terms of.the

17 completion of that well. |

18 ' There's a packer'set at the -- abouﬁ 4010
19 level and so currently that wéll has been injecting into
20  the top'54d feet‘of the San Andres. The curreﬁt well is
21 goiné to bé recompleted in a form.that you see on the
22  right-hand sideléf the diagram. And this is, by the‘way,
23 Figure 3 in.the C-108. |
24 The well is going to be deepened to a total

25  depth of approximately 4950 feet, there will be a inner
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casing of five-and-a-half inch casing that will be set
with a corrosion-resistant alloy joint at the base of
that casing from 4190 to 4210. The new packer will be
set in that corrosion-resistant joint. That casing will
be cemented to the surface and then the injection will
occur in the open hole beneath the 4250 zone.

Now, clearly there's a -- some extension of

the current casing that goes down in that open hole

interval. Basically that casing isn't going to last very

long once we start’injecting acid gas because of the

corrosive nature of the-fluid in that immediate location.

Q. .Having-discussed the well design and-

'configuration can you talk a little bit about the volume

- of fluid we're proposing to inject and its impact on the

reservoir.

A, Yes, I will, but I wént to go back. There

'was one point that I missed I want to emphasize. The

'ekisting well as we -- as I mentioned earlier, has got-

surface casing set:to about 300 feet. As Mr. White
testified and I'll show in a subsequent‘slide here, the
deepest fresh water in the red beds at this location is

about 180 feet.

.So this surface casing which is at 300 feet

which is cementéd to the surface and for which there has

been a bond log and there's never been any kind of.
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leakage detected in that well is what protects the fresh
water. |
Q. All right.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You made a statement that
the existing casing was going to be subject to corrosiop.
You are going to cement that -- you are going to hané
that liner off and tie it -- side the cement back, right?

MR. GUTIERREZ:_ Yes. |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: How is the old casing

going to be exposed to the CO2 injection, to the acid gas.

injection?

MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, it will probably be

‘exposed to it to the degree that there is some vertical

communication in. the ‘San Andres there outside of the well

bore.

- CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So you're -- it's ol

not within thebwell bore, you're expecting i£ to
communicate up into the San Andres where the shoe is --
MR. GUTIERREZ: .It couid. It could.
CHAIRMAN'FESMIRE: Okay. What's the top
vertical extent of that communication?
MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, if we look back -- I
can't answer that definitively because in fact we don't
obviously have the We11>drilled yet to have that -- tﬁat

understanding of the log. But it is certainly a
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1 potential. 1It's not nécessariiy that that will occur but
2 it could occur.

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So I guess what

4 I'm asking is, if we're expecting that to occur, we would
5 assume that would occur, how high ié that corrosive

6 effect going to go? Have we, I mean, any engineering in

7 that respect?

8 MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, based on our
9 experience most of the -- in.the San Andres, you will
10 have a relatively limited communication in a vertical

11 sense and we are a good 250 feet below that zone. But I
12 guess what I'm trying to say is that at this point it's

13 not possible to rule out that it could be affected.

14 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I guess what I'm
»15 saying is, we're goiﬁg to cement‘the liner in there. |
16 ' MR. GUTIERREZ: That's right.

17 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Are you going to cemert

18 the liner and then drill out?

19 . ' MR. GUTIERREZ: Yes.

20 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. And you're

21 concerned about the shoe, the original casing shoe and
22 the corrosion in that first joint becausé of the

23 information communication,‘notv—— notvthrough the

24 annulus.

25 MR. GUTIERREZ: That's correct.
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: How far, you know, can it

go to the top of the San Andres? What's on the top of
the San Andres that will keep it from going farther up
hole?

MR. GUTIERREZ: The Grayberg and extreme top
of the San Andres is very low porosity and it has been
shoWn to be an effective cap to -- and we as a matter of

fact -- clearly it's at Jal 3 not very far. But we have

created an‘effective seal.

And actually, one of the things I'll address
when I talk about the OCD's concerns;:there was,én
earlier order in this area where there was é water flow
issﬁe_that occurred back in the '70s. And interestingly
enough, this well in particular was a well that was
tested and evaluated dﬁring the devélopment ofvthat brder
and it specifically was found not ﬁo héve any.kind of
leakage out of the San Andres.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So we've got an
éffedtive seal aﬁ the top. How ﬁuch‘of_ﬁhe -; I guess
what concerns me is the diagram shows a good cement
sheathe on the old casing. Are we sure we've got that
you're concerned about losing that bot tom joint?

MR. GUTIERREZ: We have a -- I'm ndt

concerned about losing the bottom joint. I am -- I am
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Page 71
saying that we can't definitively say that it might not

be affected but we have a good bond log for the well --
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So we have cement ail the
way from there back up to the top of the San Andres.
MR. GUTIERREZ: Yes, sir. Yes, sir.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Sorry.. The way
you phrased that scared me.

MR. GUTIERREZ: Sorry. That wasn't my

A. The -- the volume that we are intending td‘
injedt is a'tqtal of 2500 barrelsva day approkimaﬁely of
acid gas mixed with 1575 barrels a day of wastéwater and
produced water coming from the Middle EunideiPianf.’

That may vary somewhat depénding.éngthe.”
productidn both éf the acid gas and thevwastewater, but
that is the amount that we are-requesting. As I
mentiéned earlier( in this 1975 order,,while it'Was fQund

clear and it's documented in the order that the -- there

well beéause theré was a nearby -- several nearby LPG
weils rightvén the South Eunice plant in.the salt
overl?ing the San Andres, there was a limitétion‘of 1500
barrels-a day»in -- imposed on that well in that area.

However, that limitation's no longer

relevant because those LPG wells were all plugged in 2008
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as a result of OCD's request associated with this
redevelopment of the AGI well.

Okay. Here's where we talk about our plug
model and how-we arrived at the safety factor. As
Chairman Fesmire characterized, this plug model is a
displacement model that is an approximation of theearea
that is going to be affected in the reservoir over a .
30-year injection period with the proposed rate of 4075
barrels a day of fluid. |

Now, when we calculate using thatzplug modei

and we clearly understand that that is an imperfectfor.

idealiZed»model, we get a -- at that volume"injeeted_over

30 years,‘that“s'why this is‘at Unit No. 1, a hundfed_
percent.. That is a huhdred percent of thatvvolume
injected over 303years gives us -- given the effective =
porosity that we’héd aésumed of ten percent, it gi?es ﬁs.' :
the radius ofvabout :2 miles.
"Now, WhatvI”was trying to explain is-that.aS"'i
you inject more and more and more which we'revnet
prOposiﬁg to do,but‘I'm just trying to ehow_Whae the
effect would be if here what we're talking about is 4075
barrels a day'over 30 yeare gives us this kind of
displacement here; If you double that it givee us this
kind of displacement in terms of the 30-year footpfint,

If you basically triple it, it gives us this kind of
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displacement here, and quadruple it, it gives us this

kind of displacement.

So that if you look at this graph you can
see that in order to even get to the half mile circle our
model would have to be basically 500 percent wrong oOr it
would.have to underpredict the amount of reservoir that
would be affected by five times.

Now,_Cleafly, there are factors thatvaffect
this area that waslgOing té be affected. One of them is
obviously the porosity. ' The other is as Chairman:Fesmi?eiy:
indicated, that the ﬁobility ratio. But, you knoQ,-giveﬁ
the data we have] we feel comfortable especially that
we're talking about a“injection period of over 30'years.
that we are not going tb‘see any kind of an effect
anywhefe near e&en'these Santa Rita wells, which ére‘
located ét the half milé, which afe not the ones thét:OCD
indicated concerné"ébout rélative to the cementing. o

Now, one of the other things I want to
mention too that has to be considered that is an
additionél safety.factor_is that the.injectioﬁ formation
a dolomite. . It's essentially limestone and.dolomite éo
it's got a significant amount of buffering capacity for
that low pH fluid that is being injected.

Not only the neutral -- relatively neutral

fluid that is existing brine in that zone, but the rock
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1 itself provides a significant buffering capability as

2 that injection plume expands. Because you in effect do

3 dissolve some of that rock ih_a geochemical sense as that
4 plum expands.

5 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Gutierrez, is that

6 dense phase gas liquid, the dense phase gas, is that

7 going to be able to react with the rock under those
8 pressure and températurevﬁonditions?

9 MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, the dense phase gas
10 itself will not react significantly with the rock. What

11 will react significant with the rock is whatever portion

12 of that gas ends up beingvdissolved into the formation
13 fluid and/or into the injection fluid that is mixed with
14 the gas as it is injected.: |

15 | CHATIRMAN FE>S’MIRE: Okay.

‘16 A. This I wanted_to show where the wells, the
17 water wells that are located in'the.vicinity of the -- of
©18 the -- well, within the bhé—mile.area of review. 2As I

19 mentioned, the deepestjwell F—vwater well is

20 approximately 186 feet deép in Shalléw alluvial déposits,
21 but there can be some'Water inithe red beds and

22 consequently that's'why the existing well is completed

23 at -- with the surface casingvof 300 feet. And that is a
24 pretty normal kind of surface casing depth for wells in

25 this area.
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And as I mentioned, this well has a long
injection history and has never had any problem
associated with fresh water wells that are even located
right at the faéility itself that provide fresh water to
the facility.

Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) Could you summariie.your
analysis and conclusions for us, please.

A. Yes. Essentially, there's a series of
geologic factors that assure the integrity and safety of
the proposed AGI. There areﬁ't‘any féults or-strucﬁural
pathways that we have identified in the area of réviéw.
This will be obviously confirmed in part by our review of
the new log associated with thevrecbmpletiOh;

Also the cap rock the Grayberg is a loQ
porosity dolomite and.recrystallized limestoné which is
an effeétiVe barrier above that injectioﬁ.zone. - The San
Andres is a preferred injectioﬁ»zone because deeper zones
may be productive and are productive infsome‘adjacent
areas, especially outside the haif—mile radius to the
northeast.

The proposed injection pressure is way below
ﬁhe fracture pressure of the reservoir in the cap rock.
There's an injection history of salt water_disposal wells
that demonstrate that the San Andres is a closed system.

There's no well bores that penetrate the injection zone .

e

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-4f65-870-9a6626329bbb

e




10

11

12

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

vAndres. When it was drilled originally it went down to

‘.that-plug—back, so Targa has committed to the agenCy and
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within the AGI footprint even after 30 years of injection

¥

v

with a very significant safety margin as we looked at
earlier.

And there was one well that is relatively
close to the proposed well which is in the overlyiﬂg.

Langlie Mattix unit that did penetrate the top of the San-

B N W T e BT

4075 feet. It was then plugged back to the Langlie
Mattix well above that zone. But there's some concern.

the OCD and we had some concern as to the adequacy of

has obtained permission from the operator Legéc&ito
reenter that_well.and replug itbback; o

It's a well that they use as an injection
well for water flood in the overlying Langlié Méttix. " So .
we will reenter that well, plug it -- it is plugéed back
already but we will replug it back; |

CHAIRMAN.FESMIRE: Do you remember-who -
just do you remember who drilled that, the operator_that
drilled that? | |

| MR. GUTIERREZ: Originally?.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Yeah.

‘MR. GUTIERREZ: I don't know if it was an
Anadarko well or it could have been a Skelley well, but I

don't know. It is an old well that was -- that has

B e R AR K O R —
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always been -- well, not always, that was a producer at
some point in thé Langlie Mattix but was then plugged
back and used as part of a water flood.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you.

A. And by the way, like I said, Targa has
already obtaiﬁed permission from Legacy to do that
recompletion as part of this effort.

As we mentioned, there are some weli.design
factors that also assure the integrity and safety of. the
AGI. The surface casing is set well below the deepest
fresh water and it is cemented to the éurface,r'

The new production casing will.be‘set_withihb
the surface casing and cemented.to the surface with CﬁA

joints at the base where the packer is going to be set

‘and where the production casing will terminate above‘the

open hole.

The cement bond logs will be provided to the
Division to assure thét there is an appropriate casihg
seal. There is a corrosion-resistant fiberglass_lined
tubing which‘is what we are going to use and.I éxplainéd
earlief how we wili monitor that annulus between the
casing and the tubing.

And importantly, similar designs are being
utilized successfully throughout Southeast New Mexicd,

Texas, and Alberta, including four such installations

R T oo
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that we have designed and permitted and completed.

Q. (RY MR. SCOTT) Mr. Gutierrez, we talked
briefly at the start of your testimony about some of the
notice that was provided concerning this application.
Could you just touch on that again briefly for the
Commissioners.

A. Yes. We met with OCD prior to submitting
the application to make sure that we understood and that
the Division was comfortable with the notice that would
be provided as a‘result of this application. |

We agreed pursuant to the OCD's request to

notify specifically and to mail a copy of the

-application, complete copy of the application.to'all of .

the surface owners within a mile, all of the operators
within a mile? all of the lessees and/or mineraivowners
within a miie of the»proposed well. The State Land
Office, which 'in fact is a surface owner within a mile:
anyway, but even if they.hadn't been. And the BLMvwhich.
is not a surface oWﬁer within a mile, but we did notify
the BLM as well. |

And we weré specifically also asked to
notify any residenté. Beéause there could be residences
or businesses that have facilities within that area of
review that are not surface'owners so we went out and

basically made sure that any residences or other business
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facilities were identified within that mile we noticed
them as well. And then lastly, we noticed the town of
Eunice. |
Q. All right. Thank you.
»CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would this be a good
place to take a break?

MR. SCOTT: Yes.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: . Why don't we take a
ten-minute break. And I plan on taking a later than
usual lunch. I'mihoping that we can finish this up
béfore lunch. Why don't we reconvéne at 10 minutes after‘
11:00. |

(Break.)

CH.AIRMAN‘ FESMIRE: The record should reflect

that the regularly scheduled meeting of the December 9,

2010 NMOCC meeting has reconvened and all three

Commissioners are present and we will continue with the

Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) Mr. Gutierrez, during the
course ofvyour testimony Commissioner Fesmire asked you
some questions about the microimaging log and what that
log demonstrates. Would you care to elaborate on that
issue?

A. Well, yeah. I consulted with Dr. Lozinski

my logging expert to find out a little bit more. It is

rer—— r— —
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an oriented four resistivity tools and they are oriented

for microresistivity rules.

And the process is a bit of

a mystery, that's a Schlumberger trade secret. But

basically it's an oriented resistivity tool.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Thank you.

Q. (BY MR. SCOTT)

In your opinion as a

certified professional geologist and a hydrogeologist

will the proposed recompletion of Targa's salt water

disposal well for used as a combined acid gas injection

and wastewater disposal well and the proposed volume of

i instructions protect public health?

MS. MACQUESTEN: Objection. He hasn't been

accepted as an expert.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: That's correct

MR. SCOTT

: I

would offer him as an expert.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any objection,

Ms. MacQuesten?

MS. MacQUESTEN: No objection.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you. His

0. (BY MR. SCOTT)

credentials will be so accepted.

So again Mr. Gutierrez, in

your opinion as a certified professional geologist and

hydrogeologist will the proposed recompletion of Targa's

salt water disposal well to serve as an acid gas

injection and wastewater disposal well and the proposed
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1 injection of volumes over 30 or more years protect public

2 health?

R e I T O A P P s

3 A. Yes.

4 Q. And will the proposed recompletion of

5 Targa's salt water disposal well and its use as a

6 combined acid gas and wastewater injection well to

7 receive 44.56 million barrels of material protect fresh
8 water in the environment?

9 A.. Yes.i

10~ R Q. And in your opinion as a proféséional

S T S TP O

11 geologist will the proposed recompletion of the Targa's

12 well to serve as.a acid gas injection and Water disposal
13 well protect producing zones, preventvwaste; ahd‘protect
14 correlative'rights?. |

15 A. . Yes.

16 Q.. Have you had an opportunity to review the

17  prefiled testimony of Will Jones?

18 A. I have.

19 ' Q. And were you able to prepare responses to
20 the issues he réised in that testimoﬁy?

21 A. | I have.v

22 ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do you have any objection

23 to proceeding with rebuttal testimony now or would you
24 rather wait and call this witness later?

25 MS. MacQUESTEN: I don't object.

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS .
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Continue, Mr. Scott.

2 Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) Could you outline for us
3 what those issues and what your responses to Mr. Jones'
4 concerns were.

5 A. Sure. Let's just go through them.

6 Mr. Jones had a number of individual concerns and then »
7 gpecific recommendations. We met a couple of days ago
8 and discussed those in some detail. 2And I think we have .

9 a pretty good understanding of what they are, so I'd like

10  to go through them and point out what are -- how we're
11 addressing those concerns.
12 The first -concern was over this Langlie

13 Mattix unit Well No. 252, that it should be repaired. We
14 agree and we have agreed as part of this, prior to
15 injecting any acid gas that we would reopen and repair or

16 recomplete that, plug that well back to make sure that

17 there is no‘connection_with the San Andres.

18 The secondvconcern was the potential impact
19 of the -- on wells that penetrate the San Andres outside
20 of half-mile radius bﬁt.within the éne—mile area of

21 review. I have gone over that in detail in terms of our

22 analysis of the plug flow model. We believe that the
23 proposed injection volume after 30 years based on all the
24 information we have to date is only going to extend a

25 maximum of about ,2 miles from the well.
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm sorry. Do you have a
copy of this for Mr. Jones?
MR. SCOTT: Yes, I have another copy.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: We're on Page 27,

Mr. Jones. Continue, sir. I apologize.
A. Sure. And also the safety margin even if
the -- we understand that the plug model is somewhat

uncertain and that it is dependent on various assumptions

but we feel that we have a very significant safety margin

before we get out to that half-mile zone.

And then lastly, this -- the base of the
iﬁjection zone is proposed to be'aboutvISb feet above
this thief zone that's buffered by the low porosity San

Andres base.

The third concern was that the prediction of

the reservoir area is sensitive to a Variety of model
assumptions. Well, clearly we egree with that. The
existing model, like I mentioned, has e significant
safety margin.of 500 percent. Bﬁt in addition, we
propose that we'wili gether‘confifmatory data and aﬁalyze
that data and present it to.the‘DivisiQn as part of the
proposed recompletion program.

The next concern that was expressed was that
the existing logs areh't»sufficient to characterize the

injection zone. Again, we agree the closest well that we
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1 have is the well that I showed you, the top portion of !

2 the San Andres seems to correlate pretty well to that

3 well, so we don't anticipate that it will be

4 significantly different. But we won't know that until we
5 drill and log it and until we take some side wall cores

6 which we will directly measure porosity and allow us to

7 calibrate that well log.

8 'Again, it really boils down to the fact that
9 the majority of the Division's concerns at least as I
10 understand them are that the uncertainties in the plug

11 model don't give the Division a sﬁfficient.level of

12 comfort with the data as it exists éb while we feel that
13_' that plug model has a very significant safeﬁy mafgin, we
i4 ._will gather confirmatory déta during the well | o

15 redompletion and we will analyze and supply that analysis

16 and the data, raw data to the Division.
17 v We -- the next concern was about additional

>18 data gathering as well. And agéin, we will gather and

19 | sﬁbmit that data. The verticai safety_factqr which

26 Mr; Jones recommended, we don't haVe a problém iﬁ the way
21 our well is designed. It provides'about 150 rather than
22 a hundred_feet of safety factbr above that zohe.

23 The other issuebthat was raised was

24 essentially a clean-up issue( if-you will, related to

25 this old 1975 order, the whole motivation for that order

OFESSIONAL C'OURT REPORTERS
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has been removed by the fact that the LPG wells have been
plugged that were the subject of that concern;

The OCD then had a number of recommendations
following their expression of concerns. Their first one
is that a series of construction and testing
requirements. All of the constructioﬁ and testing
requirements which were proposed by the 0OCD in
Recommendation A we already had included as thingsvwe
‘were going to do in our C-108, with the exceﬁtion of: the

recommended temperature survey injection survey and we

have,agreed‘to do that following the logging of the well. -

The operational requirements, there was a

concern again about the order 5003 that hadbé 1500 barrel

- limit. It really is no longer applicable because of the

plugging of the LPG wells. The remaining operation
requirements that were being recommended by OCD regarding

pressure, metering, et cetera, those are included already

-as part of our application and we're committed to

implementing those.

The next recommendation was regarding
remedial work on the Penrose Sand well. _We have proposed
that as part of our C-108 application and have obtained
permission from Legacy, the operator, to do that work
prior.to the injection of acid gas.

The next one was a recommendation to confirm

" PAU
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1 Targa's compliance with well construction and data

2 collection. A concern that was expressed to us by the
3 Division attorney is that how -- whether there.would be
4 an appropriate mechanism for ﬁhe‘Division and the

5 Commission to.assure compliance with what we say we're
6 going to do when we construct and complete the weli and

7 perform data collection.

8 ~ What we would propose is that Targa would

9 provide a certification by a company officer ﬁhat éll of
10 ‘the well construction and data collectién requiréments‘

11 that are incorporated in the order will be completed

12 prior to the injection'of acid gas, and we will submit a

13 refined calculation of the area of the reservoir affected
14 ~ over the injection period within a year of that
15 certification, that those data collection activities ere'

16 completed.
17 . . The next recommendation was that at some

18 point in the future the OCD or the OCC amend the orderJto

19 confirm the injection limit. Our propoéal.is that our
20 predicted area has a very sigﬁificant safety margin over
21 a lohg period of time that over 30 years We don't‘

22 anticipate that we're going to get anywhere near those

23 half mile weiis, but -- and so therefore wefre requesting
24 a maximﬁm of 30 Years or 44.65 million barrels whiéhéfer
25 is greater.

dorn e
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1 Alternatively we would suggest that possibly
2 an administretive amendment could be issued to update
3 that estimated injection volume or time limit if it's
4 needed once that -- those'aata are analyzed that we arev.i

5 committing to submit to the agency. And that's the end

6 of my --

7 Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) One more slide. The next

8 slide summarizes what_We're requesting by way of an ordef
9 from the'Commission.please;

10 A. Right. In summary, what we're_eskingethe

11 Commission for is an order that will ailow us to'teet ana-
12 recomplete the well as specified in our C-108 applieatiOn.

13 for use‘as a ACI’SWD_Well. And that.the Cemmissien;allew fé.m
14 us to inject a mixed streem of dense phase acideges and N
15 wastewater at a meximum rate of 4075 barrels per dé&,

16 maximum_operating pressure of 1292 or say 1300‘PSI if'we;'
17 want to ehOose,aerOund'number; for a duration of 30 yeare
18 or 44.65 million barrels whichever is greater.

19 We have proﬁided or our counsel has previded

20 my understanding a draft order to this effect to the

21 Commission counsel.
22 Q. Thank you, Mr. Gutierrez.
23 ~ MR. SCOTT: At this point, I would move for

24 the adnission of Exhibit 3.

25 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Any objection?

el 2 % T,

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f7 0-9a6626329bbb



Page 88 |
1 MS. MACQUESTEN: I have no objection to

2 admitting it as a demonstrative exhibit that expresses

3 Mr. Gutierrez's testimony. I'd like to clarify this will
4 be the Exhibit 3 for this case and replaces the Exhibit 3
5 that was submitted with fhe prehéaring statement?

6 CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Right. This will be

7 admitted Exhibit 3 as opposed to proposed Exhibit 3. And

8 it will admitted for demonstrative purposes.
9 MR. SCOTT: All right.
10 _ CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Under those conditions

11 Exhibit 3 is so admitted and thank you for providing‘thea

12 court reporter a clean copy.
13 MR. SCOTT: Then I have one other just
14 housekeeping item.with’this‘witness if I may approach himij '

15 again.
16 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You can. You're going t§‘~€
17 admit the C-1087? | |
18 MR. SCOTT: Yes, I am.

19 Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) vCould you look at what we

20 have labeled as Exhibit 4, please.

21 A. Yes.
22 Q. Do you recognize that document?
23 A. This is an original of our C-108 application

24 which we prepared for this project.

25 Q. All right. And is that the C-108 that
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you've been referring to throughout the course of your
testimony?
A. It ig. And it's also‘the C-108 that was

provided with the ﬁotice to all of the noticed parties.

MR. SCOTT: I would move the admission of
Exhibit 4.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: -Any objeétion?

MS. MACQUESTEN: No objection.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: - Exhibit 4 will be
admitted to the record. |

MR. SCOTT: thhing furthef‘withvthis
witness at this time.

CHAIRMANIFESMIRE? Ms. MacQuésten? Are you
going to need the PowerPoint?

MS.YMACQUESTEN: No, bﬁt Mr. Gutierrez may-
wish to fespond; |

MR. GUTIERREZ: If I do I'll hook it back
up. It's not gohe.". |

MS. MACQUESTEN: That's fine.

| * ‘ * * |
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. MACQUESTEN:
Q. Mr. Gutierrez, if I understand your

testimony correctly, you acknowledged that -there are

problems outside of a half mile of this well that we need

R A @ T O = o o
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to make sure we avoid.
A. I acknowledge that there are some wells that

are outside that half mile and within the one-mile area

of review that are less than optimally cemented in the
injection zone, yes.

Q. So your argument is that we can ensure that
the plume doesn't reach beyond one half mile of the
subject well.

A. That is correct.

Q. And if it does go beyond one haif milé.then

we may need to address those wells that have cémentingi

issues?

A. If there is -- even if the plume was to go
out or if there were some effect in»the'disSdlvéd‘phase'
inbthe formation fluid, my personal opinion is thét_thé
corrosive nature, existing corrosive nature 6f the’
forﬁation fluid is not going to be‘subsequently
significahtly affected. But -- but you‘re'absblutely
bright in that if there were problemsbaSSOCiated'with
those wells and tﬁere was HZS that would feach those,
there may be some need to address thatﬁ yes.

Q. So your testimony today is going towards
showing us that we won't need ﬁovworry about that because
the plume won't extend beyona a half mile.‘

A. That's correct. I think the data that. we
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have analyzed and that we have available indicates that
we would have to be very wrong with respect to our model
or the model would have to be significantly
underestimating that distance for it to affect it;'evenb
after 30 years of injection. |

Q. Before we get to the model, if we just look
at the issues within a one-half mile area of review, we
do have the issue of the well that as operated by Legacy -
that Targa proposes tb reenter and replug; is that right?'

A. That well, as I described earlier, was |
drilled to a total depth of 4075 feet and it was plugged
back.above the top of the San Andrés. Howevef, it:did
pénetrate about:65 or 70 feet of the San Andres fofmation
prior to being plugged back. |

And we want to make sure even though we're.

going to be injecting well below that depth, and one of

the things I addressed with Chairman Fesmire is the fact

that expansion of the plume is going to be limited in a

vertical sense. But that we just to kind of use belt and

suspenders we propose that that well be reentered and
replugged according to current NMOCD requirements.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, may I
clarify a question? You propose to reenter it, drill it
out, recement it, and squeeze it?

MR. GUTIERREZ: It was -- we won't have to
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1 squeeze it really because there's no casing there. The

2 casing is above that. The well Was drilled to a total

3 depth of 4075, but it was never cased to that depth. And
4 then it was just plugged béck with cement. And as a

5 matter of fact, there's some lead wool sitting on top of
6 that cement. And our proposal is that we would drill out

7 all of that crud.

8 a CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Drill out the lead wool?
9 MR. GUTIERREZ: Drill out the iead_woql,v
10 drill out the cement and then recement that.

il | CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And you don't think it

12 will be a problém drilling out the lead wool?
13 .~ MR. GUTIERREZ: We don't.
14 Q.  (BY MS. MACQUESTEN) How confident are you

15 that you can reenter the well and»plug‘it back according

16 to current standards?
17 A. I don't see any problem with doing that.
18 Q. If for some reason you're not able to cement

19 it to plug it back to current standards, how do YOU

20 propose to address that situation?
21 A. Well, I propose to drill it out and plug it

22 back according to the current standards. I mean, if we
23 can't do that I guess that would be a concern that we
24 would have to address at that point in time with Legacy

25 and with the Division. But there really -- this is not a

SRR
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-- you know, we calculated the total thickness of that
quote unquote "lead wool" that sits above the cement and
given the density of the lead wool and the amount of lead
wool that the original records show that was put into the
well, we're talking about‘a total thickness in that bore.
hole of lead wool of about four feet. And we don't
anticipate that there's going to be any problem drilling
that stuff out. |

Q. Will thé remediation be done before
injection commences’én the subject well?

A. Absolutely. 2And by the way, also, prior.to:
reentering and recompleting that well we would have to |
submit a C-103 to the bistrict for them to review the

proposed plan and approve the proposed fecompletion plan.

'-And subsequently a C-105 to demonstrate_that in fact it

hasvbeén adequately plugged back according to that
approved plan.

0. So you wouldn't objecﬁ if the order issﬁed
by the Commission required Targa to obtain approval from -
the district offiée of completéd plugging operations on
that well before beginning injection in the subject weii?

A. No. As a matter of fact, that's what we
propose that we would be doing.

Q. Let me ask you about the model that you are

using that is the basis for your position that the plume
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will not extend to the half mile within 30 years. That

model is based on a number of assumptions; is that true?
A. Yes. |
Q. One of those assumptions being that there
will be a plug-like displacement?
A. That's correct.
Q. And when you're saying that, what you're

saying is that the fluid that is injected into the

subject well would look like a cylinder.

A. Yes. An ever-increasingicylinder over time.

Q.  This is a mathematical calculation that
you're using to predict the size of this cylindef;

A. Yes.

Q. And I believe in your testimony you
descfibed this as an idealized concept of what actually
happens when fluid is injected into a formation._

A. That's correct. |

Q. In reality, what is the shape'that's created
when fluid is injected into a formétion? |

A. Well, it's really a function of the
variation and porosity and permeability over the
thickness of that cylinder. 1In reality what happens is
that you get some kind of a ragged edge, if you will, to
that»cylinder. There are zones that are locally more

permeable and more porous, have varying amounts of
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|
|
%
i
;
|

expansion.

Q. And that would be true in a situation where
there was not any fracture; you would still have the
ragged edges‘because of the difference in the porosity.

A. Yes, it would still be true in a case where
there's fracturing. If you have open ffactures, clearly
those fractures are going to preferentially take fluid
and the expansion of that plume would aiso go along those
fracture trends; |

Q.‘ So if there's a fracturé, the'actual.shape
could be very.different because the fluid might flow
along that preferential path?

A. That's correct.

Q. And so it could extend out further than your

'predicted.plume based on your mathematical model?

A. Itﬁs possible. Yes.

Q. In fact, when we were having discussions of

the plume, didn't you show us a model where insﬁead‘bf.a
cinder it was an extended oblong?

| A. Right. And if -- in the C-108 there is a
figure that shows that. And that is an attempt to
qualitatively aemonstrate that the porosity tfend that I
showed on the map, there would tend to affect énd we
believevthat that cylinder is probably going to be more

of an ellipsoid that's oriented in a northwest/southeast
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“understanding of'the,San Andres.

direction.
But we really don't have the data to be able
to do that in a quantitative way so the accepted

approximation is the cylindrical plug model that we have

presented.

Q. You don't have the data; is that on the
porosity?

A. On the porosity and on the actual log, the

data that we would derive from the suite of logs that

we're going to do on the well prior to recompleting it.-

Q. ‘All right. 1In fact, you don't have a lotaof.

data tovplug into your mathematical model at this.point,
do you?b |

.A. , No,vI would disagree with that. I think we
have_véry good undérstanding of the general porosity of
the San Andres, the San Aﬁdres is a formation that has -
been expioited'and understood for nearly a_hundred‘Yeafé

in Southéast New Mexico. So I think we have a very good

We have good understanding of the lack of
any significant structures or faults or significant
fractures in the area; there's no evidence of that. Part

of that is reflected in the fact that the water flow

-analysis work that was done before demonstrated that you

weren't getting 1eakage out of San Andres.

Page 96 |
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I think we have a pretty good understanding

z
|

of the range of porosity in the area from about seven to
12 percent. We don't have.a log right at the location of
the well because we havenFt drilled it yet. But I think"'
we -- when you look at -- even if you were to look at.. |
reducing the porosity let's]say to a minimum of seven
percent in that,area;'that would not have a hugely
significant effect on that plug.

| | Let's say if you were to -- I haven't gone
through the calculations, but just roughly if you Were toe
look at leﬁ's say seven pereent instead of ten ﬁerdehﬁ
poroSity'with»that plug model. You might look atvinstead
of a .2 mile rediﬁs-of influence over 30 years it'might'“
be like .23 of €24, somewhere in that range, even wieh
that kind of range of porosity. |

‘So I thihk that we have a significant'ahouﬁt

of data thatvmakeS'us feel comfertable eneugh aﬁd' |
frankly, the poteﬁﬁial effect on those wells is less of a.
public health or safety concern than it is a liability

concern to Targa. So I mean, clearly they want to be

confident that that plume doesn't extend out there and
cause some problem that makes them liable for damage to
someone's well.

So we feel that there are sufficient data,
this is the way in which we have modeled these AGI

IONAL COURT REPORTERS '

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f70-9a6626329bbb

PAUL BACA PROFESS



Page 98

1 projects in the past for the Division. And while there
2 are uncertainties we believe that the safety margin that
3 this -- that we have between what our predicted radius is

4 and the ultimate location of those wells at the half- to

5 one-mile radius provides sufficient protection.
6 : Q. Let's just 1éok at those variables one more-
7 time. On the issue of the porosity, was it your previous
8 vtestimony that the porosity in the area is variable?
9 » A. Yes.

10 Q. You are testifying that you're not cbncernéd
11 that there isvfractﬁring in the area?

12 A. Thaﬁfskéorrect.

'  13- Q. Have you reviéwéd Mr. Jones' prefiled

14 written'testimony?

15 A. - T have.

16 v Q. ‘Do you fecall ﬁié diScussion of some testing

17 | that was done on the,subject'Well.in‘l983 that hé was

18 . concerned indi@ated the poésibilipy-of fractureS?

119 . A. Yes. And'that is in the -- in the zoné that -
20 is above the zone that wé‘rekintending to inject. Eut,

21 part of the reason why we are‘prbposing to do thé

22 additional logging and coring of that well is to be able
23 to more definitively determiné whether or not there's a

24 ‘_problem there.

25 Q. So yoﬁ‘re agreeing that we need additional

R = SRS 5 T
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data in order to determine if there's a problem with
fracturing in the area.

A. Well, I would not say that -- there isn't --

I haven't seen any evidence that indicates to me that

there is a widespread problem with fracturing in the San

Andres in this area or specifically at this well. But
whether there are -- I mean, the San Andres is a

~limestone dolostone kind of reservoir that does have

voids and may have some solution voids in it associated
with fracturing or not associated with fracturing.

Now, whether those are significant in terms

of their aerial extent, there hasn't been any evidence

that I've seen that would lead me to that concern.

Again, when we do -- whenvwe.supposevto do formation

’microimaging log, I think it will give us an added level

of confidence with that.

Q. Is it true that_another'variable that might

affect your model would be the thickness of the interval

in which the injected fluid{is entering the formation?

A. Well, we havé:modeied it'to'eﬂcompass the
entire injection interval thatbwe're-proposing.

0. But if it turns out that the fluid enters at
a reduced interval, could that affect your model?

A. Well, ceftainly. I mean, if you -- if you

shrink the injection like if you take your cylinder that
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we were talking about and you squeeze it, it actually

gets larger in diameter. So clearly if you have lower

porosity or you have a smaller injection interval you

would haVe a change in that diameter of that cylinder, if

you will. Similarly, if the porosity is higher than the

averége porosity that we would anticipaté then the

" ¢cylinder would shrink.

Q; And did I hear your testimony correctly that

right now your injection interval is simply a proposed

-interval, that you will know better once you have done

the logging and surveying what the actual injection

_interval will be?

A. Yes. Although,'I mean, our plan is_to use

that 700-foot injection interval. ©Now, we'll have a

better sense as to within that injection interval there

will be zones that will take more or less fluid. And
that's part of what we are doing this;additional testing
to determine.

Q. So that's another instance_in Which the

btesting will help detérmine the accuracy of the model.

A. Yes.

Q. Are you aware of the permitting history of
this -- of the subject well? |

A. I am since 2006; we prepafed ﬁhe original
C-108 for the - essentially for‘the replacément of the

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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»aboutb5000 from the original well, but I donPtvrédall

‘Q. Why has the proposed interval_changéd?

A. Because as we have looked at and.did-MQre
analysis. on the poroéity variations in the areaﬂ'We'—— I
didn't see -- péréénally I recommended to Targa}tof -

Page 101 |
existing well with the new AGI well. And subsequent to

that we obtained an amendment to that order that changed
from essentially drilling a new well next to the éxisting.
well and then plugging that well to actually deepening‘
the existing well and recompleting it for AGI.puisuant:to
SWD-1161.

Q. Is it true that the proposed injectibn
interval has changed during the course of those vérious‘
permitting fequests?' |

A. Yes. 1In the -- I cannot recall whétithe
proposed_injectiqn iﬁterval wés for the original o

replacement well. But I think it was from about 4400 to

R O O e S e o e SO

exactly. But I do recall that in the initial_ameﬂdment

for using that well as a recompleted well, the injection

;
.

interval was_4450 to 4950 approximately.

increase that interval to 4250 to 4950 because I didn't
see any good reason to give up this 200 feet of good
porosity in the upper portion. BecauseII did not feel
that the injéétion in that interval would in any wéy

further raise the possibility of AGI or fluid leaVing'theA
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San Andres through the top. f

I mean, that was -- the original concern was

to have a deeper injection interval to further protect

those Langlie Mattix wells that are above the San Andres.

And given the fact that subsequent to our initial

‘discussions and with the agency and their concern

expressed about the 252 well and our commitment to

recomplete that well, then I thought there's no reason

“why we shouldn't use that full -- not even the full San .

Andres, but the injéctionvinterval which starts aboﬁt 250
feet below the top §f the San Andres to the 4950vlevel}“
that 700-foot intefvél; |
Bécaugévthat does. two things. It's's£111 lf

protective of the wells that are above the Sén»And?és.and
it gilves us some additional porosity that‘limits.the
overall extent ofuthe‘aréa affécted in the reséfv¢ir bvéf'_:
the entire‘life éf'the.injegtion.

Q. Ybu'Spoke about learning morebabout the
porosity. What'additional information did you hé&e?l

A. Well, WQ did additibnal‘work to look at.—;
looked at the wellé‘that -- not only the wells thét are
completed in the area that penétrate the San Andres, but
importantly we also did a -- at the Jal 3 well, whidh we |
only completed in 2008, we did a coring of the cap roék

of that well and the upper portion of the San Andres and
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1 we did a formation microimaging log of that well which
2 gave us a much better understanding than any of the other
3 well logs in the immediate area of this well. Because

4 there's none that had used this kind of technology in the

5 logging before. So we basically had information that we

6 didn't have earlier on.
7 Q. And by obtaining that information, it helpedv
8 you with your model in this case? |
9 | A. Yes. |
10 Q. One of the main problems.With thé data,

11 would you agree, is that we don't_have a:log fbr the

12  subject well that covers the proposed injeétion interval;
‘13 . is that right?

14 : A. Absolutély.. I mean, that's avcritical piecé--é
15 of information and we need to‘gétvit. Although, the

| 16 reason why it doeénlt give me a concern Ehat would
17 'prevent me from désigning and -- desighihg.a.well and:
18 proposing it in‘the manner that I have, is that thé |

19 wvariation within the San Andres even over a relatively

20 large area is not huge.

21 . I mean, there's some, you know, variability
22 - in the porosityvas I ﬁentioned. Average porosity

23 somewhere between séven and 12 pefcent'but it's not 1like

24 between zero and 50 percent. That is constrained. So I

25 think that we have good enough data to be able to design

T R 5 o T
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But clearly, in any

Page 104‘§

well when you're ;

drilling it and logging it, you want the data right there

at the well. I mean, in a case
two, three out of the fivé wells
we have permitted at the state h
drilled, so we didn't have a log
had was logs from adjacent wells
geologists use all the time in o
determine and tell where to dril
well. |

So I mean, while yo
information when you drill the w

available data to give you the i

... to design and propose a specific

Q. The other AGI wells
in New Mexico don't have the sam
their area of review, do they?

A. No,vthere afe some .
at the Jal well down at Jal 3, I
many Qells in the area of review
thqse wells that -- the majority

immediate area of review of this

-- for examplé, in one,
that -- AGI wells that
ere, the well wasn't even
at all when we -; all we
and that'é_what
rder to be able to

1 and how to complete a

u have to’gaﬁhervthat log
éll, yéu use the
nformétidﬁ fhat yoﬁ néed
design of a weil,
that have‘been'pérmitted

e number of wells within

that do have. If we look
don't think it has as

. But again, the --

of the wells within the

well as I showed.on

those maps are completed above the zone.

Similarly, in a number of these other AGI
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1 wells, there are wells that are equally nearby but they ‘

2 afe_typically also completed. We look -- we basically

3 look for completing wells below a zone that -- that has a
4 lot of penetrations. This probably has more than most of
5 the ones that we have completed, yes.

6 Q. Well, I'm looking at an exhibit that's

7 attached to Mr. Jones' prefiled written testimony that»

8 = shows no wells within one mile of that Jal 3 AGI well

9 that penetrate the injection zone for that ‘well.
10 ' A. That's probably correct.
11 Q. But I see that he indicates that there are.’

12 25 wells within one mile of the subject well. that

13 penetrate the proposed injection zone.

14 A. That is correct.
15 Q. That's quite a difference.
16 A. Yes. But -- but relative to the predicted

17 - footprint of that plume, the location éf those wélls ddeé
18 not cause me to be concerned at this point.

19 . YQ.1 If I understand your testimony corréctly,.
20 you are willing for Targa to do all of the tests that
21 Mr. Jones has asked be performed to gather data..

22 A. That's correct.

23 Qm.' All right. There was one additionél.issue
24 that I waﬁﬁed to ask you about.  Is there a way of

25 obtaining data on the pressure of the reservoir?

. . =
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A. Well, yeah. Certainly when you do an ‘ '

injection test you get reservoir préssure.

Q. That would give us that --

A. Absolutely.

Q. -- information. And that pressure'it is
important to undérstand whether the fluid will remain in
the liquid form; is that right?

A. Yes. But there's absolutely no question
that the pressufe-is way above what it will needvté

remain in the liquid form, even without doing any

R R U T e s ]

testing. Becausé‘of'jUSt the lithostatiq load'and the
fact that, I mean, we're nowhere -- we're o&ei two times
the predicted reservoir pressure of what'ié above ﬁhat
critical point. |
But I mean, in answer to your question;‘I'

mean, when you do an injection survey you have a wé‘call
it a bomb. But yoﬁ put a pressure sensing device in_ﬁhe:
reservolr and it gi&es you the reservoir pressure. So‘We 'i
would be able to confirm that reservoir preésure.

Q. So as I understand you're willing to gaﬁherv'
the data that the OCD is asking for?

A. Not'bnly are we willing to gather it, we
proposed that we Would gather it as part of the C-108
with the exception} as I mentioned, of the injection

survey which additionally Targa has agreed to do.

H
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Q. What is your proposal for what happens to - \

that data once it's collected?

A. Well, we will analyze it as we have done in
all of the previous AGI wells that we have complétéd. We
put it together in an ovérall what we call an end-of-well -
report and submit.that to the agency along with our
analysis.

And that allows really for a much better
understanding of the injection characteristics of tﬁat 
zone. And that's réally important information nbt.only

to the agency, I mean, it's important information to the |

- operator to give them the comfort level and the

understanding of the appropriate parameters for injecting  §

into that well.

Q. But it's YOur propbsal_that the ihfbrmation.
simply be given to the‘OCD_and‘then it would bé up to the
OCD if they felt it was necessary to reopen the Caée,ité'
file the applicationito do that.

A. Well, Qhat we pfoposed -- I mean, I think' 
when we met the othér day'one”of“the concerns was'how do
we assure that -- and how do we kind of integrate that
into the process. And what our propoéal is, is thét a
corporate officer of Targa would certify that all of the
construction and coﬁpietion-reqﬁirements-were completed

and the testing requirements. 'And then we would analyze

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 and provide that -- the results of that analysis as well
2 as the raw data to the agency with a recommendation or,
3 if you will, with aﬁ update of that predicted extent of
4 the injection plume over 30 years. And at that point the
5v agency could determine if there was a néed_to be more
6 restrictive than what we propose be placed in the order
7 originally. |
8. Q. But the burden would be on the agency to
9 come forward, file an application for_hearing, and prove
10 that additional restrictions need to be placed on the

11 permit.

12 | A. Yeah, I don't know what‘thé'actﬁal procedure
13 Would be. But I mean, our proposal isbthatfwe be |
‘14 ° approved to inject that volﬁme ovef 30‘years’énd thaﬁ if
15 = these data indicate that for some_reaéon ﬁhat is not 

16 appropriate then Ibthink; yeah, I don't know Whether.ﬁhat
17 would be a requifement on the agenéy. I meaﬁ, We wOuid,v
18 provide an analysis_that'would'iﬁdicate what the reélized
19 plumé would be, you know. B
20 | 0. So thevidea is té dbtaiﬁ the permit based on.Q;
21 the idealized mathematical model and then gather the daté
22 that would be used to adjust that model and it would be
23 up to the agency to come back and say, "That model that
_24_ _you based your permit on isn't exactlybright; we need to

25 Chahge it.m
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A. That's correct.

Q. Is that right?

A. That's correct. The -- first of all, I
don't -- I want to emphasize that I mean, this model is
 not like -- first of all,‘not very complicated.

Secondly, it's not like hocus-pocus that was built with

no data. We incorporated all of the data that we have

available and made what are reasonable assumptions, and

it results in a significant safety factor.
I mean, 500 percent is a very high safety

factor based on a prospective application. So we feel

comfortable that the proposed injection volume ovér:30

yearg, even if we are -- even if we were 'a hundred

percent wrong in our model it still would be way within

that half-mile circle before it even reaches those wells

even after 30 years.

So that's why we feel comfortable with that
request as it is. Now, clearly, whén We get the
additioﬁal_data we would be.able to refihe that.' We
would -- for one thing we wéuld‘know at least in the
immediate vicinity of the well what the actual porosity

was for the different zones. We would have injection

tests that would indicate which zones might take more

water than other zones and therefore have an'idea of how

the outline of that reservoir model may look.

e
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So we would also have a better or a direct
measurement of the reservoir pressure at that location.
So all of those data would further inform our prediction,

if you will, and whether that safety factor is in fact

Q. If you are that comfortable with your model,
what is your opposition to coming back in six_monﬁhs or a
yeaf to present the results of the testing and bbtain a
final decision from the Commission on the life”df“permit
liﬁits?‘ |

A. Wellé_I mean, I don't have an ijectibngto 
providing the data. We -- I mean, I think my‘clieﬁt
would prefer not to have to come back to ashéaring'
beéause that is a significant cost and expénée to prepare
for a hearing, prepare exhibits, hire ﬁs or_sdmeope"to do -
that wbrk in a.pr0ceSS that -- I mean, clearly if-there
was a significant aberration from what we haVe predicted
based on the énalysis of that data that we're going to
collect, I mean, I think Targa would be the first to want
to_réevaluate‘hbw they would operate that well to assure
that they protect themselves from any potential liability
from those wells.

So I just don't -- I guess what we're trying

to do is find a mechanism that says give us the permit |

based‘on all of the data that we currently have and ouf
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1 best understanding of that and then, you know, if that

2 changed fundamentally then it might be appropriate to

3 revisit thét.

4 But if it doesn't we don't want to have to

5 come back to a hearing just to say, "Well, look at the

6 data. We believe that it's just like we said it was,‘or“

7 that it is changed by 20 percent," or something like

8 that. I mean, it's also given -- again, what we're
9 talking about is the potential for that expansion after a
10 very long period of injection.

11 I mean, this is not something that's going

o T SO WS A ORETSS

12 to happen -- I mean, I can't conceive of any way that it

13  could make it to those wells at all in 30'years, but

| 14 certainly not in'five or ten years. So it'svnbt-like
15 it's an immediate concern.
16 : Q. Well,’you're assuming that there are nd
17 fractures or any gréss abnorma1ities.
18 A. There's no evidence to that effect at all. .
19 I mean, we do have é lot of wells in the aréa that;——'énd _;

20 we're in a geologically very stable portion of the

21 northwest platform in the Permian basin and there really, :

22 isn't any evidence of large-scale fracturing in that. So
23 we don't have that concern.
24 Q. And if the results of your testing bear that.

25 out, there wduldn't be much of a dispute, would there?

s
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A. That's exactly correct. And that's why I
don't think we need to come back to a new hearing. I
mean, I think that that would be evident in the submittal
of that analysis and of those data to the Division.

Q. I'm not sure if I asked you this and I
apologize 1f I did, because I don't remember. Why did
Targa choose to abandon its plan to drill a new well for
the acid gas injection?  |

A. I don't think you asked me that directly.
But the simple answer is because the existing Well.
provides a s§fe conauit fqr -- for recompletion givén.the
parameters that we talkéd about. And it eliminates one
addiﬁional'perforat;on of the'injection zone that is in
the.immediate vicinitybdf whefe the new well would be
proposed. Qur]original proposal was to replace it with a
well like a hundred feet or 150 feet away.

bAnd:so-what we felt like was upon reVisiting

that, that if we used the existing well and recompleted

it appropriately, it would eliminate. one very close

penetration, sigﬁificant penetration of the‘injectionv
zone.

Q. And why did Targa decide to use the San
Andres’rather than a lower zone?

A. Well, because the‘San Andres and is a very

good reservolr for injecting both acid gas and salt water

|
|
|
g
|
|
%

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f70-9a6626329bbb »



Page 113 ||

1 and because there are -- there is production in lower

2 zones in the immediate vicinity outside the half-mile and
3 approaching the one-mile radius there is production in
4 the Blinebry and the Abo which are deeper zones, and the

5 Glorieta formation which is immediately underneath the

R T

-6 San Andres doesn't have -- the San Andres is probably the
7 best reservoir in this area in terms of its thickness and
8 its net porosity. So it limits the expénsion of that
9 plume to the greatest degree possible.

10. MS. MACQUESTEN: No othef questions. Thank

11  you, Mr. Gutierrez. | |

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commissioner Bailey?

13 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: The current well in
14 .question, was it fracted during its initial driiling?

15 MR. GUTIERREZ: No;‘not to my knowledge.

16 v v CHAIRMAN FESMIREﬁ ‘Has it ever been fracted?
17 MR. GUTIERREZ: I don't believe so. I.can't
18 answer definitively. I've not any evidence in Wéll

19 rééords of any pfoposed fracting of that well.

20 : COMMISSIONER.BAILEY:F Okay. What is the

21 current pressure for the salt water injection in that

22 well?

23 ‘ MR. GUTIERREZ: I think it's running about
24 800 or 900 pounds.

25 ' COMMISSIONER BAILEY: So the 1300 proposed

R e
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1 to be a significant increase over the current.

2 MR. GUTIERREZ: Right. But remember,

3 Commissioner Bailey,‘that the current injection fluid is
4 strictly water. And the mixed injection fluid is going
5 to have a significantly lower specific gravity.so‘the

6 éffective‘bottomlhole pressure would not be -- you have

7 to have the.higher pressure just to get the lower

8 specific gravity»fluid into the formation.

9 | COMMISSIONER BAILEY: What is the pH .of the
10 injected produced water?
11 L MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, the combined acid gas

_12 and water is-probably»going to havevavveryjlow'pH,

13  probably in the neighbérhood of 2 or less,’

14 : COMMISSIONER BAILEY: And what is the
15 current produced water pH?

16 : MR. GUTIERREZ: I believe it's about 6.8,

17 .= something like that.

18 ' COMMISSIONER BAILEY: About neutral then.
19 . MR. GUTIERREZ: Uh-huh. Yes.
1 20 ; - COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Would you wake ‘it up

21 and.go'to Page 13.
22 | MR. GUTIERREZ: I will. 1Is this the page?
23 _ o ‘ COMMiSSIONER BAILEY: Yes. Can.ycu éxplain
24 to me exactly_what we're looking at in this red area.

25 . MR. GUTIERREZ: Oh. This red area is the

T e—— o T NS BTN omen
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approximate outline of the boundary of the Versado South
Eunice Plant. | |

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Oh that's the plant.

MR. GUTIERREZ: Yes.

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: All right. So we
would be moving quite a bit south for the --

MR. GﬁTIERREZ: No, this is of the South
Eunice Plaﬁt,'the oné‘where the well is located.

COMMISSiQNER BAILEY: Okay,'  |

MR._GUTIERREZ: That little dot there, that
purple dot is where the well is now. o

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: And what is:the'_“
tfapezoidai figufe around that dot?

MR. GUTIERREZ: It's roughly the edges of
the property boundary,; the surface ownership of Versado.
in that area. | |

'COMMISSIONER BAILEY: So.it haé nb 
relationship to the'érea of review. |

'MR. GUTIERREZ: No. No. The area of revieQ .
is the circle that is outlined on that figure,'the‘purplé
circle. | | |

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Okay. This is
indicative of the Sén Andres porosity. But yet, only two
wells in your aréa'reviéw have penetrated the San An&res.

So what are your controls for all of the designs that you

e
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have shown here?

MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, it's not only two
wells, there's 25 wells that penetrate the San Andres
within the one-mile area of review. There's only one --
there's only one well penetrating the San Andres within
the half mile. As I mentioned, thére are those two wells
that are about a half mile that are located -- let me.go
to another figﬁre ahd,I can show you. Right here.

The dontfol poihts would be this well, this
well, the existing well; ana then these wells thét arg
out here, and this well thatvis.down.here. And yoﬁ could
see the bias of:thosé éohtro1 poihts where you have the
greatest amount bf data isvwhere we have the greatest‘
understanding.of.What fhét porosity'is iike. And so to
some degree this is affunqtion of what we see based on
the data that we have. |

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. This net feet”éfvj
to 12 pefcent porQsity?

MR. GUTIERREZ: Correct. It's actually --
no, not net feet. It's jusﬁ'net porosity --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: pH porosity.

MR. GUTIERREZ: -- for the entire interval.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So it's the
thickness porosity.

MR. GUTIERREZ: That's exactly right.
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1 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: All right. So this
2 slide is based on five wells? Is that what you said?
3 MR. GUTIERREZ: No. 25.
-4 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: 235.
5 MR. GUTIERREZ: Right.
6 _ COMMISSIONER BAILEY: So with that evidence

7 for the northwest to south porosity flow, porosity

8 preferential direction, isn‘t there an‘inheréht'

9  contradiction betweén this information and the isotropic
10 | radial plug model that you have given us? -

11 MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, yes. Like I explained
12‘V>I>think qualitatively, our sense is that there Qill be
13' some expansion of that in a northwest/southeast'
:14' direction,; which is what we included as a figure in the

15 C-108. Let me get the figure.

16 If you look at Figure 12 in the C-108, I
17 don't haﬁe it up here as a slide, but because -- you can’
.18 see that what we've done is take essentially that area,

19 the calculated area that would be affected, and extend it

20 in a northwest/southeast direction based on that porosity
21 trend. But it is really only a qualitative analysis
22 because I can't -- I just don't have the confidence to be'

23  able to understand exactly how that is Variable for the
24 very reasons which you have just pointed out in terms of

25 the data density there. That's why we resorted back to
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1 providing an analysis based on that idealized plug flow. 3-

2 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: So your model was not
3 able to compensate for the north-to-south direction

4 rather than radial?

5 MR. GUTIERREZ: I just -- we don't have -- I §
6~ don't think we have enough information to be able to %
7 adequately constrain what the longitudinal versus %
8 transVerse‘axis of that ellipsoid is; that is'right. .g
9 | COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Did yoﬁggiv§7a11;the %
10_.'inforﬁation;.ail the details concerning ﬁheimodéls.to thé é
11 Division‘for their évaluation? | é
12 | MR. GUTIERREZ: Yes.
13 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: So bthey have. s.‘igned
14 off on the barameters that you incorporated?.
15 MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, no, thexe:isvsome -~
16 the Division has some concerns I think aboutlﬁhe‘ﬁeﬁ,

17 porosity because of the variability of porosity in that
18 area. Maybe that would be a gquestion better askéd to

19 Mr. Jones. But I mean, the range of porosities that we

20 seé in the érea do range from seven to 12vpercent. And
21  the porosity that we assumed in our displacémenﬁ model is
22 ten percent, which we believe is a reasonable average and
23 what we éxpecﬁ to sée in the vicinity of the well.

24 COMMISSIONER BAILEY: slide No. 28. Your

25 second bullet asking for a Commission ordef béfére YOu
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get the data to assure that your model is correct, isn't
that a faith-based request?

MR. GUTIERREZ: No, absolutely not. I mean,
this is exactly the kind of model that we have uséd in
permitting five of these wells before -- before the
Division. And I believe that within the data that are
available, the way in which we have treated those data
and analyzed those data are within the normal boundé of .
how a geo1ogist‘would analyze a potential wéll:locaﬁioﬁ.

"And you know, I mean, we can only work with-
the data that we have _ Obviougly like I say, we:feel‘
comfortable that with the data that we have_we_underétand -
what the extent of the injected volume is gbing’to be;
And ;hét if we develop data when we drill thé»wélliﬁhat
would indicate-that‘we'have got a significantly different‘
reservbir_than what we anticipate, then obvipusly .-
that's ;—-thét's sqmething that's going to have to be
addressed at’that pdint. |

'But I mean, our experience with thé»San
Andres and with»lookihg at the data that we ha&e‘in £his
area iﬁdicates_that we're going to have a zone that is
going to have approximately maybe somewhere bet&een 60
and 80 feet of net porosity in that interval, you know;
it might be 65 feet of netvporosity.in that interval, it

may be 85 feet of net porosity in that interval. But
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it's certainly not in my view based on what I've seen of
all the wells out there, it's not going to be 50 feet of
net porosity or a hundred feet.

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Sinée we don't have
the scientific basis fdr giving you blanket authority to
start injecting without coming back to the Diviéion or
the Commission for that authority, what would be Targa's
response to ﬁhis Commission requiring that injection not
commence until after yoﬁucome back to hearing to‘give'us
the technical data that confirms your model? | |

MR. GUTIERREZ:. Well, I think the answer ﬁg‘j»;'
that is two-fold. I think'first of all, and I.don't'wanf.'fv

to characterize our discussions with the Division

even asking for that.'vThey.don't have a problem;with
being granted theJaﬁthority to injeét_acid;gas into-that
formation.b
What they are concerned about is over'a.léﬁg
period'gf time, 30 years, what the impact‘of that;is
goingbto be.  And so con$éqﬁently they wanted that
additional déta Colleéted‘and analyzed,.bﬁt they wére nbt
concerned with initiatihg acid.gas injectioh. That's my
understanding_at”least»baSed on the meeting that We had
prior to obtaining that data. They just didn't want —;

they just don't feel comfortable with the long-term
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prediction of what that aerial extent that's going to be
affected is.

CHAIRMAN BAILEY: Okay. That's all I have.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Olson?

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I think I'll follow up
on that a little bit. It seems from the testimony we've
had so far, the main issue on the timing with injection
at the moment is the settlement agreement that occurred .

with the Environment Department; isn't that correct?

MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, I think that that is -

very serious concern on the part of Targa. But I think
that also their intent is to_—— they have already gone
through the whole process of gettlng the plpellne
permitted and all of the rlght of -way obtalned ‘And so
think their goal is to cease relea81ng these alr
pollutants as soon as possible and to commence with the»
injection. |
COMMISSIONER OLSON: And I think I

understand that. But I go back to I guess Commissioner

Bailey's question. It seems like we should have adequate

deta, actual data en what the impacts are going to be
prior to authorizing injection. quldn't ﬁhat be your
typical process that you would follow?

MR. GﬁTiERREZ: Commiesioner Olson, I

believe we do have that data. .And in fact, this is

oo RS
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1 exactly the same process that has been followed on the
2 previous five AGIs that have been permitted through
3 hearing at the Division.. This is the kind of model
4 that's been presented and in -- in several of those
5 cases, as I mentioned, frankly in the majority of them,

6 we did not even have an exiéting'well drilled so we

O B S e S

7 didn't have any data. Here we have an existing well that
8 is drilled into the upper portion of the San Andres and

9 has almost 30 years of injection history.

R S W P

10 COMMISSIONER OLSON: Well, I guess what I

11 understand from the testimony is that Targa is

12 acknowledging that, yeah, we need to‘get some additional

13 data to figure out what these actual impacts are going to

14 be; is that correct? | | :
15 MR. GUTIERREZ: Over a 30-year time period, §

16 what the ultimate extent of that plume might be, yes.

17 COMMISSIONER OLSQN: Ana that.ﬁltimate

18 . extent would affect whether or not there are additi§nai
19 wells out there that may need.tO»be reworked or pluggeaj
20 MR._GUTIERREZg ‘Well, I guess if -- if the

21 additional data indicated that the extent would go beyond

22 that half-mile distance, yes. But‘I mean, that would
23 mean that the prediction based on all of the existing
24 data would have to be 500 percent wrong.

25 | COMMISSIONER OLSON: But I guess what I'm
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1 hearing is that Targa does acknowledge that they are

2 willing to get this additional information that the

3 Divigion's looking at, but they just want to go ahead and

4 inject largely because of this timeframe that comes up
5 because of the settlement agreement; isn't that correct?
6 MR. GUTIERREZ: That's my understanding. I

7 guess again that would probably be a better question to

8 = ask my client directly. I mean, I don't know what all of

9 ‘their motivations are exactly for the timetable. But I
10 do know that is a critical concefn. |
11 ‘ COMMISSIONER OLSON: So I'm just‘—_— I know
12 ! they're -- he's not up here now at fhis point, but it
13 woﬁld seem to me that the logical progression without
14 .this artificial timeline would be that:you brovide the

15 data and then you get authorization based upon the data
16 - to confirm the model and then get‘authqrizétién to

17 - inject. Wouldn't that seem to be the normal process?

18 MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, it isn't the normal
19 ‘process in what has occurred in the‘previouS fiVe.wells.
20 I(meaﬁ, in every‘one of those wells we haﬁe pfesénted‘.
21 a -- as a matter of fact, the exact same kind of model,
22  and in some cases with leés data then we have currently
23 to obtain an authorization to inject.

24 ' In every one of these cases also we have
25 déveloped the -- those data and submitted them to the
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" Department, then we wouldn't have this artificial

timeframe that seems like Targa would be ablevto-prOVide
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Division along with our analysis after the well had been
drilled. |

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Then I_éome back to
Commissioner Bailey's guestion earlier that in this case
we have a lot more wells that penetrate the zone than we
have had in other instances; isn't that correcp?

MR. GUTIERREZ: It is correct but‘théy are

30 years based on all of the data that‘we have today;' I
mean,’ it's -- we're not talking about a,‘you kn§w,'ten or
20 or 30.percent safety margin; we're talkihg'SQO_‘ |
percent. I think that's very significant.-

| COMMISSIONER OLSON: And I gﬁess if1it wés'
possible to get an extension on the timeframés'ih the

settlement agreement with the New Mexico Environment .

the data and then at that point have it confirmed by the
department an -- or by the.Division, and then'get the‘ .
authorization to inject. Wouldn't -- I éueés wiﬁhéut
thatvartificial timeline seems like that wbuld be a
possible procedure. | |

MR. GUTIERREZ: I -- I mean, that would be
possible. But one thing I think I should emphaéize'as

well is that as Ms. MacQuesten mentioned, this well was

A
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already permitted before using this exact same model and
approved by the Division for acid gas injection. 1It's
just the reason why we're here today is because that the
completion of that -- or the recompletion of that weil
was delayed by the need to obtain right—of-way for the
pipeline going to the well itself.

Now, you know, I don't understand why in_a
hearing'that wés‘held with a hearing officer'from the -
Division this approach was satisfactory‘theniand_isn*t
now. |

CQMMiSSIONER OLSON: I guess the otherfthing

that Ms.-MacQuesten‘brought up did concern me. You seem

~to be saying_that the applicant doesn't have the_burden

to show that they should be -- have that authoriza#ionbtq
inject by having the broper data in place first. It

seems to me you're kind of saying that the burden is back
upon_the.agency to have_to come back With the daﬁalthatij' ?
you'pfovide it éhd prove that it needs -- the Casefﬂeéds

to be reopened.'_séems to be backwards from what I'm used

" to workihg through on permitting applications.

MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, like I said,
Commissionér Olsén, I think we feel that the‘data are
adequate to ——‘for thé Commission to approve the proposed
injection projectﬂ_ We do feel that it is importantjﬁé

gather that additional data to refine our estimates.

..... Y e o T
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But again I will mention that like I said,
this was -- this did go to hearing once already and
this -- these data were already reviewed by the
Commission, this was all noticed and it was already
approved. It's just that a timing issue that has
resulted in it not being upiand running right néw.

COMMISSIONERuoLSON: But if the data is
significantly different shouldn't the burden be on the

applicant to come back in and address it?

MR. GUTIERREZ: I mean, I think the -- that

and present it to the Division for their evaluation.  I"

mean, thaﬁ's ——.thatﬂs what my client is proposing.
COMMISSIONER OLSON: And thén how

significantly different does it have to be for us to

reevalﬁate whethéf‘or not the model is correct?

- MR. GUTIERREZ: I think if the data that

I % R T TR

were submitted and the reanalysis showed that theré,was S

‘say within a hundred percent safety factor there would be
‘a potential for those wells to be impacted, then you may

want to put in some kind of requirement to maybe analyze

Bradenhead gas at one of those wells after a certain
number of years of injection to see if there's anything
out there.

I mean, I don't know what options there

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-465-870-9a6626329bbb



Page 127 ||

1 would be. I just don't -- my sense -- not my sense, my
2 professional opinion based on all of the data that we

3 have analyzed and how we have modeled the long-term

4 impact on the reservoir is that the concern, while

5 theoretical, of those wells is not a practical concern

6 within the 1evel of safety margin.that we have between

7 the calculations that have been done based on all of the

8 existing'data.

9 Now, . like I said; I féel very confident that
10.  the porosity and permeability of the San Andres is going
11 to be what we expect that it is from the nearest wells.

12 and from our experience in general with that formation.
13 And the fact thaﬁ ﬁhe very top of that formation which We"
14 do already have légged éorfelates very well with that |

15 other existing well that we have a full log of. But you

16 know, we are going to log it and we are going to core it. -
17 COMMISSIONER OLSON: I guess you were just
18 bringing up another issue, was what is an adequate safety

19 . factor for these types of wells? You said it could be
_20 huﬁdredvpercent, céuld be 500 percent. If it's down to.
21 hundred percent may we need to reconsider. .So what is an
22 adequate safety factor?

23 | MR. GUTIERREZ: I don't know that that's

24 been established. I mean our geheral concern - -- concern I
25 only gets there when We are getting into that 50 to 106 ;'
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percent range. That's based on our experience and based

‘on what -- I mean, this acid gas injection is nothing

new. .I mean, it is being done not only in the state of
New Mexico, it's being done in Texas, other .states and it
had been done for 20 years in Alberta.

And so there's a lot of data that goes into

~our understanding of how these things behave. So but is

there a -- I mean, and I think one of the other things

which I think needs to be brought forth here too, is that f

routinely these kinds of projects are approved for CO2

injection, which is the bulk of what is being injected

~into here for EOR kinds of projects.

And you know, that understanding is

" incorporated in how we evaluate how these plumes expand
“over time in a reservoir. So a direct answer, I think an

.appropriate -- my own opiﬁion_is that an appropriate

saféty margin is somewhere between 50 and a hundred
percent. And I think we're five times over that here.

' COMMISSIONER OLSON: . What I was curious. Do

‘any other states br Canada apply any type of safety

factor to these, not regulatory --

MR. GUTIERREZ: Not one -- as a matter of

fact, you may be aware that EPA just finished

promulgating Class 6 carbon sequestration regs. And even
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more so. And also because the dense phase of gas is a
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safety factor detailed for CO2 sequestration, but rather
a mechanism to evaluate and assure that the caprocks are
adequate and that the well construction is adequate.
There may be some established safety factor out there;
I'm not aware of it in any state.

COMMISSIONER OLSON: 'And you were just
mentioning too about potential monitoring of wells

outside the half mile. So is that part of any of the

MR. GUTIERREZ: No.

COMMiSSIONER OLSON: -- fbr the'C—lOSehere?

'MR. GUTIERREZ: No.

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Okay. And then one
last question. _YOu were-talking earlieriabout the thief
zone that'e -- ﬁhat is going to be 150 feet abo?e this
zone. Whatfwould:prevent migration into that thief.zone?

-MR;'GUTIERREZ: Well, two-fold. The bulk --
the contrast between vertical.ahd horizontal perﬁeability'
in the San Andres ie huge. It's over 10 X. So I mean, |

the likelihood is that this expansion occurs laterally

lighter than water phase, what happens to the plume is
the few places, kind of demonstration projects where
people have looked at the migration and the modeling of

acid gas and COZ plumes in reservoirs indicates that you
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get kind of an inverted bell shape. The plume over time
tends to be narrower at the bottom and wider at the top

because of this buoyancy effect.

COMMISSIONER OLSON: 'Okay. That's all the
questions I have.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Speaking of which, was
compositional ﬁodeling considered for this proposal?

MR. GUTIERREZ: You mean geochemicél
mbdeling?' |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Geochemical compositipn
modeling. | |

MR. GUTIERREZ: No.

_CHAIRMAﬁ,FESMIRE: So we're talking thié'
médel; it's actually a calculation,‘isn't it? o

MR. GUTIERREZ: That is correct. Yeah. I
think -- I aidnit‘ﬁse the words "plug deel." Ivthink.
those were words»that the Diviéion camejup withf :But
basically it's a calculation of the area‘that would be
affected, a mathematical calculation.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: What is the irreducible

water saturation in the San Andres out here, do you know?

MR. GUTIERREZ: I don't know. I think -- I
don't know the exact number. I think it's -- it's
somewhere in the -- I think it's somewhere in the 15

percent range but I don't know the exact.
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CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Was that taken into .

&

account in the calculation? 3

MR. GUTIERREZ: No, it was not. TIt's ,:§

strictly a displacement calculation. §

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So we have got 15/100th %
percent error, 15 percent error right now in the 500
percent safety factor, don't we? If we use your 15

percent. The irreducible water saturation was treated

like porosity in the calculation and it really wouldn't
be porosity in the calcﬁiaﬁion, would it? | |

MR. GUTIERREZ: Wellﬁ'it may -- that
irreducible water saturation is still goingito takeASOmev'
dissolution of that acid gas into that water. But it
won't be effectively displaced. But”evenbif you took
that into account, I don't think -- I mean, it's not‘
going to significantly.

Because agaih; one of thé things thét's &ery 15
important to remember is when we talk about like what you,'g
just mentioned, the 15 percent reduction, what that |
translates to in this calculation would be a 15 pefcent
reduction in the pordsity available to be digplaced.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: ' Right.

MR. GUTIERREZ: And that doesn't mean a 15
percent increase in that radius. It's a substantially

less increase in that radius than 15 percent. Because
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what happens is as the radius expands, you know, it -- it
incorporates a'significahtly greater volume. That's what
I‘was trying to show in that graph earlier where you see
that it takes four times the volume injected to increasé
the radius twice.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Do we have any idea of
relative viscosity of the formation fluid and the

injectate at formation reservoir -- at formation

temperatures and pressures?

MR. GUTIERREZ: No, although in a
qualitative sense the acid gas in a liquid phase'tendé to
be slipperier than the ;—

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So we will have a very_‘
poor mobility ratio.

MR. GUTIERREZ: That's.right;

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE:_ So our displacement
efficiency is going to be much iower ﬁhan the hundred.‘
percent that you have calculated.

MR. GUTIERREZ: Well, it will -- it may be
ééﬁewhat lower.‘ It will be éffected, however, by theb
fact that that fluid is beiﬁg injected in conjunction
with produced water as well. |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. But it's still --
the addition of this slippérier fluid that you're talking

about to the produced water is going to have a tendency

X
T —— R o ST T ﬁj‘
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to adversely affect the mobility ratio, correct?

MR. GUTIERREZ: I think you may be getting
into a level of reservoir engineering that I don't know
if I'm -- if I can honestly answer that. In a general

sense I would say yes. What the extent of that impact or

how -- I can't quantitatively state.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So we really don't know
what that -- we have a pretty -- you know, aside from the
500 percent safety factor that you have been talkiﬁg:»

about, we know that it's going to -- it's going to be

more than the .2 miles because there's going:to be some,

due to the mobility ratio and due to the phase

separation -- or the gravity separation_that'you talked

about, there are going to be some portions of that

reservoir that are going to exceed where the radius is
going to exceed .2 miles, right?

MR. GUTIERREZ: Yes. Although the effect of

‘those factors, the mobility ratio for example, are
‘really -- what I do know is that -- enough about
- reservoir characteristics that those factors relative to

the porosity they are pretty small compared to the

porosity. The porosity is really the key.
And I mean, so if -- I think that the change

in porosity from say a couple or three percent difference

~in net porosity is more than going to make ﬁpvfor those

T R e
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1 kinds of factors.

2 CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.

3 MR. GUTIERREZ: That's why we have_used this
4 kind of calculation and why this célculatién_is used.

5 industry-wide to look at this behavior.

6 : CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Let's switch

7 entire subjects here. The pipeline that will be.bringing

8 the ~- what will be the pH of the acid gas coming intQ_

9 the chpressor, the wellhead compressor, do yOu»kn§W§ 

10 . - MR. GUTIERREZ: I don't.
11 o CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So do we knéw-what'the pH
12 rating on the pipe is? br is this a questioﬁ‘ﬁe sﬁbuld

13 ask Mr. White?

14 | : ‘A. ‘Ivthink it's a gquestion you shoﬁld ask:-_

15 - Mr. Whité. We haven'tzbeen involved in the-desigﬂiof the' z
16 | pipeline. L

7 ' ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I have no further ."f

18  questions. Mr.. Scott, do you have any rebuttal -- I mean
19 redirect on. the --

20 : | : MR. SCOTT:. Any other qﬁestions?

21 o _CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I was in ehgineer mode;
22 I'm now going into iaWyer mode. Do you have an? iédirect

23 on the subjects covered by the --

24 MR. SCOTT: We have covered quite a bit of

_ |
25 ground. I'm wondering if we could take a five-minute '%
£
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break so I could organize my thoughts and then ask him |
these questions. é

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Well, as much I don't §
like to, why don't we take an hour break and go to lunch. %

. S

And we will reconvene here and quarter to 2:00.‘ And we §
will reconvene at‘a quarter to 2:00. . N §

MR. SCOTT: Thank you very much.

(Break.)

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Back on the record. At
this time we}re going ﬁd reconvene in Case No. 14411,
it's the de novo applicétion of Agua Sucia, LLC to
reinstate the administfative order SWD 559 fornavsaitlv
water disposal in Lea County, New Mexico. _This ié thé:
case we took up.earlief_this_morning and had to make é
change to the order.‘>Counsel assures us and from my.
review it appears they‘aidvmake the change that we“
requested. Is there a motion to adopt the order as -
presented by the counsel to £he Secretary and the
Secretary to us? |

COMMISSIdﬁER'BAILEY: I so move.

COMMISSIONER OLSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: All those in favor

signify by saying "aye." Let the record reflect the'

Commission has adopted the order presented in Case

No. 14411, Order No. R-13265-D as in delta. It will be
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signed by the members of the Commission and sent to the

Secretary for recording.

At this time we will take up Case No. 14575,

I believe the record should reflect that all three

Commissioners have successfully returned from lunch, we .

therefore have a quorum. And we will go back I believe-

we were.about to begin the cross-examination -- no.
Redirect, I'm sorry, of Mr. Gutierrez. Mr. Scott, are
you prepared to begin?

MR. SCOTT;' Yes, sir..

CHAIRMAN'FESMIRE: .Please do so.

E R .
RE-DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. SCOTT: |
Q. Mr. Gutierrez; there have been quite a

number of questions asked of ydu about_the data in this
case that you relied on in putting together C-108. .Iﬁ 
your opinion as a profeséional geblogist who has
permitted these types of wells in a number of contexts,
is the data that.you reliéd_upon'here adéquate in‘terms
of type and qualiﬁy and it is of the kind that is
customarily relied upon in permitting these kinds of

wells?

A. Yes, it is. 1It's the same type of data that

we have used in permitting these types of wells and other

ooman o e =
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injection wells.

o
|
%
Q. And I believe you indicated that it's the i
same kind of data that was used to permit this well %
previously; is that correct? %

A. Yes, sir. |

Q. And reference wés made to prior>0rder 12809;
is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you involved in the pfoceedings that

.led to the issuance of that order?

A. Yes, sir.
Q. And what was your involvement?
A. I prepared the C-108 and I testified at a

hearing in front of the Division to present that.

application and to -- that résulted in that ofdef.
Q. and Order R-12809 pertained t§ the alternate: ;

well that was proposed to be drilled within a hundred N

feet of the well that's the issue of this proceeding?

A. Yes.

Q. aAnd who was the hearing offiéer in that
proceeding? |

A. Mr. Jones.

Q. That's the same Mr. Jones th'submitted

prefiled testimony in this case?

A. Yes, sir.

e .v oo
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1 Q. And in connection w1th that case or with

2 Order 12809, were any of the concerns that Mr. Jones

3 identified in his prefiled testimony raised?
4 A. Well, I think there were questions raised
5 about those wells, but they were addressed in the same

6 way I've addressed them here today and they resulted in

7 that order.

8 - Q. Okay. And did that order authorize

9 injection of acid gas into the well?

10 A. It did.

11 Q; And was there any precohdition'on'bbtaining.
12  approval of a time limit or volume limit prior toﬂthat

13 - injection? o |

i4 . A. No, sir.

15 0. The C-108 that you prepared in this.CaSé,_I>
16 vthink you indicated earlier that with thé exception bf
.17v one element, all of ﬁhe testing and rélatedkconéerns thét

18 Mr. Jones raised were already addressed in the C-108 and
19 part of the application; is that right?
20 A. Yes. Furthefmore, all of the tests that

21 we're talking about; logging, using formation

22 microimaging, doing side wall cores, and step-rate
23 injection testing, is a -- is routine in the completlon
24 and development of these wells. It's -- 1t's not

something that is being done because of any inadequacy in
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1 the existing data that we have here, it's just the normal

2 procedure because it provides information that allows the

3 operator to better complete and design and operate the

4 well.
5 Q. Okay. There was a lot of question about the
6 calculation that was used to determine impact after‘30

7 years.

8 A. Yes.

9 Q. One of the questions concerned-thé porQSify  :
iO trend. Do you recall some of these questions ﬁrom“
11 Commissioner Bailley? |
12 : A. Yes.
13 Q.‘ And you looked at I believe it.Qaé slidé‘——

14 the slide that showed the wells to the northeas;»¢f oﬁf
15 vproposed well. |

16 A. We;lOOked at two slides. One was thé

- 17 porosity, net poroéity map and the other Was just:ﬁhé‘
18 simple map of wells. Yes.

19 | _ Q. Slide 11 is the one in particular I'a like'

20 you to look at.

21 A. kaayi Do you want me to put it back up on
22 the screen? | |

23 Q. If you couid that would be fine.

24 A. Okay. Let's see. I guess the projectof méy

25 be turned off. This is Slide 11.

PAUL

BRSSP SRR

BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-4f65-87 0-9a6626329bbb




Page 140 |

1 Q. Correct. And the porosity trend that you
2 had identified runs from essentially looking at that map -
3 on the lower right-hand quarter, towards the upper

4 left-hand quarter?

5 A. Well, that's the elongated trend of these‘
6 porosities, yes.
7 ’ Q. So the trend that you have identified Woﬁla
8 run away from that cluster of wells that's to the north_
9 and east of the injeétion location, correct? |
10 A. I would expect that the —;_whateVer_

11 extension of that injected plume would probably trend.i' 
12 along that porosity trend, too.

13 ' Q. The 30 Years that was calculated or £h¢

.14 + calculation that yoﬁ reliéd on looked.at impacﬁ‘ovér 30'

15  years, correct?

16 A. Yes, sif.

17 Q. So we're not talking about a migratioh today
18.. or tomorrow or within the next year; this is é longer
'19 _ﬁerm projection, correct?

20 A. Or withiﬁ the next ten or 15 years; we'ré.

21 talking about 30 years of accumulated injection ét that
22 maximum rate.

23 Q. Okay. And there were a number of questions
24 about the porosity énd variability of the porosity in the

25 area. And I believe you indicated that the variability
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is within about five percent, somewhere between seven and
12 percent?

A. That's correct.

Q. Is that a narrow range of variability in
your experience?

A. Yes, that's the typical range'for the San
Andres. And actually you can get variation in a single
well from five to 12 pefcent in the San Andres. " But in
terms of average porosity for the entire San Andres

interval, that's a pretty good average for all of the San

'Andres wells in the state.

MR. SCOTT:  No further questions of this
witnéss. |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: ‘Ms. MacQuesten, anyﬁhing :
on that? |
| MS.. MACQUESTEN: Yes.

* . % *

- RE-CROSS EXAMINATION

BY MS. MACQUESTEN:

Q. Mr. Gutierrez, you brought up the prior

permits that were issued in connection with this acid gas

 injection well project. Order R-12809, that was an order

allowing acid gas injection into a newly drilled well
that's adjacent to the subjedt well?

A. That's correct.
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0. And that was the case that was heard in a

hearing before Mr. Jones; is that right?

A. That is correct.

Q. And there Were no objections or protests
made to that application, were there?

A. None that I recall.

Q. And the apélication was granted based on
your testimony regarding the half-mile ACOR; is that
right? | '

A. It was granted based on all of the
information that was submitted in the C-108 which
included a detailed look at a half mile and then oﬁt to
two miles as is required by the application.

Q. _Dia you bring to the hearing examiner's
atténtion the problems with that well that's bperated by
Legacy within abhalf mile that Targa is now'propbsing to.
femediate? | |

A. No. Because originally the intent was as I

discussed earlier in my testimony today, was that we were

' going to not use that very upper portion of the San’

Andres. Which we still are not going to use the very
upper portion, but wé weren't going ﬁo even use the 250
feet that we're talking abouﬁ using now.

Q. So you didn't bring the Legacy well to thé

hearing examiner's attention?

PRIy
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1 A, That's not correct. The Legacy well was
2 certainly included in the application and presented as --
3 and the information on that well was presented in the

R P R 23

4 application.

5 Q. And you provided your expert,opinion that it

6 wasn't an issue:

7 | A. That is‘correct.

8 : Q. Did you bring to the hearing examiner's
9 attention the seven‘wells that Mr. Jones has now
10 expfessed concern about that‘are located immediately .

11 outside the half-mile area of review?
12 A They were included in the C-108. I didn't
13 specifically call them out as potential problems. I

14 still don't believe they are potential problems. .

A8 N 35 1 AR TN L W SR

15 Q. Okay. Now, once you got that application
16 approved there was an administrative amendment; is that

17 right?

18 A. Actually there were two amendments. There
19 was a original amendment I think to correct an ---I don't
20 remember what the exact correction was, but there was a

21 12809-A that was issued, I think it was relative to the
22 pressure. I just don't recall what it was.
23 , But then there was a subsequent application

24 for administrative amendment that changed from drilling a

25 new well and plugging the old one for the reasons that I

df102fc0-f551-4165-8f70-9a6626329bbb
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1 specified earlier, and that was SWD-1161.

2 Q. So Targa got a permit after notice and

3 hearing to drill a new well for acid gas injection and

4 then requested administrative approvai to change it to

5 retrofit an existing Well for the same project.

6 A. That's correct.

7 Q. And the Division -- the Division épproved_

8 that without any nétice or hearing.

9 A. I think there was a notice, I don't thiﬁk
10 there was a.hearing. I know there wasn't a heéfing but’I

11  believe it was a notice.

12 Q. I'd like to.yéu to show me wherevthat-nétiée
13 is. ‘

14 MR. SCOTT:_ I object.

15 - MS. MacQUESTEN} I'd like the Commission to

16 take administrative notice of the SWD-1161 and its

17 discussion of the notice in that case and if it wishes it
18 can consult the case file in that case.
19 CHAIRMAN 'FESMIRE: Okay. The Commission

20 will take administrative notice of that. Would.you

21 repeat the humber»pieése?

22 MS.‘MACQUESTENQ Tt's SWD-1161.

23 Q. (BQ,MS._MACQUESTEN) Now, the reason we're
24 here today is thaﬁ order'expired; is that correct?

25 A. I think that's the position of the Division.
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Q. Right. And if we didn't press that

position, we would still be under that SWD-1161 that was
issued without notice and hearing.

MR. SCOTT: Objection. Mr. Gutierrez
testified that was --

A. I don't know -- I know there was not a
hearing, but I don't know'if -- I believe that there was
a legal notice but I don't know that there was a hearing.

Q. (BY MS. MACQUESTEN) Okay. Fair enough.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: To the extent of the
answer, I'll overrulé thevobjection.'

A. That's whét»I was trying to point out
earlier, that there Was:a'legal'notice.

o,  (BY MS. MACQUESTEN) I'll agree with you on
that; an advértisement was made or‘légal notice was
posted. But let the recérd show what‘further notice was
done‘beyond that. Now,‘so if Mr. Jones had concerns

about that Legacy well or the seven wells that he found

. just outside the half mile, he would have to file a case

and come in and object tO‘Targa's permit and presumably
ask for that permit télbe aﬁended.

A. I don't know ﬁhat's a question that -- I
mean, that would -- I don't know what the Division would
have to do.

Q. Let me ask you something in connection with

EPORTERS
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this process. Were you the consultant for Anadarko on an
acid gas injection well in San Juan County for the
Anadarko San Juan natural gas processing plant?

A. Yes.

Q. And in that case the application requested
very specific footages for the injection interval; isn't
that correct?

A. No.

Q. Don't you recall that you'requested
permission for disposal at the depth of 6500_feet to 6700
feet? |

A. We requested permission to dispose of acid

gas into the Entrada formation. Which because the

nearest control well that we had was estimated -- was
five miles away, we didn't know the exact depth to which

that formation would be encountered;

So we said that in our application -- and in’

fact‘in the findihgs of the order, it'says that we
anticipate finding the Entrada formation between 6500 and
6700 feet depth. When we actually drilled the well the
same Entrada formatiéh was éﬁcountered at 6550 to 6500
feet in depth. |

Q. So it turned out that when you actually
drilled it didn't actually meet ybur prediction.

A. In terms of depth; that is correct.
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Q. And because the order was written with a

specific footage that caused a problem for Targa.

A. Not for Targa.
Q. I'm sorry. Anadarko.
A. Yeah. .I mean, in our opinion it should not

have caused a problem because the injection interval is
still the same formation. 2and there's no -- I mean,
that's not an unusual variation given that the control
waé fivé»miles away .

Q. But unfortunately since the ekaminer héd
written the order with a’épecific fObtage.that didhft

match the actual footage, Anadarko was required to file a

~request for an amendment to the order.

A. Well, we're in that process now.. I don't

.know what ultimatély will be required.

Q. | Qkay. Is.it_your undefstanding that the OCD
is requiring an émendment to the order With notice?  |

A. It's my undéfstanding that that's what's
been discussed with the Division, yes.

Q. _ Now, if the order had been writﬁen to
provide -~

MR. SCOTT: I'm going to object at this

point, Mr. Chairman. This seems to go well beyond the
scope of redirect examination of this witness.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten?
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all of thoée,problems with that permit, couldn't‘yéu?-

| approximatélY'between 6500 and 6700 feet, which is thé»

. Thank you.

Page 148
MS. MACQUESTEN: Just one more question

would tie it up.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, you did open

B S R a7

the door to comparing other applicatiqns gso I think she's
entitled to one more question.

0.  (BY MS. MACQUESTEN) If the permit had
provided that Anadarko was allowed to inject into the
interval that the application had requested and allowed
Anadarko to coilect the appropriate data ahd‘then_defineuv

what interval it really wanted, you could have avoided..
A. Right. If the order had been wfittén;to say

way that we requested it.
Q. And then collect the data and adjust the
order. | | |
A.‘ 'No.' No. I said there wouldn't'havé.been
any need for adjusting £he order. |

© 'MS. MACQUESTEN: I think that's all I have..

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anything from the
Commission?
COMMISSIONER OLSON: No.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, anything ybu

want to add?
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1 MR. SCOTT: Nothing further.

2 -CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much,

3 Mr. Gutierrez. Is thét the end of your case, Mr. Scott?

4 MR. SCOTT: We would reserve the right to

5 have either Mr. Gutierréz or Mr. White respond tobsome:of' 
6 the citizen comments that we understand may bé pro&ided

7 this afternoon."But other than that we have:no further

8 direct teétimony. |

9 | CHAiRMAN.FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, I believe
10 you reserved your'opéning. o
11 MS.' MACQUESTEN: Yes. Before I get to that,

12 what will the procedure be for the rest of”the,daY?. Wi11

13 we be taking the.public-comments or will YOu be having

14 CCD present its case?

15 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: My intention was to'have;;u:
16 the OCD presént.its‘case and then take public_COmﬁents,; |

17 I don't know how long the OCD case is going to be so --

18 MS. MACQUESTEN: Can you give me some idea
19 of the time that you will allow.for our Case?. Sd we_can
20 adjust the pfeéentaﬁidn to match the time that YOu can

21 give us.

22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: -‘Given that the Commission
23 has two cases té.deliberate.dn this afternoén and decide

24 how we're going to manage the orders, I would hope as

25 quickly as you can and still hit the points in your case,

T S TR T
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1 okay?

2 MS. MACQUESTEN: Okay.

3 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Would you like the public
4 comments to go fifst or would you --

5 MS. MACQUESTEN: I just wanted to make sure
6 that the folks who came here to give public comment have

7 that opportunity and that this doesn't go so long that
. 8 they are discouraged.
9 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, would you mind’

10 if we did that now?

11 - MR. SCOTT: I have no objection.

12 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I understand Mr. Skiler
13 and Mr. Boyd, you”bothiwant to make comments? Now, we
14 .. allow thaﬁ undef our rules but you have to understaha

15 that the attorneys will be allowed to ask questions. -

16 Whichever one of'you - -

17 MR. SCOTT? Ivdo have one point. As'I Z
18 understand it, neither of these gentlemen havebfiled a ;
19 prehearing statemenﬁ-or’an entered appearance. And they é
20 are iimited.strictly'to Eomment and can't present any é
21 technical evidence. z
22 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Correct. These are :

23 comments and will be treated as such by the Commission.
24 Who wants to go first? Mr. Skiler, why don't you come on

25 up. If you'd like to, why don't you sit down and start
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company, I'm a production foreman in the field. And as

A
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by giving us your whole name and spelling it for the
court reporter.
MR. SKILES: My name is Robert Greg Skiles,

last name is S-K-I-L-E-S. And I'm being affected by this

well due to the fact that my property is two-tenths of a
mile south of the South Plant. 'That's where my -- that's
nmy deeded property and that's my home, that's where my
house is. .

And being.a landowner, homeownet, husband
and father, that's the reason‘I“m here is to make sure
that nothing's hastily done. Especially when_I hear the
words "H2S," that's a concern to me. Because I élso work

in the oil and gas industry, I work‘for;an 0il and gas

we're talking about somé of this stuff I can relate to
it. -

. Like I.éaid, main reasdn I'm here is I could
care less about my ——‘i mean, I care about it, but my
water in my water well is noﬁ a priority to.me as far as
éompared to my welfare.of my family; That's the main
reason I céme here to -- to just addfess my concerns.
Just in reading this preséntation --

-CHAIRMAN»FESMIRE: And that'S the H2S plan?
What's the documenﬁ you're_referring'té?

MR. SKILES: I'm sorry. That is what I was
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sent registered mail.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.

MR. SKILES: I think it's the same
presentation. And one thing that I'd like to add is in
the picture that we have presented here on the front, my
property -~ it shows on some of the diagfams én the
inside that my property is in this one-mile rédius) but

it's not in this picture. And why, I don't know. But

it's not in there.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.

MR. SKILES: I'm not an engineer, I'm not a

chemical engineer, I'm just a field person. And like I

said, I'm a landowner and homeowner.  Ahd i‘know;that -
that precautions will be ﬁéken to protéct individuéls,
but there's one‘thing I'd like to say if it wouid,be
ailowed, that Mr. Gutierrez éaid.

I respéct the man, he ééems knoWledgeable.
But  one thing he said earlier was that they.looked at
having a well that was closer to the plant in Eunice.
But it was -- looked at that maybe it shqﬁld be‘movéd
further away from the Eunice_population._'And you know,
that's -- that's kind of like a comment-that, why aré we
removing it away from this group and moving it out to my
group? And you know, and if everything's‘as safe as we

say that it is, then why are we moving it away from the
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s

population in Eunice? So with that, I wanted to be
brief, just wanted to voice my concern.
CHATIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. White, do yéu have
any question of this commenter? |
MR. SCOTT: No.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten?

MS. MACQUESTEN: No. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Commission? Thank you

T

very much, Mr. Skiies, Thank you very much( sir.

MR. SKILES: I appreciate itﬁ.sirf

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Boyd, wouia:you sﬁart_
out by stating your name and spelling it for the new'5
court repbrter. |

MR. BOYD: My name is James Irving Boyd énd
I live southeast‘ofvEpnice. And my property.léps GYer
into the questidned éreas. Can I sit over heré so I can
look at everybodYé “

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Sure.

MR. BOYD: I appreciate the opportunity to
come here and I;m sure not a speaker; I'm kind of iike
Greg; I'm a family man, I work out in the fieid( and ﬁy
education is high school in Eunice and what I'vezlearnt
through life; ~Bﬁt I've foﬁnd lots of stuff in.hefe, I've
listened to a lot of things that's been said, thefe are

some concerns that I had and concerns that y'all have

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f70-926626329bbb



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

20

21

22

23

24

25

in this room it‘appears to be shut up. But if I dump ten

Page 154 |

brought up.

And you know, one of the things that's
really important is what confines their product into this
plume they are talking about? What -- you know, if you
put this product into a porous area then why shouldn't it
spread out more and not plume up so much? I kind of

think along the lines of if I dump ten barrels of water

barrels of water_in this room first thing yoﬁ know over
some of it's gping to be over there in the hallway aﬁda
the bathrooms. |

And y'all have been talking about éﬁidencea
and so forth about the porosity of this well'bore £Q
prevent -- I guessvpfeQent'this stuff from floWing tad“ .fé_
far or migrating that far. And of courae I wouldv;hink'
it would be Targa's advantage to the more --.more-fluid' N
that this well would accept the more they could:inject.. |

And I realize that there's liﬁits on‘it,
that y'all have got a certain number of-barrelss |
specified. But I»just can't feature from ﬁhings that
I've seen in life is how this fluid is going to. be.
injected and nét spread out to the paths of least
restriction even though it ia underground.

And one of the things is also, thé'other

wells in the area. I heard the questions being asked has
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Page 155
this well been fracted? . Is it fractured? What about the

wells that are in the area thatbhave been fracted,
possibly fractured, that extends into the plume area?
What have we got there then?

There's so many questions. And I'm not
against an acid gas well, I was construction
superintendent over the installation of a pipeline.to.an
acid gas well, and I'm not against them. But I am

against them if they are put into a pay that has got so

-many wells penetrating that pay.

And I also have a lot of questions and I
know your time is limited.. But this up on their

presentation it séys that the légal notices was-provided

~in the "Lovington Leader." How many people from Eunice

read the "Lovington Leader"?

Right here in Page 2 of-this book thét they
sent out it séys a legal notice of the heafing date'will
be published 20 days prior ﬁo the hearing in thé "Hobbs
Daily News Sun." .And you kﬁow, I don't assume that a lot,ff
éf people in Eunice would 5—_w§uld be very interésted'in
this hearing. I don't kﬁow that; But they didn't have
the opportunity to be. And a lot of people, the affected
personnel, when they receive these notices, well, we're

protected. The OCD is going to review this case and if
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our trust in.
On another page in here, it's Page 10, it's

got a statement in here and it says that, "Impacted by

‘the 30-year period of injections are based on the

assumptions." Assumptions to me are not fact. That

‘worries me.

Another thing that's of concern to me is the
illustration of the adjacent water wells in the area.
And one of my neighbors that got this documentation he

said, "Irvin, I'd be with you today but .I got to go to

".the doctor." He nearly had to have his foot remoVed_

because of an infection and he's in the process for

several months of having that foot worked on. And he

'said, "I can't come" but he said, "I can tell you this,

that the water wells that are noted on my place, there's

not nearly all the wells listed there."

I looked at the documentation aiso, noxr afe

“the water wells listed on my property. And I also know

that there's many monitor wells and recovery wells that's

. in these areas here that, you know, they are the same

purpose, they penetrate the water supplies. And you

know, it's kind of like Greg said. "If this stuff

.penetrates the water supply that's very, very serious.

But if itbhappens to find a path to the surface, it's

more serious immediately."
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Because you know, it's provided to
documentation in here 1,000 parts per million is lethal.
And it's less than that if you have a extended time
period. We're talking about a 150,000 parts per million
of H2S traveling dowﬁ the pipeline and being inserted
into this well.

If we were sure that there's no paths of
escape then that might be a perfect soluﬁion. Bu£‘I

can't see how anybody could be sure that there's not any

" exits for this. And we have also got in this book this

circlé here. Before I'éVer got this book we drawed. a map
on ourbranch maps of this affectea area;

And my wife went to the OCD wébsite énd Shé'
pulied-off all the wells that were listed, oil”wells»in
this area.‘»And in this book right here and some of theée
pagés are tWo to three pages where there's a littie
explénatidn’of problems. That's how many pages of wells
that - she pulledboff in a mile radius off the OCD website
that penetrate the San Andres pay. A lot of these wells
in here says,,"Spud date 1900. Plug date 1900." And.
theré's other»things in there like that that's -- that I
wonder well if this is true, which it's not true --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Boyd, that's the

‘default. We don't have the data that prints that out.

'MR. BOYD: That's exactly what I was gding

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-4165-8f70-9a6626329bbb



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
19
20
21
22
23

24

25

Page 158 |
to bring that up. That means that the data to these

wells is not available. So we don't know how the well is
plugged, how it's cemented, if it's operational, you
know, if it's got the proper cementing.

And there's a well listed in here, 1937, and
I'm going to think that '35, '37 is some of the oldest
wells out there. And I think this is one in an old field
because all this was oid when I was -- can barely |
remembér.and I've lived there all my life.

Bﬁt‘What I wanted to bring forth ﬁQ y'ail is
some of these older wells that are in this area yéu-don't‘
have records on the drilling of them and how thgy have
been cemented; 'Ahd I don'ﬁ have any faiﬁh thaﬁ ﬁhis
solution cah'tbcomé_up. |

You heard testimony that, "I don't expect
this éasing thatis exposéd to last very long at the v
well.™" -Ahd.you talked'with him about that. That's:thé 
same thing about ail'these casings that are in thaﬁ area.
They don't have the integrity that this disposal weil is
going to have. - They'ére ~-- they are of the old schooi.
They have probably got‘a casing through all these pays.
So if somebody needed to pérf them and take minerals out
of this pay_of ]e) fdrth,vthat it's not cemented. And
they are probably_——.I wonaer‘if they even had

capabilities of pumping cement to that point. I don't
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know. But I do have a lot of questions about that.
And I can tell you that -- and this is not a

well in that area,'it's to illustrate that there is

problems. Probably around a mile-and-a-half due east of

where this well is going to be there was a well drilled

on my property. And the people producing it plugged it.
And I was out of town and when I come back I went up to
see why the rig was,gone, th it was plugged. é

When I got there there was brine water |
flowing up around the dry hole marked but they had
already plugged it; _Thé OCD had to come in and had to
drill out all the plugs aﬁd replug it. But that is Ohé
illustratién that,we'don{t know everything about the
plugging thaf's_out.there Qn-all these wells that are in
that afea.‘

Anoﬁher-well that's.not far from thefe, and
if you look in this -- théselOCD records, quite a few of
the wells have Casing prObiems listed as pioblems in
here. So we'dd knéw‘thatbthefe's casing problems out
there. And you know, I understand and I know that some
of these pluggihg fecérds that even are submitted are'not_
right. 1I've heard péople'talking'about reentering --

MR. SCOTT: Mr. Chairman, I'm going to
object at this'poinf. :There's a great deal of hearsay

he's trying to introduce to the extent he's going through
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 talked about a valve it wduld'slam.shut if somebody runs

over the wellhead which is not likely at all and I can

Page 160

a lot of these detailed records that it's bordering on

technical testimony. I'm trying to give him some
latitude but I do‘get.concerned that et some point we're
getting a lot of technical information for the record.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE:. Mr. Boyd, he does have a
point. I'd hoped that yoﬁ-WOuld stick to your epinion in
teliing us and refraining from referring to specific
evidence for this caee; Because your testimOny is --
is -- it's.not testimony. Your etatement is going in the
record.but it's net sworn teetimony.. And it we have to
be very careful on that fine'line,.okay?

MR. BOYD: Okay. One of the other huge

concerns that I have is you talk about all of the safety

agree that's not'likely.‘
That's the_safety"precaution that they said

was g01ng to be built 1nto the well. I understand also

that along the plpellne where the space is for the air to

flow through, if there's H2S picked up in the sniffer in ;'
that, then thete‘s valves at the well and at the plant
that will slam shut. |

I haven't heard anybody address the opinion

that this pipeline is carrying the same fluids, gases, as y

IWAULI&ACAIHQOFESSIOMU“.CCNJRTI!EPCHTTERS
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1 this well is injecting. And this well goes straight down

2 into the ground and it doesn't have nearly the exposure

3 of four-and-a-half miles of pipeline. Nobody's talked

R A ST

4 about what happens if a piece of equipment hits this

5 pipeline. Poly pipelines.are hard to fill with a piece

T R e

6 of equipment. You will have a hole in it before you fill

7 it.
8 - And if that happened I'm sure that it would i
9 show a pressure drop and these valves would close but you §

10 would have four-and-a-half miles of 50 pound, 16-inch

11 volume of gas to be released into the atmosphere. You

T S RS TSy S

12 have got four-lane Highway 18 on one side, YOu have got
13 railroad tracks on one side, you have got South Loop 207
14 going down to Eunice on another side. 'Also within

15 ‘probably a half mile of this pipeline'there'svseveral

16 residences.

17 - And that seems to be where some available
18 = land is for people to be buYing and people -- there's

19 more and more residences all the time here; ' So we're
‘20“ talking about 30 years of this. And we're also talking
21 about when they stop injécting at 30 years if their

22 permit is not renewed, that fluid is going to be there
23 from now on until something releases it.i And it's‘going

24 to be something for -- that's goihg to affect the

N 5 3 TS

25 producers in that area if we want to drill for minerals
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1 in there or if they want to do this or something, it's

2 going to impact ali these people and they are going to

3 have to take all this into consideration.

4 : But I just, I have no feel of safety in this

5 pipeline. You talked about having a three-inch along the

6 top at a certain depth so if it was hit the three-inch

7  would be hit first. A lot of times, and I make my living
8 _with pipeline, when you go out you havevgot guys that .

9 will shovel spot a line to see where it's at, a pipéline
10 vié marked, "Maybe it's a pipeline represenﬁative'there,
11 they will shovel‘spot that line and they come to a line_

 12 . say here it is right here. This is the pipeline, so
i3 - let's dig it. »Wé visually see the three—iﬁch;
14 ~ But when they go ﬁo‘digging thefe's stiil

15 that 22-inch bélOw‘that three. And they have spotted

16 three. Soithere's a danger there to me, a very big
17 danger there. And I just -- I feel like that there needs -k
18 to be more -- more attention paid to that pipeline

19 because you're talking about four—and—a—half‘miles of -

20 exposure, seven feet is what they’have illustrated below
21 the surface.

22 . CHATRMAN FESMIRE: I think that was
23 corrected. Talking four feet now.
24 MR. BOYD: To four feet. So that's worse.

25 Below the surface. And you know, this line is carrying

e o ey S O ST g
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substantially -- or the exact same thing that's being
disposed of. And it's got residences close along within
probably within a half mile and all thesé highways. = And
I think that that shéuld be looked at. |
And I think that that probably falls_under‘

y'all's jurisdiction or whatever under the OCD's. rule on

that deal. But I have got lots of stuff marked. I think.

that one of the other things in the book here that I
really feel like's important is there's not a pége:j:

number, but it's in the Appendix B. And it's a3letter

from a National 0il Well Varco to Mr. Baker. _And rather .

than y'all having to find it you can find it at'anothér"- '

time.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE:' You can talk about it,

sir, but again we're talking about putting eviden¢e into

the record. -So that's probably beyond. the statemént that'_f

you're allQWed_to make here without being sworn'aé'a 
witness. | |

MR. BéYDQ Okay. This is evidence thétfs
been put in by‘tﬁem that I'd like to talk about»it;_ But
it says -- it sa?s, "Plugs can be at the wrong debth or
missing completeiy. Casiﬁg can be compromiséd or
collapsed. Pressure from water flows or gas. Pressufe'
can be abnbrmaliy high or low." But you see, this is:'

stuff that they have provided us with that doesn't give

R S R B e N T
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1 me any security and safety feelings.

2 ' Aand I just -- I'réally, really hope that

3 everybody takes this into considerétion because, you

4 know, nearly everybody in here besides Greg and my wife
5 live miles and miles and miles away. This is goiﬁg.tov

6 éffect us and our families and I've got my kids living -

7 close to us, there are grandkids, and we hope that they

.8 will be on the ranch.

-9 ’ And again, you'guys are the professionals.
100 I've lived it and seen stuff and I guess I can't explain _
11 stuff that I've seen. But I appreciate the time to -- to .

12 voice my concerns. Thank y'all:
13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. Boyd. ‘Any_-”

14 questions of Mr. Boyd?

15 : MR. SCOTT: ‘No, sir.

16 ' MS. MACQUESTEN; .Mr. Boyd, what would you
17 iike to see fhe Cbmmissioﬁ'dé-in this éase? | | |
18 MR. BOYD: Well, I would like the least

19  exposure to the public as we can get. What I'd really
20 love to see is them’to'be:able to find a safe pay on the
21' Versado prbperty whefe the_well is or where the plant is
22 that produces this subétaﬂces, so it could be injected
23 without a long pipeline.

24 I would liké ﬁo see it injected into a pay

25 that's below existing penetrations. And I don't know if
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that's possible. Th

to me that would be

The least possible p
goiné into a deep pa
that's not penetrate
Then T
safer.b But it's jus
is possible. But I.
quéstions that's aro
that's being propose
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at's -- that's out of my line. But

the things that would be desired.
ipelines and leak areas. The well
y that would accept this materials
d by existing wells.

would think that would be a lot

t like I said, I don't know if thié
do know that there's lots of
se‘in‘here‘today about'the wéil

a.

QUESTEN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anything further?

COMMISS

COMMISS

IONER BAILEY: No.

IONER OLSON: No.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much,

Mr. Boyd.

MR. BOY

D: Thank y'all.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, you have

one witness today?

MS. MAC

QUESTEN: Yes.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Has he been sworn yet?

MS. Mac

(The wi

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. MacQuesten, did you

intend to give an op

PAUL BACA PRO
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Mr. Jones?
MS. MACQUESTEN: In the interest of saving
time I'll just say that as Mr. Scott.said in his opening
statément, the OCD and Targa have spoken about the
various concerns that the OCD has and we have tried to
address those concerns. Mr. Jones is here today to tell
you about the concerns that remain. 1In pérticular, the
concerﬁ that Mr. Scott pointed oﬁt, which is our concern
abdut‘the extent of the plume that will be'created at-the

acid gas injection site and the -- especially ‘given the

- circumstances surrounding this location, the number of

wells in the area, and the activity in the area.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much. Are

- you prepared to begin your examination?

MS. MACQUESTEN: You, thank you.,
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE:_ Mr. Jones?
MR. JONES& I'm prepéred.
WILLIAM V. JONES,
having been previocusly sworn_testified as foliQWS:
| x4 - |
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. MACQUESTEN:
Q. Would you state your ﬁame for the record.
A. William V. anes,

Q. Where are you employed?

PAUL BACA  PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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OCD?

Q.

A.

pertinent duties.

Q.
A.
,Q.
engineer?
a
Q.
Conservation:
. A;

Q. 

" 0il Conservation Commission as an expert in injection

wells?

- With what agency?

. What is your title?

Are you a registered professional petroleum

Page 167 |

Santa Fe.

0il Conservation Division.

Petroleum engineer.

And - how long have you been»emplgyed with the

Eight-and-a-half years.
What are your duties?

I evaluate injection permits is one of my

And do you also serve as a hearing examiner?

Yes.

Yes.
Have you previously testified before the 0il
Division as an expert petroleum engineer?

Yes.

And have you previbusly_teStified before the

WP e

Yes.

MS. MACQUESTEN: I would ask that the

Commission accept Mr. Jones as an expert in petroleum

- PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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engineering an injection.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, any objection?
MR. SCOTT: No. ‘
CHAIRMAN‘FESMIRE: Since Mr. Joneevis‘only_
one of only 35 registered professional engineers-liviﬁg.
in state of New Mexico we will receive his credeﬁfiéls,
Q. (BY MS. MacQUESTEN) Mr. Jones, have you 
reviewed the application submitted by Targa for an aeid
gas injection well to.serve its Eunice gas plant?'
A. I have. |
Q. And you heve_reviewed the OCD's fecerds'on

the well that they intend to use for that injection --

A. - Yes.

Q. -- tﬂe Euniee Gas Plant SWD No. l?u’.

A. Yes.: |

Q. < Does that review include the well fi1eeand

the permitting history?'
A. Yes; |
Q. . Have you researched OCD records.on‘the wellsv
in the area of reﬁieﬁ fof the subject well? | |
A. Within a mile.
Q. | Did you prepafe prefiled writtenvteétimony
setting out the reéults‘ef>your reView?
A. Yes;

Q. And is that-written,testimony before the

Page 168 é
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1 Commission as OCD Exhibit A?

2 A. Yes, 1t is.

3 Q. Did you also prepafe the exhibits that are
4 referred to in that testimony?

5 A. I did.

6 Q. Are those Exhibits E through L?

7 A. E through L.

8 Q. Are those exhibits based on the data that

9 . you got from OCD records?

10 A. Mostly) yes.: 

11 Q. What wasn;tmpulled ffom OCD recoxrds?

12 A. The go—teéhvrecords in Socorro from théfWeil‘
13 from 1994 until presént time. |

14 Q. Is that proaﬁction reporting?.

15, ' A. It's injectiqnlﬁolumes and pressures.

16 Q. From -- and»that wQuld be data reported by
17 the operator? o |

18 A, Yes.

19 Q. vAre you prebared today to -- let mé ask you]

20  this: Given the tespimony that you have heard today,‘is
21 ﬁhere anything that'yQﬁ'woula wish to change about your
22 prefiled written,téstiﬁoﬂy? |

23 A. I-- subsﬁantively no. I would -- I do

24 think that Targa hés to‘consider maybe doing these tests

25 before they put the liner in, drill out, run a test, and

eI
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-prefiled written testimony and the Exhibits A through L.

opportunity to be able to come back to Mr. Jones and

 establish the admissibility if there's an issue.

. be reasonable.

Page 170

if necessary, case the well tb TDM and then pick perfs
ffom the log and frombthe tests and go from there.

0. So that's an additional recommendation?

A. It's é suggestion.

MS. MACQUESTEN: Mr. Chairman, I had

intended to go through his testimony and the exhibits,
but in the interest of time .I will wait, allow Mr. Scott
to do his cross-examination, and at the end‘of all of the_

questioning, I will be moving to introduce:both the

If there are any questions at that time I'd like the

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott, that seems to

MR. -SCOTT: That seéms reaéonablevto me - as
well.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: ‘Go - ahead énd do it that
way .

MS. MacQUESTEN: I would like to just have
Mr}bJones address a couple of issues in addition to his
prefiled written testimony if that's possible;

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Proceed. |

Q.  (BY Ms.’MACQUEsTEN) Mr. Jones, I know that

you go into this in more detail in your prefiled
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testimony, but I would like for you to summarize for the

Commission how does the area of review for the subject

~well compare to the area of review for other acid gas

injection wells in New Mexico?

A. I've prepared an exhibit to show -- the

- Exhibit E shows the one-mile area reviewed wells for all

of the permitted acid gas wells in New Mexico. I didn't
show the one-half mile area review and I didn't show the

two-mile area review. And I kind of wish I had shown the

two-mile because it would have -- it would have further

highlighted the -- this Eunice Gas Plant No. 1 as
hafing -- I counted around 200 wells within twe‘to_"
two-and-a-half miles that pehetrate the San Andres.

Ana most of the other wells in-thevstate
that are permitted, the operators are actuaily luckier
than Targa, they are a long ways away from the productlve
oil patch. So Targa just happens to be in the productlve
oil patch. And they -- the two wells that Targa has

permltted or is in the midst of permlttlng -- are

.predomlnantly the -- have the majorlty of area review‘

‘wells.

Q. Mr. Jones, looking at this eXhibit, are the

top two wells, wells that are in the process of being --

are being proposed by Targa?

A, The second one is already permitted. It

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS- |

df102fc0-f551-4165-8f7 0-9a6626329bbb



10
11
12
13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Page 172 !

just hadn't been -- it doesn't even have an API number

yet but it's been permitted as a disposal, acid gas

disposal.

0. And the first well is the well at”issue
today? B

A. Yes.

Q. You séy you wish you had prepared this

"exhibit to go out two miles?

A. It would have been more dramaticlin the
discrepancy or the ——iof the-magnitﬁde‘of‘the aefial view
wells.

Q. You said that you counted how many wélls for' |

the Eunice Gas Plant No. 1 within two miles?

.A. I counted between two to twofand—a—half

“miles I found about 200 wells, little over 200 wells.

Q. What would you find for the other wells on  ﬁ

this list?

A. I don't know totally. The only ohe that I'm

specifically the Monument AGI

‘ pretty uncertain_about is the next two ddwn‘the list and

No. 1. But'it is down in

the Devonian/Ellenburger, so I would guess it would be

arouﬁd'double that, if that, within two miles. And the

other wells, the Linam AGI, you may get into more than a

few more wells within two miles, but all of the others

probably around zero.
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MR. SCOTT: I object at this point that the

witness is.just_spéculating on these numbers.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Is this speculation or
have ybu actually done this analysis?

MR. JONES: I looked at the two miles
submitted map for these permits. And that's whét I'm
basing it on. _th basing my guess on --

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Would you make
your answers more definitive? "Probably, " "about" --
let's, "This is baséd on analysis and here ére-the'_-'
resultsg." |

MR. JONES: So it's based on what I‘&e.Seeh,
the Euhice Gas Plant No. 1 as has approximately_four-
times as mény,Wells within two miles as it does Within
one mile. And from the Midland maps I looked at‘the'  
other wells you céuld probably double the numbef‘of,wells
within one mile.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You could double the

v number of wells.

MR..JONES: I'm sure. Possibly. Thaﬁ;s a1i
I can say. |

MR. SCOTT: 'Move to strike as being
spéculation.

YCHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Jones, I'm going fo

have to sustain that objection. You can rephrase it.
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But you're g01ng to have to make definitive statements.

Q. (RY MS. MACQUESTEN) Mr. Jones, let's turn
to another issue.. What - let's talk about the condition
of the wells within the»aiea of review. And let's start
with within half a mile. What are the -- what conditions
did you find within a half mile?

A. Within a half miie I found two to
two-and-a-half wells‘that penetrate the San Anafes. The
one that.penetrates‘in.the top of the San Andres is this
well that was talked about earlier that has the lead Qébl_
andvten sacks of Cement and -- | |

CHAIRMANYFESMIRE; That's Langlie Mattix 252
or 262?_ |

A. 252. And the other two wells were dfilled.
relatively.recentlyaby Lewis Burleson and they -- the
cement en those two wells they used large volumes;of
cement and the ceﬁeht bond - log showed‘thét the efficiency
of the primary cement job wae only around 63 percent on’ |
one of them and thevother'ohe'doesn't have a bond log on

it. And they top squeezed it to stop the possible water

flow.

Q. And What:is.the relevance of that
information? | |

A. The relevanceeis that right away if you look
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1 at these wells, when I looked at the wells I discovered

2 .that they were difficult to cement over Gloreta/San %
3 Andres portions of the well. <§
4 Q. What can you tell us about the condition of

5 ° the well between one-half mile and one mile from the

6 subject well? |

7 A. Between one half mile and one mile is in

8 .exhibit -- shown -- all the wells are shown in Exhibit G.

9 .And I believe there's 22 of those. 22 of those wells;
10 . Seven of those wells are-shown in Exhibit H, and one of
11 those wells is.also‘shown‘in Exhibit I, the well boré

12 diagram of the well.

R S U N I T e e

13 ' - This is rather typical of the area where

14 these seven wélls I discovered within one mile thatidrill
 15 to the target formations below the San Andres were

"16 _éemented oVer_the targétvfprmations but the San Andres

17 was noﬁ é producing:zoneQ So that combined with the

18 problems getting cemeht to cover it, they ended up with
19" . cement only over the target fofmations and subsequently
20 they had to squeéié'to t§p:of thé wells. I did find that
21 .they had squeezed‘the top of these wells as a result bf
22 that R-5003 order for all thé water flows they found in.
23 this area. |

24 | CHAIRMAN FESMIRE : Okay. May I ask a

25 | question? You Say-they.squeezed the top of the wells.

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 They tied it onto the Bradenhead and squeezed from the \

2 top?
3 MR. JONES: In some cases. Most of the

4 cases they perforated below the prospective pay

5 intervals, which was the Langlie Mattix and Pihrose and
6 squeezed across that to cover that productive interval

7 and tovcover the salt interval because they had numerous
8 Bradenhead leaks in that area.

9 A CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So they perfdrate_or use

10 " a DV tool to squeeze the zones?

11 MR. JONES:_‘Perforate:

12 ' CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Perforate. And this

.13 :concept of squeezing from the surfaée on a deep string is
.14 ,”of éohcernbto me; How did théy keep from --

15 - MR. JONES: Well, when they were'flowing at

i6 - those rates they found, that --

17’ | ‘CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: .They_just squeezed

18 against the flow. |

19 - MR. JONES: Louis Burlington drilled his
20 | latest wells out here, and they didn't‘rﬁn §ery good
21 logs. But they had to use a.large‘volume of cement.

22 Q. (BY MS. MACQUESTEN) Mr. Jones, looking at
23 OCD Exhibit G, does this summarize what you found

24  concerning the wells within one-half mile to one mile of

25 the subject well?

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f7 0-986626329bbb
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A. It does.

Q. And are the first seven wells the seven

wells that you say you have concerns about?

A. They are.

Q. Let's talk about the first two wells. Are

these active salt water disposal wellgs?

A. The first two are salt water disposal wells.

Q. What concerns do you have about tﬁese‘two
wells?

A.. They are salt water disposal Weils into. the

Targa formation within the same interval proposed for
acid gas injection. They -- one of the big concerns is

that'they.were perforated not only in theJSan Andres but

also in the Glorieta or‘Paddock zone. = Apparently they

really wanted to go after that Glorieta interval.

Q. How high are the injection rates for these
wells?

A. Theyvare.hot répbrted to be that big. Bﬁt
that tells you_that--—»well, probably three things. That

' they are either not reporting correctly or they are --

the well can't take any more than that or they don't need

anyvmoré than that fdr disposal.
Q. What sort of issues do these wells»pose if
the plume reaches these wells?

A. If anyone -- because they are such a big
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ction interval, it's highly llkely that -- and the -

volumes going into these wells don't seem to be that

much,

pert

buil

it's likely that only certain portions of those
s are taking fluid, so the other portions are not

ding pressure to -- if the plume reached‘these

perforations and someone worked over the well, well, they

would be exposed to the released CO2 and acid gas.

well

abou

the

Bake

and

Chri

No.

Q. Let's look at the next two wells.. Your

"exhibit indicates that these are plugged and abanddned

s?
MR..SCOTTﬁf Which two wells,ére_you talking
t? | |
MS. MACQUESfEN: This wou1d be’the-—j
‘ CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why'don't ybu refer to
number .. | ‘
MS. MACQUESTEN: The JV Baker and the
r A. | | | | |
' MR..SCOTT: ‘Okay.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: 10486 and'lo467?_
MR;_JONES::'Yes. The Bakers and.the Boyd's

the'ChristmaS's. And I'm not sure there was a

stmas maybe. That's -- find out.
Q. (BY MS. MACQUESTEN) I'm looking at Well
3 and No. 4 on your list.

A. No. 3 and No. 4.
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Q. Top level concerns. What is your concern

about these two wells?

A. The plugs-in those wells extend -- leave an
open area between basically.right above the bottom of the
San Andres or at the bottom éf the San Andres down to
past the Glorieté. - 8o that -- that allows unconfined

injection. If water -- if water or acid gas that's

‘injected reached those wells, injection would be

unconfined as far as keeping it in the permitted

injection interval. And the advertisement here is. for

“"the San Andres‘for*the'injection, not for the Glorieta .

- and Paddock._

Q. Let's look ‘at the next three wells on your )
list of seven. The JV Bakef, the Will Céry and

Christmas 28.

A. Yes.
Q. What_type"of wells are these?
A. These.are'reported,to be producing-from

deeper intervals.

Q. What are your concerns aboutithese'Wells?
A, These wells are producing wells with large
open intervals. exposed to corrosion in the -- across the

San Andres. And in some cases down to a lot deeper than
the San Andres.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: - How far away is this from
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1 the proposed injection well?
2 MR. JONES: The distance aways are the third

3 column from the right on the exhibit. They are beyond a

4 : half mile and within one mile.

»5 Q. (BY MS.-MACQUESTEN) And what ié your

6 concern if the plume reaches these wells?

7 A. The corrosion would be the main primary

8 concern, that oncé the j—tif these -- you éan éee the API

9 - numbers on two of these wells are 10,000, so they are
10 . 1980 model wells. So the casing is probably not that

|11 Hgood‘a shape already.

T R R N Y R S R

12 And if anything finished off that casing
13 . _it's going to basically cause waste as far as drowning
‘14  out their drinker zone or -- also, if that -- if that .

15 gets in the pipeliné-ﬁhe pipeline company will shut down
16 .° their wells. And then if they work over the wells they
17‘-vmight be exposed, workers would be exposed td.possiblyv -
18 large volumes. | | |

19 ‘ ' Q. Did yoﬁ review wells within two miles of ﬁhe
20 subject well that are shailower wells? H

.2i | _ A. No. I 160ked_ét them, but I didn't review

22  them in detail.

23 . Q. Do you have any concerns about them?
24 A. The shallower wells were primarily Langlie
25  Mattix wells. The one -- the one well that I really

s 20
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checked on I found it had been deepened into the San
Andres -- the top of the San Andres and plugged béck.
The records on.a lot of thosé wells are not very good, we
don't know exactly if -- I didn't research the records on
all of those shallow wells to make sure that they weren't

deepened and then plugged back.

Q. Is this an activeiarea for production?
A. Yes.

Q. - Which zones are producing?

A. It's the Penrose member of the'Queen‘v

formation iS'the'way I understénd it.

Q. Can an area be successfully produced if
producers have to drill through an acid gas plume?

A. There are some deeper zones out here. iTwo

of the -- two of the -- the best well out is there an Abo

well and it was a relatively recent well. And it's one

éf‘the wells within one mile of'the‘subject_well. ‘The
Abo trend, we don't know how they are goingrtd‘go aftéf ‘
that in this area. If they do drill through if, thé
operators will have to make a decisibn abouf.what they
will do in that case. |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Cén_it be done? I mean,
can you drill through an acid gas plume, a pféssurized
acid gés plume? |

MR. JONES: I am not prepared to say -- we
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know it can be done. You mean can it be done safely'>
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Can it be done safely?
MR. JONES: You can -- you can weight up
your well to go through anything and we -- drillers drill
through high concentrations of H2S all over the world.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: With a thief zone just
below your injection interval?
MR JONES : The thief zene means ‘that if

they weight up too much all of a sudden you break it

‘down, here it comes to the surface. So it leads to

some -- some - a little bit of drilling technical
chailenges there5 But primarily it would be a safety
issue. |

Q. ‘(BY MS. MACQUESTEN) Mr. Jones, invyour
prefiled writtenhtestimony you discuse a test thathwas
conducted_oh this subject well in 1983. Can you teli us
about that?

A, That test is in the well file. It was a
injection test}‘_Theyvdidn't label it as ahstep—ratex
test, butvit leeked -- looked suspiciously like.a
step—rate test. bAnd they did report that-the well was
taking one barrel a minute on a vacuum when they etarted
the test.

Q. .Did-that give you any céncerns?

A. One barrel a minute on a vacuum means that
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you have got pretty good permeability down there somehow
and a possible ffactﬁre swarm or fractures in that zone.

Q. Were the results of that test consistent
with the assumed porosity of this well?

~A. No. No. They -- now, it was completed in

it -- and that interval does show some separation on the
resistivity ngs.in the -- the only ones available théh -
aré almosﬁ a milé.away.> But it does show that there_is.v
some_permeabiiity énd'porosity out there, but iﬁ's;mo#ev'

consistent With a fracture than it would be with matrix

permeability.
Q. . What is your concern regarding fracture?
A.  The fractures means that we cannot assumé-

that 700 feet of iﬁterval is going to take the injection
in a even manner;.;It's gbing.to be primarily
coﬁcentratéd'intO‘thé highesﬁ permeability or the
fréctufe'zones and.it would travel fufther‘in a sho?t-:
amount of_timeQ | | |

Q. unla'that afféct the model that

Mr. Gutierrez has'proposed?

A. Yes. 'And he said that also.
Q. What -- we have heard testimony about the
data that the OCD is requesting. And do you understand

from Targa's testimony that they are willing to provide
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1 the data that you have requested? '
2 A. Yes. Even more -- more SO.
3 Q. Will that data help you evaluate whether
4 this well can be used for injection purposeé without
5 causing problems with these wells in the area of review?
6 A. It will help. It will‘help in determining
7 the extent of thevplume from a -- put all the data
. 8 together, in my opinion, we don't have enough data right 
9 now to -- to say for_sure-thaﬁ everything's going to be
~10 éontained withiﬁ.a-half a mile. Wé'need this additioﬁal
11. data. : |
12 Q. - Let-me.agk YOu.abéut the process that.Taféa
13 has proposed. What is your dpihion on Targa pfovidihg
14 ~ the data to the Divisioh and having the Divigion then
15 decide whether it-néedsbto reopen the case?
| 16 A.  I think“that'it should bé Targa's
17 responsibility to_feopen the case.
18 Q. What is yéur"experience'with operators
19 ‘complying with the‘terms of injection permits?
20 : A. It;é not al&ays a'happy experience. We put
21 conditions in permiﬁS’or coﬁditions that should be met
22 after their injection begins and it's not always --
23 traditionally in Iarge open hole intervals we do ask for
24 injection surveys.
25 MR. SCOTT: Mr! Chairman, I'm going to

sy
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-made administratively as to whether this permit should be

Page 185 ||

object at this point. I don't know what the performance
of other operatoré has to do with how Targa would perform
pursuant to the‘terms of the order that this Commission
might issue. I don't think you can attribute the conduct
of other operators to Targa.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'li sustain the

objection.

Q. (BY MS. MACQUESTEN) If Targa provides this

sustain data to the OCD, would you want a decision to be

changed or would you rather see that go before the
Commission? |

A. I,wouldi;—-we have no acid gas rules to 
prerequisite things off to'administfative permittiﬁg
process. I'd definitely rather it be before the
Commission.

MS. MACQUESTEN:‘ Mr. Chairmaﬁ, I think 
that's all I have for how_with the understanding I may
need to go back to.address the admissibility_éf evideﬁéé.

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Scott?

| * * * |
.CROSS;EXAMINATION'
BY MR. SCOTT:
Q. Good afternoon, Mr. Jones.

A. Good afternoon.

EPORTERS
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Q. Nice to see you again. You had mentioned in
your testimony some -- a couple of recent wells with
large volumes of cement. Do you recall talking about
those two wells?

A. Uh-huh.

Q.  Which two wells in particular are those?

Al Those it would be the wells within the area
of the half-mile area of reﬁiew; Lewis,Burleson‘wells,
Santa,Riﬁa No. 2, Santa Rita No. 12.

0. And at that depth where were the large
volume$ of cement injected? |

AL At 7200 feet.

Q. So that's significantly below the zone we're

talking about here; is that right?.

A. Yes.
Q. The zone we're talking about is 42001to 4900
- feet? |
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. You also talked about'I_believe it

was seven wells that are shown in Exhibit 8 and'you
testified about haviﬁg to squeeze the £oprof those wellg?

A. The -- actually the oﬁe that_they squeezed
the top 1is Santa Rita No. 2. Theyvsaid‘they squeeéed the
backside. I assuﬁe that means the top. .

0. Okay. 8o the seven wells that you were
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those wells in Order No. 12809, correct?

,testimony?
A. Yes.
Qw. Which wells were those?
A. They -- wells that were réferended_in the.

Page 187 i

referring there -- let me back up a step. 7You were the

hearing officer for the proceeding that resulted in Order
12809, correct?

A. Yes.

Q. Those seven wells that you refefenced during
the course of your examination, théée wells were in
existence at the time you issued the order in 12809,
correct? |

A. They were.

Q. And there wasn't any expréssion of épncern o

in the findings or the order that was entered concerning

A, Correct.
Q. You made mention of some -- couplé_wells

with some Bradenhead leaks. Do you recall that

S A e R S S

case for R-5003.

Q. And at what depth were those wells?

A. The Bradenhead flow ——‘at that timé there
was -- that.was the whole -- as I understand it, that was
the purpose of the committees that were -- the sﬁudy
teams that were commissioned to study this area for -- to

2 e S e TR OO NS STy
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“this brine well was given permission as I understand it,

to flow continuously because --

Page 188 |

determine where those Bradeﬁhead flows came from.
At that time there were salt water diSpésal
wells in this érea, including this well, and four other
wells. And they listed those wells and those were all
San Andres injeétion wells. They were -- a lot of Wells
that were not cemented from below the San Andres on up aﬁ

that time and there was Bradenhead flows. And so -- and

Q. Was,there.anybdeterminatioﬁ made aé to the‘

depth this fldw wasvgoing-to go?

| A. - I ¢an tell you what I read in the case -- in
the order for R¥5003. I believe it's in front<of‘the
Commission.‘ Froﬁ:what I understand, the floWS were |
likely coming from ——'there was a lot of still
controversy, but the salt zone was charged up, which is
way above the zéne.' And the Queen injectibn watef fiodd-
was going oﬁ th{ So and that in combination With-ali .
these uncemented well bores and what came out of ouf 5003
was the requirémeﬁté td squeeze cement -- avwhole'bunch

of wells to raise the cement over the Queen zone and over

the salt interval.
Q. And those are above the zone we're talking

abqut here?

A. . Definitely. Yes.

df102fc0-f551-4165-8f70-926626329bbb
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' north to northeast.

Page 189‘?

0. You talked about the J B Baker and Baker A

well as part of the questions that your counsel was
asking you. Which are the first few wells listed on
Exhibit G, correct?’

A, Yes. Correct.

Q. ‘And those wells are completed significaﬁtly |
below the zone»we're talking about here; is that right?.

A. Yes.

Q. And what direction are those wells from-thé  ;z'
well that's theYSUbject of this proceeding?

A. They are north to -- .I believe theybare

Q. Ahd.héw far are they from the well we'ré
talking about? |
A. TheY'fange from around 5,000 feet one of
them is 3600 feet from the well.
Q. Okay... -
CHAIRMAN'FESMIRE:..SO one is 3600 feet. How
far is it to the'othérlone?
MR. JONES: There's three producing wells”t'
One is 3600 feet away, one is 5,000 feet away, one's 5200
feet away .
CHAIRMAN_FESMIRE: Thank you.
Q. (BY MR. SCOfT) There was some discussioﬁ“

about the J B Baker, the Will Cary and the Christmas 28

T scmeponz coperemsoa)
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wells. Those are more than a half mile from this well,
correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And those are also completed at deeper

intervals than the San Andres?

A. The -- all of these wells, these seven wells
of concern were drilled to a range from 6400 feet to 7500
feet. That was their Tbs, Total depths.

Q. So that's é to 3000 feet below what we are
talking about as.fhe ane for this well?

A. Yes. |

Q. And you made reference to some Langlie
Mattix wells that wefe dfilled, but you said you werén't
-- you didn;t do research.to make sure they weren;t

deepened or plugged?

A. They -- I did find that wells were deepened.._l

The early wells were drilled until they hit water. And

then they were going for this -- whatever they could find o

down to 36, 4,000 feet and they drilled until they found

water and they éame'back_and they perforated.it and

completed with nitroglycerin and stuff into the Queen

formation.

0. Thqsé are primarily within the Queen
formation?

A. Primérily.
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0. And most of the production you talked about
that is in this area is from the Penrose?

A, Yes.

Q. And that is also above the formation we're
talking about here, correct?

A. Yes.

0. You made reference to a test well that was

‘in 1983 or a test of this particular well from 1983. Do

- you recall that?

A. Yes. Yes.

Q. And that was an'injection:ﬁest where you
said thaﬁ it took a barrel per-minute on vacuum?

A. Yes.

Q. ‘And you posited that there wefe a.couﬁle
different explanations for why that might occur, correct?

| A. Correct..

Q. One might be a_fraéture; one might be an
under'pressure zone.

A. I don't think that San Andres is under
pressure. But --

Q. But that_ié a.possibility, correct?

A. "It -- under pressure meaning - youvwant me
to define it in my terms what under.pressure means?
Okay. What I define normal pressure is if a well will

stand fluid to the surface. That is considered in the

G
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1 0oil industry to be nqrmally pressured formation. If

2 wells take fluid on a vacuum, that means they will not --
3  you could pour fluid into them and the -- you can't raise
4 their fluid level because the formation is s0 porous and

5  permeable. So you can't catch the surface with what you

6 poﬁr in until you pour it in fast enough and then you
7 can.
8 Q. Okay. And is that a possible explanation
9  for the results of.that test.onithis well?: |

10 o CAL I don't think so.

11 | Q. Why is that?

12 A. Because the San Andrés in that aréavhadfnot
13 . been produced énd so I don't see how it could be under

14 pressure if it's not -- hasn(tlbeen produced.

15 ' - Q. 'Going_back to youf comments about the order

16 of 5003, the order from back in '74 or '75. Didn't that

'17'_ order specifically say that this particular well was not

A S Y P SR WS S B S 1 R R R O R A R RN

18- the source of the water?

19 | - A, I saw in the -- that they were concerned
20 aboﬁt therbriné weli right directly above this well. And
21  since this well was real close to it, they were looking

22 at all the San Andres wells, injection wells around this
‘23 area including this well; They did say something_about

24 this well was not -- was probably -- I belie&e they said

25 it would probably be okay. I would to refer you to.the
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case file and the hearing order. But --

Page 193

Q. So if the order says that you would stand by
that?

A. I would.

Q. Okay.‘ And didn't the ordér there place somé

limits on the volume that can be introduced to protect_

the LPG wells that were in the area? Waant that the

-specific intent of that order?

A. They limited it -- the previous -order

limited thebtype of fluid going into the well ﬁo only '

from the gas plant, gas plant effluent and waste,

wastewater from the gas plant. And I took from thét,

that the volumes éoming from the gas plant was_1500. And |

so they gave them enough
gas plant.: But’and then
then on, and i took that
somebody turning it into
disposal well. But that
they said.

Q. In terms of

to get'fid of the water from the
they did limit it to 1500 fr6m 
to mean they didn't want

a disposal -- coﬁmerciai

was just my reading into what -

receiving more data, if Targa

were allowed to go out, recomplete the well, test the

well, submit all of that

data to the Division, certify .

completion with all of those requirements and provide

additional calculation that confirms the existing

calculation that's been done, would you be comfortable

e

REPORTERS
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did sensitivities of it.

come to a different conclusion. Every geologist, every

Page 194 |

authorizing injection of acid gas at that point?
A. I would have to look at it. And it would
be -- if Targa Will submit the data to the Division the
Division can look at it, Targa can look at it, can both
reach an agreement. And in my opinion it should be done
in front of av—— some sort of a hearing.
Q. You're capable of evaluating the calculation
that Mr. Gutierrez haS'run,_correct?

A. I made my_calculatioh match his and then. I

Q. Sure. ‘You could'take the same data and yOu_
could evaluate it yéurself and come to the cénclusion”
whether the new.déta supports the conclusionﬁthat'thisv
well would be safe ﬁb operate for 30 years or the volume
was crested, correct?

A. I could come to his conclusion or I could

engineer looks at the data and'Comes up with something a
little bit different;_ |

Q. You WOuidﬁ't be wildly different in your
conclusions, would you?

A. I would hope not. .I think Alberto would
likely do a good job. |

Q. Lookihg at the exhibits that accompany your

prefiled testimony, Mr. Jones, you attached a series of
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exhibits. And Exhibit C, if you will turn to that,

please. That's hand labeled, "Eunice Gas Plant No. 1,

‘well reported volumes and pressures," correct?
A. Correct.
Q. That is your handwriting?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And you were aware, weren't you sir,

. that Targa had recorrected and resubmitted all of these

injection records for this well?.

A. I -- I printed it out again this morning.
"And I came -- I saw the»different.reéorted inje¢tion
volumes. |

Q. So_ﬁhé volume -- or the report you>have'iﬁ'

your Exhibit C doesn't reflect the corrected reports

‘submitted by Targa; is that correct?

A. That's correct.
Q. Did you do any other work this morning to

try-td go back and verify whether any other changes

~needed to be made to any of your exhibits to this file?

A. No. I didn't.
MR. SCOTT:..I don't have anything further.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Ms. Bailey?

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: To follow up on that

question, Exhibit C may be outdated, but do you have or

have you been given by Targa -- because we certainly

yermar
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‘all of the history, but I did prepare an exhibit showing

may be in the future?

‘pertinent question._'And I'm not sure I'm totally

prepared to answer that in full. I can say‘it would make
it a little more expensive to go through it. The danger
is if they are not expecting it I think. In my opinion

'M-R-A-Z at the land department.

- Page 196

haven't -- been given the updated volumes?

MR. JONES: I printed it out of our database
our RBDMS database. And I printed this. I do have the
printout that I just did. But it did show for the
last -- I would say for the last year or so,.the volumes

are dramatically redueed. I didn't compare it totally to

R e e P g

from 1994 until today and the range of reported volumes
in the well.
COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Okay. There are -

continuougly new, innovative drilling methods . and

an acid gas plume have on mineral owners' access to their

minerals which at this point may not be productiVe but

MR. JONES: That is a -- that is a very

that's the danger. Now, we did work with the Land

Department recently on -- one of our geologists'in Hobbs

suggested that we set up a flag around all acid gas.

wells. And the only people that do that are Joe Mraz

|

o 23 o
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COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Mraz.
MR. JONES: And we called him and he agreed

to set up a new category. And this category if the

. geologist -- if our geologist will populate -- send him

the data, he will -- he will put those drilling units

into that category. And then when our geologists permit

a well close, within whatever the geologist puts out
there, if they permit a well through thé plﬁhe fqr
instance, it would be a warning on the APD~ofzthét. |
' COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Bﬁt that isipafﬁbof 

the on guard system and that's not available tthhei_
public. : | .

MR. JONES: No.

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Or to drilling
companies prior to sending in an APD to the QCD;

| MR.,JONES: No, it wouldn't befv

COMMiSSiONER BAiLEY: So théy wOuldn;t:haVe

that ‘on their AEP for any future drilling; | |

MR. JONES: No. That's true. Drilling

hazards are -- that's a drilling engineer's nightmare of

things like that.

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: Is that the most
effective way that OCD could alert future drillers?

MR. JONES: I thought it was a good idéa to

do that. 1It's -- I'm not sure about the BLM, you know,

= s
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down below this areé and the drinker and the Abo, the

‘Page 198 |

but I guess OCD issues API numbers so we would have to

also issue a permit. It's getting to be more of a

R R e T R e

problem obviously. And I think because of this Abo zone

Montoya has even been tried a few timeé here. So_there
are deeper zones and there's new, like you say, new
completion methods that are going to open up those.zones
to thential,horizéntal drilling in the Abo if'it'sboil _

right now. .So_...

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: There's been

discussion about drilling through the lead wool, four . -

feet of lead wool.’1Whét éfe the issueé surrounding
dfilling ﬁhat subStance?b

MR. JONES: I think one of the biggééﬁ B
issues»in that wéll_is Eo get out of that big, oéén hoie
nitroglycerin‘intéfval down to the bottom of the‘wéll_to 
get throﬁgh'it; Ana as far as drilling ﬁhrough‘that
stuff, I don't know. I don't how hard it would»befz They-
can always -- if;it;s,an>open hole like it is, you can --
probably they_éan débit. It's a 400-feet intervai with' 
only some -- they call it lead wool and then sacks‘of
cement. - But they have been injecting in that well for a

long time so -- in the Queen formation. So we just don't

know. When they get into it they will find out.

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: That's all I have.
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submitting a pre —— you will probably get that from both"

»questioh about lead wool. Have youbever tried to drill

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Olson?

COMMISSIONER OLSON: I think I just want to
make sure I clarify part of your testimony for myself.
So the Division is asking the Commission to adopt the
recommendations in your written testimony?

MR. JONES: Yes.

COMMISSIONER OLSON: That's all spelled out
in here inbthe conditionsias you have maintained in this
document?

MR. JONES: I believe Ms. MacQuesten:will7be N

sides but, yes. To answer your guestion, yes.
COMMISSIONER OLSON: That is all I have.

_CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Jones, I too have a

lead wool?

MR. JONES: No sir, I haven't.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Have yoﬁ ever heard abcug
people that tried to drill lead wool?

MR. JONES: I've heard of them plﬁgging
wells where you can‘never get baék.into them again.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And they would do that
with?

MR . JONES: Whatever they could find to

throw in there.

R A
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Even four foot, it's |

2 going to be difficult to drill through, isn't it?

3 MR. JONES: It might be. . Depends on how

4 it's diluted with the_—— they probably packed it into the
5 bottom of the hole. 1It's probably down in the very

6  bottom.

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I'm just going
8 to I think summarize what I've taken from this. If we
9 use a half-mile area of review, there are really no wells

10  penetrating the San Andres that are of concern within

11 that half-mile radius; is that cofrect?

12 ‘ MR. JONES: That's correét.

13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But just outside that
14 half-mile radius are Severaliwells including the séven-.
15 - that you -- I'm sorry, the list that you héd that have

16° potential cementihg problems through the San Andres zone,
17 - correct?
18 MR. JONES: 'From_our records, ‘that's what I

19‘ could find.

20 CHAIRMAN.FESMIRE: And those includé no

21 cement known, no cement through the éan Andres zone?

22 MR. JONES: Yes.

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And questionable cement

24 through the San Andres zone?

25 ’ MR. JONES: Yes.

TR PSS o 22 = R
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Page 201
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.

MR. JONES: I didn't list the questionable
wells.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. ‘I want to talk
about the deeper well -- the recent deeper Qells that you
talked about, if I understand it the Christmas 2'and.the
Christmas 127? |

MR. JONES: The big API numbers are the
recent wells. AL Christmas No.ll, and.Chriétmas‘28
Nd. 4. |

CHATIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. 'Ahd:theée.afé the
ones where doeé it»look like the thiéf zoné? the thief

zone below the San Andres that we have been_talkingvabout

. broke down?

MR. JONES: It -- it appears that it's"
somewhere in either the lower San Andres or the-Glorieta.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: That would be the thief

. zone that we have been concerned about.

MR. JONES: That would be for cementing
purposes. | |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Yeah. .Okay. And in an
attémpt to get a cement down across there, they cemented
from the Bradenhead down the backside. :

MR. JONES: Well, I -- that's this one --

this one well they did everything they could to stop
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water flows out there. And they squeezed maybe, yes. In
some cases.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Which well or

wells is that?

MR. JONES: With the Olson well that --
where is it here?

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'm looking at Exhibit G.

MR. JONES: Exhibit F, the Santa Rita No. 2,.

‘was squeezed. They just say squeezed badkside with 7OO

sacks. You can't squeeze 700 sacks dnlesé’thereTs some
big holes.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: sOmething's taking'f1uid

somewhere. So we don't know what kind of cement jbb they

have got on that particular well.

MR. JONES: Well, we know on thattpartiéular

one that there is no bond log for the primary:cementfjob..

‘But if you use the 63 percent efficiency factor, which is

what I determined from the other well beCause itnhad a. 
vglﬁme of cement and the top cement, theﬁ you épplY-i£ to
this well, I.calculated the cement top at 36OO feét{.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So that wouid be above --
MR. JONES: BAbove the San Andres.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: But there's a lot. of
questions in thatvcélculation.

‘MR. JONES: Yes, there's questions from well
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to well and from that calculation. Yes.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.

MR. JONES:

But vyes.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So if Targa is right

about the size of the plume and we're only going to have

a radius of about .2 miles on average given the

unconformities -- that's a bad word to use among a bunch

~of geologists, but the irregularities in the geology that

there may be a little more than that, a little less than

that and the gravity effects and all that, but about'.z

miles at a perfect 100 percent displacement.

of interval.

MR. JONES:

Over’?OO feet.

- CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Over a total of 700 footi” |

MR. .JONES:

Ten percent porosity.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Now, we talked

about mobility ratio and I believe Mr. Gutierrez

described the displacing fluid as slipperier than the

displaced fluid. That tells me that we're going_tb_have .

a bad, like I said, speaking from old hard terms, but

we're going to have a lot of inefficiencies in the

displacing mechanism. They are not going to -- for sure

they're not going to one hundred percent piton displacé

the fluid in the formation; is that correct?

MR. JONES:

Yes, I would agree with what. -

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f7 0-931662_6329bbb.
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Given -- and I know you
2 have done water flood work. Even with a good mobility
3 ratio we're not talking about displacement efficiencies
4 of much above 60, 56 percent, are we?
5 MR. JONES: The -- depending on the
6 different conformances; vertical, lateral. But I would
7 agree with you there. The mobility ratio here if it
8 ‘is -- 1if the_viscosity is lower ‘like that, than thé

9 displaced fluid you end up with fingering through the

S YT R N T X e

10 formation more than you do just piston displacement.
11 | CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. And that is a good

12 mobility ratio, right?

13 MR. JONES: Good mobility ratio is one'whérez'
 14 there's a big contrast between the displacing flﬁid and
'iS,V your displaced fluid. So you swee§ -- you have a good

16 sweep of --

17 }l CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Greater than one.

3 e

18 Defined that'way, right?

19 '~ MR. JONES: I think that's the way they

20 .define it.

21 | CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So I guess whét
22 I'm saying is that this .2 mile radius is probably going
23 to be significantly more than that, isn't it?

24 MR._JONES:"I think we can't really view it

25 . as plug-like piston displacement. Even geologists will

df102fc0-f551-4165-8f70-9a6626329bbb
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going to calculate at least that .2 efficiency that their

500 percent radius -- I mean 500 percent safety factor
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never tell you that, that the reservoir's -- permeability
in reservoirs are spoken of in terms of how many log
scales they exteﬁd over, not a confined, nice, mean
permeability. You use geometric means always. And you
talk in terms of how its skewed on the statistical
charts.

And so it's -- it's a gross approximation to
try to do that. That's why we're suggestingvthat they
run an injection survey to narrow down the_zoﬁes'that;are

really taking-fluid. We can look at the porosgity. in
can come back and present it and then see what happens

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I guess the point
I'm making is even if we assume a significantly bad

mobility ratio, we're still going to get -- aren't we

would amount to? What that amounts to is a .2 percent --
I mean a .2 diéplacement efficiency, doesn't it?

MR. JONES: In those terms I'm not sure. I
did prepare a -- one sensitivity slide, it's slide 1,
Exhibit L. It's simply varying the thickness that takes

fluid. As you can>see, if in this case if you take -~ if

the fluid all goes into a hundred feet, and you have

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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‘has a radius of -- well, is that the .2 miles or is this
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seven percent porosity, then this calculates some sort of

)
g

a radius away from the well.
I have to say I don't agree with the 30-year
.2. Because again, we're making the assumption that it's:

700 feet and ten percent pérosity. So I didn't show a

the other big factor. And that's effective porosity by
the wéy, that's not total porosity. Effective porosity
meaning porosity ﬁhat's connected.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Right. And that gets
into that water saturation number that we were talking
about earlier. “

MR; JONES: You could add that in there.

CﬁAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Let's télk a
little bit about Exhibit L. Exactly what are you>telling

us here?

MR. JONES: I'm -- word of caution when_
looking at this. This is intended only to show the
sénsifivity of factor of net thickness.

'CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So I guess whaﬁ we're

saying is if we look at, for instance, 700 feet and it

some dimensional --
MR. JONES: That's pretty close. 1If I use

exactly the same -- if you go out to the 30-year mark and

AUL BACA PROFESSI
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you go up --

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So your calculation was
about .28 so it looks like you did make a correction for
that water saturation.

MR. JONES: No, actually I used a slightiy

‘different cubic feet per barrel than Alberto did. And

the porosity is different too. If you notice there's
seven percent porosity in this case and he's ten.

CHAIRMAN'FESMIRE: So that WOuld'éxplain the -

.28 miles.

MR. JONES: . Yes.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: .28 miles. So if we came

down to an effective thickness of just a hundred feet

you're telling us that it.wbuld be about .7 -- .74 miles
radius?

MR._JdNEs: 'Yes.

CHAIRMAN'FESMIRE: Okay.

MR. JONES: At'sevén percent. But iﬂm not
totally telling you thét.‘:I'm saying that this just
shows a sensiti&ityTof.this. I think we have toviqok a; 
the data thét.ﬁe're_going to get.v We have to look at the
step—ratevtest;_we have to look at the injectivity test,
and the ldgs ﬁo see if -- and put it all togeﬁher and use
something simiiar>§o this but. I'm not saYing we can |

totally use this.

- PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. This is just to

2 give us an idea what the sensitivity is to that ohe |

3 input.

4 MR. JONES: - I think we also need some

5 testimony as to what this stuff does in the reservoir as -
6 far as dilution and chemical reaction on the réck and

7 they haven't presented that yet. Maybe they will next

.8 hearing.

9 CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. If we were to
10 allow the injection, they were to inject for enough time -
11'> to stabilize‘the'injection'rate‘and preésuie, and‘theﬁ wé
12 were to do a pressureffall—off test, we would iﬁ essencé

13 be able to get a distance to any fault that there

.14 existed? We would be able to get én idea of what the
15 mobility ratio wasibétween the two fluids?

.16_ ' MR. jONES: You would get a lot more data

17 and that's the way the pros doiit,‘yes.

18 VVCHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So we could get an

19 = estimate of‘the meility ratio and»could also get an

20 estimate of the radiﬁslof injection dufing that period.of
21 time, couldn't we?

22 MR. JONES: Not sure about the mobility

23 because that's K over Mu over K over Mu. So but it's --
24 you can get a lot of that data and that is the way that

25 -- it would be nice to have that done because that

EPORTERS
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confirms a break also. Or a not break. Confirms whether
you're in a fracturing situaﬁion or you'ré still in the
under-matrix controlled flow at that time.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So your suggestion
would be that if we do go ahead and grant this.permit,
that we put a condition in theré that they run these
tests sometime after injection stabilization.

MR. JONES: At -- hopefully the tests would

be run, yes. But also with brine instead of doing them

~with the acid gas.

CHAIRMANIFESMIRE: Why is that?
MR. JONES: Just safety. That's just if
they thihk they can do that with acid gas maybe they

could. But I probably wduldn't -- with my knowledge I

‘wouldn‘t know enough to say they could do that. Not sure

the wire line companies would want to either bﬁt they
might do it. | |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: So we-shouldn't_have a
double slope and shouidn't be a way to calcuiate the
mobility ratio if you want to iﬁjedt énd get the --

MR. JONES:Y Well, I think the mébility ratio
would -- but the variation in pefmeability, he's going to
get that from that micro -- and he mentioned the log also
if they process it éver that.interval. 'And they are

going to get a lot of this data. That 's a wonderful log,
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you can see well bore break out, you can see what the
stress directions.are at different points. It all
depends how much you want to pay for processing of the
log.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: According to your --
given the weaknesses of your sensitivity analysis here,
it would still take, even if there were only a hundred

feet taking the fluid it would still take about 14 years

MR. JONES: Yes, that's with theinet
thickness of‘avhundred feet. T

CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Hundred feetiisevenki
percent --

MR. JONES: Seven percent.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: ‘The assumptions.that you
put in there. |

MR. JONES: There's a_ldt assumptienstthere.
And what I didn't show is a typical range of
permeabilities for the San Andres, for instance. The’
Eaxter—Parsons coefficient, that kind of thing. That
would show more_about whether you can really use
something like this or not.

CHAIRMAN.FESMIRE; So I guess what I'm
sa?ing is, if we were to grant the permit now, even using

your assumptions in all the inherent for lack of a better
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word weaknesses in your assumption we would still have 12
to 14 yeérs of safe injection; is that correct?

MR. JONES: Well, I only went down to a
hundred feet just there for -- was no really cohtrol
there. |

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: And we're pretty sure it
would take -- there's more than a hundred feét of
permeability in:there, right?

MR. JONES: I do have an exhibit for that .

The Exhibit K you can -- if you will look at:'that, that

was one of the nearest open hole logs I éould find;  And
it's -- iﬁ's a porosity.log of this dolomite.-,it shows
if you look at the gamma ray on the‘left'side; iookvat --
there is,nq clean‘—;vthere's no clean in that; |

| 'So»there's -- there's a lot of.little.
intervals there. And if you look at the porosit?,]ydu
will see that what you éee in here is-the denéity,_and}

neutron, open hole porosity. And in dolomite you have to

~cross-plot that pdrosity. And basically dsﬁally it's --

YOu‘can kind of look betWeen the two curves and you can
see whaﬁ the porosity would be. Effective porosity.
Because_it'é_a dolomite, not a sandstone. |

And this goes from.almost the top of the San
Andres to the bottdm'of the San Andres. So it's vefy --

and what I would say is in low porosity rock you tend

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS
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1 more to have your flow dominated by fracturing than you

2 do matrix, matrix controlled permeability. It's more

3. controlled by that. Because let's say for a given Volume
4 going in or going out of this rock, you wouid -- if it's
5 real tight, it's -- whatever the flow is, is going tb be
6 controlled moré by the fracturing.

7 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. So I guess getting
8 back to the question I was trying to ask. If we were to
9 grant this --

10 ' MR. JONES: Sorry.

11 ‘CHAIRMANIFﬁSMIRE: No. If we were to'gféht
12 this we would have, you know; within the conStrainpéIWe‘
13 would have several'years to be able to do these

14 calculations and to‘do‘these tests.

15 MR. JONES; I thought we could have moré

16 than six months anyway. And a year was arrived at affer »,f
17 we looked at some»of these Sensitivities, yes.- |
18 CHATRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. I have no_furtherf
19 questions. Ms. MacQuesten, do you have any?

20, . , | o R P :

21 RE—DIRECT EXAMINATION

22 BY MS. MACQUESTEN:
23 Q. I just wanted to clarify one thing about the
24 exhibits you provided on the injection volume for the

25 subject well.
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A. Yes.

Q. We were required to submit our exhibits
ahead of time; is that right?

Al Yes.

Q. And since then you have found that Targa has
changed its reporting?

A. | I -- I saw it this morning. They did réport
it to us when they came to bur talk the other day.

Q0. After we filed our exhibits; is that.fairé

A. Yes. 'I‘don't remembexr exactly whén they
filed their report. |

| Q. We have to file a week ahead of time.

That's way it is. Now, you say°they corrected the
volumes?

A. Yes. They changed them.

Q... They chaﬁged_them. ‘Did they'éhange thés
injection pressufe?_ | |

A. No, the injectidn pressures . are still
répoited at either.zero-or'750. 750 seems to be a
favorite number to be used. |

Q. So we still néed td have injection preésures
corrected if possible.

A. I would be happy'if they reported correctly
from now on. |

Q. Okay.
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A. Diligently from now on.

Q. On your exhibit showing sensitivity, this
was designed to change just'one variable in the
calculation, right?

A. Yes. Oné variable.

Q. And see what kind of change woﬁld resultbif
you changed that one variable.

A. Yes.

Q. But there are other variables involved, are

- there not?

A. Yes, there are.

0. So ybu would have to look at, for example,

if the porosity changed that would also affect this.

A. Yes. The effective porosity.
Q. Effective porosity. And if the tests are

conducted and show that there's some sort of fracturing

is that going to affect the model?

“A. That will affect the médel. Definitely. We
will have £o>;~ both sides will-havé,to recalculaﬁe and
we -- take that into account. | |

Q; So when wé're assuming that everything's

going to be okay for a certain period of years, that's
relying on those assumptions, right?
A. Lot of assumptions here.

MS. MacQUESTEN: Thank you. That's all I
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1 have.

2 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Anything further,
3 Mr. White, on those --

4 MR. SCOTT: Just a few followfqps bn

5 Exhibits K and L.

6 - CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay.
7 * * *
8 , : RE-CROSS EXAMINATION

9 . BY MR._SCOTT:
10 Q. Now looking at your Exhibit L.  Mr. Jones,
11 you have maximum disposal rate barrels per day of 5543,

12 correct?

13. A. Yes.

14 Q. But what Targa had asked fof is 4075;

15 correct? -

16 A. Yes. They asked --

17 Q. So you are at 1468 barrels.more per'day than

18 what Targa had asked for.

19 A. I used the subsurface --

20 Q Just answer my Question, sir. You'fe -
21 A. Yes.

22 Q -- 1468 more, correct.

23 _ CHAiRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. White, I believe he
24 was answering the.quéstion.

25 MR. SCOTT: 1I'm sorry. It's Mr. Scott.
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14

| ‘Page 21
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Mr. Scott. I'm sorry.

A. Yes, to answer your question.
Q. (BY MR. SCOTT) And then for porosity-you're‘
using seven percent, correét?
A. Yes.
‘.Q', And even taking those numbers, if_you;look

at 500-foot thickness at the end of 30 years you're still

A. Correct.

Q. In fact you're at about .37

A. .3. |

Q. And.if,you havé 360 feet of'thickness.agéiﬁ

using more barrels than Targa had asked for in seven

percent, you're still less than a half mile at 30 years,

correct?
A. Correét.
Q. Youffe at aboutllittle over .47
A. That's what the chart‘shéws, yés.
Q. Léoking at Exhibit K. And do YOu-haVe a

copy of Exhibit_B;‘Mr. Gutierrez' PowerPoint? I can
provide one if you need a copy.

A. That's the log? Yes, I've seen that.

Q. Okay. Let me just hand this to you make
sure we are taiking ébout the same thing.

A, Okay.

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL C
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Q. So your Exhibit K says that it's from the

Laura J May No. 1 well; is that correct?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And that is from a log from 19807

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. And looking at Exhibit 14 or Slide 14

of Exhibit 3. In_the right-hand corner you will see the
location of the Targa well and then two circles running
out from there? | |

A, Yes.

Q. And the Laura J May No. 1 Weli is shéwn' 
outside the green ciréie, éorrect?

A. Correct.

0. It's outside of a half mile?
A. Correct.

Q. And the Santa Rita No. 12 is shown as being

right at the half-mile radius, correct?

A. Correct.

0. And that's the log that's shown on Slide 14 -

of Exhibit 3, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And that's a log that's actually much closer

to the well involved_here; is that correct?
A. That's correct.

MR. SCOTT: No further questions.

proesmatatma R A
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1 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Ms. MacQuesten,

5

2 anything else on that?
3 MS. MACQUESTEN: No. I would move for the
4 admission of OCD Exhibits A through L, Exhibit A is the

5 prefiled written testimony and the remaining exhibits are

6 the exhibits that Mr. Jones prepared and discusses in his
7 testimony.
8 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Mr. Scott, any

9 problem?
10 MR. SCOTT: No, sir.
117. .' MS. MACQUESTEN: And we sﬁbmitted'six or
12' eight copies.
13 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: A through L is admitted.

14 Why don't we take a quick ten-minute break and then we'll

15 get closing at the -- when we return at five after 4:00.
16 (Break.)
17 ' CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. Let's go back on

18 the record. The record should reflect that we are going

19 to reconvene in Case No. 14575. We just completed the.

20 cross-examination of Mr. Jones. I beiieve‘it's time for
21 closing arguments. Mr. Scott, are you prepared?

22 MR. SCOTT: Yes, sir.

23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Procéed.

24 _ MR. SCOTT: Thank you. Thank you for youf

25 time and attention today and I know this has been a long
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day we may have run a little longer than folks had

anticipated. The focus today really has been on data.

é
2
And we understand and appreciate the concerné folks have %
about the data and what that data means and how to %
interpret that data. |

One point that went undiéputed'froﬁ %

Mr. Gutierrez's testimony is his information about the

porosity trend in this area running from southwest to

northeast. Most of the wells of concern that were

identified are to the north and east of that porosity

trend.

Second, with respect to theiissue of

gathering data and testing, the C-108 that Targa filed -

long ago chtained all of the testing, analysis,

everything that Mr. Jones had asked for'with one

exception, which was the temperature surVéyr ‘Targa has

agréed to undertake that survey as well.

‘That data gathering and collection is
customary, that's something that Targa would have done in

any event, as is indicated by the fact thét he included

it in the C-108, and it's the kind of information that

was gathered and used and relied upon in five previous

instances issuing acid gas injection wells as being

'sufficient and competent data for the decision-maker

there to issue a final order.
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1 ' In fact, that kind of information was:

2 available and utilized as precisely the basis for the.
3 prior order for this same project.

4 | Targa understands the concerns and is

5 willing to work to provide the data, but_it also wants to
6 get some finality and get a final order from this_'i

7 process. What Targa is amenable to is conducting all of
8 the confirmatory data work that it.describedvin its

9 testimony and that the OCD staff has requested.

lOY Sdbmitting that data.with a certification‘as wenindicated'vi
11 that Work has all been completed,vand prQVidingfneW

12 calculations of'the impact of the plume based updn.thatvﬁ
.13 _additional'data. |

14 ’» | If that revised calculation basedeon the

15> data. gathered during the process of the testlng and

16 sampllng reflects that there would be no 1mpact at the

17 half-mile radlus and 30.years then we would propose that

18 an administrative order be issued granting the duthority

19 | to godforward with injection.

20 : "'if at the end of all of that data collection
21 and sampling the'revised calculation reflects thet there

22 would be an impact as ef 15 years, then we would suggest
23 that this matter then be taken back for some sort of -

24 administrative hearing at that point.

25 We think that provides some certainty,

. S
g
£
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provides a means for the agency to receive the data that

it's looking for to evaluate that data and come to a

reasonable conclusion, but doesn't require the formal
notice procedures and a lot of the other éumbersome and
potentially delay—causingbsteps in trying to schedule a
further hearing befofe this body.
CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you, Mr. Scott.

Ms. MacQuesten?’

| MS;iMACQUESTEN: Mr. Chairman, memberékof
the Cbmmission. Ilﬁhink.that the issue today céﬁesvdpwn‘. R
to an issue of proceSé. What is the process in obtaining
a permit for an ééid gas injection well? Is thevburdénv

on the operator to come forward and demonstrate that the“.’

burden placed Qn the OCD to come back and disproveithe'_‘
validity.of.the permit?

| I?m here to ask today that the burden remaiﬂ :f
on the applicant;. There are special concefns in this
case. Mr. Jénésitestified about the large number of
wells in the area éf réview and his special concern about
one well within the half-mile and seven wells just
outside this.halfamile. |

It'slvery important that we make sure that

that plume does not extend to those wells. The assurance .

that Targa has given us comes in the form of an

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-1551 -4f65-870-926626329bbb




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
N
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

mathematical model; it makes a great number of
assumptions. Those assumptions can be tested if weiget
the data and we can yerify them.

What We‘are asking for is that Targa be

given a permit, allowed to construct the well, and in the

" course of that do the testing that they have agreed to

do, do to analysis that they have agreed to do, but then
come back to the Commission with the results of those
tests so that the Commission can use that data to make
the determination on what sort of life of permit.limit is
appropriate in thié case.

Thisvcan bepdonépwithin this case. This
benefits the>OCD épd the Commiséion because it gives gs"
the data Qe need. :It‘bénefits Targa because they will
Simply'be reopening thepdase, I don't believe that there
will be neéd for‘additiqnal'notice beyond the legal
ﬁotice of the féctvthat a hearing is beiﬁg-held. In
other words, we wonft havé to have letters out to all.the
individual entities} they have alréady been given notice
of this. |

What will happen is that they will come in
with that data. And that's what we've spent all day

talking about. Is that a significant hardship? I don't

believe it is. In fact, I'd have to say we have spent

the whole day talking aboutpdata.that we don't have and‘
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‘what I'm asking the Commission today is don't -- is to

.Thank you.

‘data, that it should be made available, that it should be
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what it'll show or what it won't show. "When it would be

much simpler to simply get the data. If it verifies what

Targa is saying, it's a very simple mat;er of presenting
that and moving forward.

Now, Mr.‘Boyd presented some comments to the
Commission and he said something.Very interesting; he
said when people get the notice of a proceeding such as
this, they are relying on the OCD to make sure that the
pefmit is done correctly. The OCD and the_Co@mission

can't carry out that responsibility without data. And

not abdicate that responsibility; to insist that it get

the data it needs to make the appropriate decision.

CHAIRMAN FESMIREﬁ Okay. Anything else in
this case?

MR. SCOTT: May I respond very briefly?

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: You may, sir.

MR. SCOTT: I don't think we have a

fundamental disagreement here. I think Ms. MacQuesten

hit the nail on the head when she said this is about

process. We don't dispute that you guys should get that

evaluated.

Really the question is procéss and time.
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1 And I think the process that I outlined that Targa i

2 requests is a reasonable process that allows the

3 technical staff of the agency to.utilize its expertise to
4 evaluate the data that's provided, make a reasoned

5 determination based on that data, and if it satisfies the
6 criteria of no impact at 30 years, administratively allow
7 the process to go forward.

8 | If the data reflects that that's not the

9v> case and there wpuld be an‘effect at 15 years, ét that

10 point yes, we would come back, have a heariné,vand.

11 explore what the data means and whether.a‘diffefent

12 timeframe would.be applicable.

13 - It's just a métter of what that process is
14  as opposed to wﬁether or not you're entitled to the data.
15 We don't disputé_that'you're entitled to'get,thatvdate.
16 N CHAiRMAN FESMIRE: Thank you very much.

17 Anything further in this case?

18 MS. MACQUESTEN: Mr. Commissioner, you had
19 expressed interest in draft orders. And I believe Targa
20 has already submitted a draft order, we have a draft

21 order that we prepared before the testimony today that we

22 can prov1de to you §
23 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Please do so. §
24 | MR. SCOTT: And we would like to supplement §

: .
25 ours. We havéva few changes. One of our witnesses had a 3
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death in the family .and wasn't unable to appear. There
are some things we would --

CHAIRMAN FESMiRE: We are going to
deliberéte this evening. Is there any way you can do
that longhand and --

MR. SCOTT: I have a copy here. I could
amend it by interlineation and provide that.

| CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: I'll tell you what. When
will YOu be back to ybur office? |
| MR. SCOTT: I'm planning to drive straight
from here back to my'officé.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Why don't you go ahead
and make those changes and e-mail it to me. .

MR. SCOTT: To your'attention?

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE:b Yes. Actually, to the
attention of the Secretéry. Give him your e-mail. |

MS. DAVIDSON: Florene, F-L-0O-R-E-N-E,
.Davidson-étlstate;nmﬁué. | |

MR . SCOTT: We will do that.

CHATRMAN FESMIRE : Okay. And
Ms. MacQuesten, if you would do the same thing. We're
not going to need it toﬁight, but we'll need it to draft
the order. | |

MS.:MACQUESTEN:F I will.

CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: Okay. For the third

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f70- 926626329bbb

R BT oo,

S R B B R S S M 0

B I e A S



Page 226

1 time. Is there anything further in this case? Okay.

2 With that, we will adjourn Case No. 144752 575. I'm

3 sorry. And the Chair would entertain a motion. We have
4 two cases that we have to deliberate on, this being the

5 first one. The Chair would entertain a motion here in a
6 minute to go into executive session to deliberate on

7 that. Then if evérything goes as planned this evening we
8 will come out of executive session and go back.intQ

9 executive sessiQn to dé1iberate on_Case;No}.14418._‘Ahd

10 hopefully tonight we will finish deliberations.

lli We_will ﬁhen reconvene‘oh December 20th at
112 9:00 o'clock in»the'mofning in this rooﬁ to address_the

13 orders in this case and in the Cimarex case. So with

14 that, the Chair wduld-entertaih a motion pursuaht‘to the;

15. Open Records Acﬁ’to go into executive ééssion.

16 | COMMiSSIONER BAILEY: I so move.

17 . COMMISSIONER OLSON: Second.

18 COMMISSIONER BAILEY:F Open Meetings Aét;

19 | CHAIRMAN .FESMIRE:' Open Meetings. Aét. ‘I'm

20 sorry. Motion's'been made and seconded. All'thése in

21 favor signify by‘saying "éye." We_will go into executive

22 session as soon as we clear the rodm.

23 (Break.) .

24 CHAIRMAN FESMIRE: At this time we will go

25 back on the record in Case No. 14575. The record should
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reflect that the Commission has deliberated and
deliberated on this case and nothing else. And that we
have come to a decision, we have instructed counsel to

draft an order reflecting that decision, and we intend to

review -- have counsel circulate that order, and each one

of the Commissioners will review it and then when we meet
on December 20th we will sign the order at that time.

At this time the Chair would entertain a

‘motion to go into executive session to address Case

No. 14418 and -- and 14480. At this time the Chair would

entertain such a motion if such a motion were

vforthcoming.
CQMMISSIONER BAILEY: So move.
COMMISSIONER OLSON:‘ Second.
CHATRMAN FESMIRE: All thosé in favor
éignify by saying "aye."‘ Let the rechd refleqt that a

unanimous decision was made to go into executive session = |

for solebpurpose of considering Cases 14418 and 14480.
Sorry Frank.

(Break.)

CHAIRMAﬁ FESMIRE: Okay. Letfé go back on
the record in Cases No. 14418 and 144804 The record
should reflect that the}COm@ission has deliberated in
thesebcombined caées, that they have come to a decision,

that they communicated that decision to counsel, counsel

s ERR = T, SN OO
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© it was unanimously decided to adjourh at 4:50 p.m.
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is in the process of drafting an order and will circulate é

said order to the Commission members, and it too will be
prepared for signature at the Decembér 20th meeting, 9:00
a.m. in this room.

Is there any further business‘before the
Commission this evening? The Chair would entertain --
happily entertain motion to adjourn.

COMMISSIONER BAILEY: I Soimove.v'

‘COMMISSIONER OLSON: SecOhd. |
COMMISSIONER BAILEY: All those in favor

signify by saying “aye." The record should'reflect that

PAUL BACA PROFESSIONAL COURT REPORTERS

- df102fc0-f551-4f65-8f70-926626329bbb



10

11

12

13

14

15

Page 229 |
THE STATE OF NEW MEXICO
COUNTY OF BERNALILLO

BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing transcript of
proceedings was taken by me; that I was then and there a
Certified Court Reporter and Notary Public in and for the
County of Bernalillo, State of New Mexico, and by virtue
thereof, authorized to administer an oath; that the
witness before testifying was duly sworn by me; that the
foregoing 228 pages contain a true and accurate
transcript of the proceedings, all to the best of my
skill and ability.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am neither employed by
nor related to nor contracted with (unless excepted by
the Rules) any of the parties or attorneys in this case,
and that I have no interest whatsoever in the final
dlSpOSltlon of this case in any court.

\ p coavmnll i:f \jg;a/

JEANNINE K. SIMS, CSR, RPR

NM’Certlfled Court Reporter #12
. /Mlcense expires: '12/31/10
"“Paul Baca Court Reporters

500 Fourth Street, NW, Suite 105

"Albuquerque, New Mexico 87102
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